
 

 

  

 

 

   

BOARD OF GOVERNORS  

Executive Committee Meeting 

 

March 27, 2024 ● 2:00 PM  

L.A. Care Health Plan 

1055 W. 7th Street, Los Angeles, CA 90017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

1



 

3/22/2024 10:12 AM  
 

 
AGENDA 
Executive Committee Meeting 
Board of Governors 
Wednesday, March 27, 2024, 2:00 P.M. 
L.A. Care Health Plan, 1055 West 7th Street, Conference Room 100, 1st Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90017 
 

 

Members of the Committee, staff and the public can attend the meeting in person at the address listed 
above.  Public comment can be made live and in person at the meeting.  A form will be available at the 
meeting to submit public comment. 
 

To listen to the meeting via videoconference please register by using the link below: 
https://lacare.webex.com/lacare/j.php?MTID=m42187f08c7399f2aeb2959a65f26eb84 

 

To listen to the meeting via teleconference please dial:  +1-213-306-3065 
Meeting Number:  2499 670 9618   Password: lacare 

 

For those not attending the meeting in person, public comments on Agenda items can be submitted in 
writing by e-mail to BoardServices@lacare.org, or by sending a text or voicemail to (213) 628-6420. 

 

If we receive your comments by 2:00 P.M. on March 27, 2024, it will be provided to the Committee 
members in writing at the beginning of the meeting.  The chat message, text, voicemail, or email must 
indicate if you wish to be identified or remain anonymous, and must include the name of the item to 

which your comment relates.  If your public comment is not related to any of the agenda item topics, it 
will be read in the general public comment agenda item.   

 

The purpose of public comment is an opportunity for members of the public to inform the governing 
body about their views.  The Committee appreciates hearing the input as it considers the business on the 

Agenda.  All public comments submitted will be read for up to 3 minutes during the meeting.  The process 
for public comment is evolving and may change at future meetings.  We thank you for your patience. 

 

All votes in a teleconferenced meeting shall be conducted by roll call. 
 

If you are an individual with a disability and need a reasonable modification or accommodation pursuant 
to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) please contact L.A. Care Board Services staff prior to the 

meeting for assistance by text to 213 628-6420 or by email to BoardServices@lacare.org. 
 

Welcome  Alvaro Ballesteros, MBA 
Chair  

1. Approve today’s Agenda Chair 
 

2. Public Comment (Please read instructions above.) 
 

 Chair 

3. Approve the February 28, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
 

Chair 

4. Chairperson’s Report 
 

Chair 
 

5. Chief Executive Officer Report 
 

 Government Affairs Update 
 

John Baackes 
Chief Executive Officer 
Cherie Compartore 

Senior Directors, Government Affairs 
 

Committee Issues 
 

6. Catalina Island Health Grant to support safety net access to 
health care for L.A. Care members living on Catalina Island 
(EXE 100) 

Wendy Schiffer, MSPH 
Senior Director, Strategic Planning 

 

2

https://lacare.webex.com/lacare/j.php?MTID=m42187f08c7399f2aeb2959a65f26eb84
MalouB
Text Box
p.5

MalouB
Text Box
p.10

MalouB
Text Box
p.160



Executive Committee Meeting Agenda 
March 27, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 
 

Last Saved 3/22/2024 10:12 AM 

 

7. Approve the list of items that will be considered on a Consent Agenda for April 4, 2024 
Board of Governors Meeting. 

  March 7, 2024 meeting minutes 

  Contract with Microsoft (via SHI International) to provide product support services 
for Information Technology staff supporting critical virtual production infrastructure 

  Faneuil, Inc. Contract Extension and Funding for Customer Solutions Center 

 

Chair 

8. Public Comment on Closed Session Items (Please read instructions above.) 
 

Chair 

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 60 mins.) 
 

Chair 

9. REPORT INVOLVING TRADE SECRET 
Pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code Section 14087.38(n)  
Discussion Concerning New Service, Program, Technology, Business Plan 
Estimated date of public disclosure:  March 2026 
 

10. CONTRACT RATES 
Pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code Section 14087.38(m) 

 Plan Partner Rates 

 Provider Rates 

 DHCS Rates 
 

11. THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES 
Government Code Section 54957 
Consultation with:  Tom MacDougall, Chief Information & Technology Officer 
 

12. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Section 54956.9(d)(2) of Ralph M. Brown Act:  
Three Potential Cases 
 

13. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Section 54956.9(d)(1) of the Ralph M. Brown Act 
L.A. Care Health Plan’s Notice of Contract Dispute under Contract No. 04-36069  
Department of Health Care Services (Case No. Unavailable) 
 

14. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Section 54956.9(d)(1) of the Ralph M. Brown Act 

 Department of Managed Health Care Enforcement Matter Numbers: 18-799, 20-063, 21-428, 
21-509, 21-680 

 Department of Health Care Services, Office of Administrative Hearings and Appeals, In the 
matter of: L.A. Care Health Care Plan Appeal No. MCP22-0322-559-MF 
 

15. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION,  PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT and 
CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
Sections 54957 and 54957.6 of the Ralph M. Brown Act 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 
Agency Designated Representative: Alvaro Ballesteros, MBA 
Unrepresented Employee: John Baackes 
 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Chair 
 

The next Executive Committee meeting is scheduled on Wednesday, April 24, 2024 at 2:00 p.m.  

3



Executive Committee Meeting Agenda 
March 27, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 
 

Last Saved 3/22/2024 10:12 AM 

 

and may be conducted as a teleconference meeting. 
 

The order of items appearing on the agenda may change during the meeting.   
 
 

THE PUBLIC MAY SUBMIT COMMENTS TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE BEFORE DISCUSSION OF EACH ITEM LISTED ON THE AGENDA BY 
SUBMITTING THE COMMENT IN WRITING BY TEXT MESSAGE TO 213 628 6420, OR IN WRITING BY EMAIL TO BoardServices@lacare.org.    Please 

follow additional instructions on the first page of this Agenda. 
 

ACTION MAY NOT BE TAKEN ON ANY MATTER RAISED DURING THE PUBLIC COMMENT PERIODS UNTIL THE MATTER IS SPECIFICALLY 
LISTED ON A FUTURE AGENDA, according to California Govt Code Section 54954.2 (a)(3) and Section 54954.3. 

 
NOTE:  THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE CURRENTLY MEETS ON THE FOURTH TUESDAY OF MOST MONTHS AT 2:00 P.M.   AGENDA and PRINTED 

MEETING MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION AT http://www.lacare.org/about-us/public-meetings/board-meetings and by email request to 
BoardServices@lacare.org 

 

Any documents distributed to a majority of the Board Members regarding any agenda item for an open session after the agenda has been posted will be available for 

public inspection at 1055 W. 7th Street, Los Angeles, CA, in the reception area in the main lobby or at  http://www.lacare.org/about-us/public-
meetings/board-meetings and can be requested by email to BoardServices@lacare.org.  

An audio recording of the meeting is made to assist in writing the minutes and is retained for 30 days. 
 

Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities.  Individuals who may require any accommodations (alternative formats – i.e., large print, 
audio, translation of meeting materials, interpretation, etc.) to participate in this meeting and wish to request an alternative format for the 

agenda, meeting notice, and meeting packet may contact L.A. Care’s Board Services Department at (213) 628 6420.  Notification at least 
one week before the meeting will enable us to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the meetings and to the related 

materials. 

4

mailto:BoardServices@lacare.org
http://www.lacare.org/about-us/public-meetings/board-meetings
mailto:BoardServices@lacare.org
http://www.lacare.org/about-us/public-meetings/board-meetings
http://www.lacare.org/about-us/public-meetings/board-meetings
mailto:boardservices@lacare.org


 

 DRAFT 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
Executive Committee 
Meeting Minutes – February 28, 2024 
1055 West 7th Street, 1st Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90017 
 

Members Management/Staff  
Alvaro Ballesteros, MBA, Chairperson* John Baackes, Chief Executive Officer* Alex Li, MD, Chief Health Equity Officer 
Ilan Shapiro MD, MBA, FAAP, FACHE,  
    Vice Chairperson  

Sameer Amin, MD, Chief Medical Officer  
Terry Brown, Chief of Human Resources 

Tom MacDougall, Chief Technology & Information Officer 
Noah Paley, Chief of Staff 

Stephanie Booth, MD, Treasurer Augustavia J. Haydel, Esq., General Counsel Acacia Reed, Chief Operating Officer 
John G. Raffoul, Secretary Todd Gower, Interim Chief Compliance Officer Afzal Shah, Chief Financial Officer 
 Linda Greenfeld, Chief Products Officer  
*Absent    ** Via Teleconference   

 

AGENDA 
ITEM/PRESENTER 

 
MOTIONS / MAJOR DISCUSSIONS 

 
ACTION TAKEN 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

 

Ilan Shapiro, MD, Vice-Chairperson, called to order the regular meetings of the L.A. Care 
Executive Committee and the L.A. Care Joint Powers Authority Executive Committee 
regular meetings at 2:10 p.m.  The meetings were held simultaneously.  He welcomed 
everyone to the meetings.   

 For those who provided public comment for this meeting by voice message or in 
writing, L.A. Care is glad that they provided input today.  The Committee will hear 
their comments and the Committee also needs to finish the business on the Agenda 
today.   

 For people who have access to the internet, the meeting materials are available at 
the lacare.org website.  If anyone needs information about how to locate the 
meeting materials, they can reach out to L.A. Care staff. 

 Information for public comment is on the Agenda available on the web site.  Staff 
will read the comment received in writing from each person for up to three minutes.    

 Public comment will be heard before the Committee discusses an item.  If the 
comment is not on a specific agenda item, it will be read at the general Public 
Comment. 

 

He provided information on how to submit a comment in-person, or using the “chat” 
feature. 
 

 

   APPROVE MEETING 
AGENDA 

The Agenda for today’s meeting was approved. 
 

Approved unanimously.   

 

5



 

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2024 
Page 2 of 5 DRAFT 

AGENDA 
ITEM/PRESENTER 

 
MOTIONS / MAJOR DISCUSSIONS 

 
ACTION TAKEN 

 
 

3 AYES (Booth, Raffoul and 
Shapiro) 
 

   PUBLIC COMMENT There were no public comments. 
 

 

   APPROVE MEETING 
MINUTES 

Committee Member Booth inquired about information regarding the proposed 
restructure of the consumer advisory committees that was to be provided to the 
Committee.  Noah Paley, Chief of Staff, responded that work is ongoing to adjust and 
refine the proposal.  Meetings are scheduled with the Regional Consumer Advisory 
Committee members to communicate and get feedback on the current refined changes.  
After that process is complete, the changes will be reviewed by the Executive 
Community Advisory Committee (ECAC).   ECAC can then send a recommended 
motion to the Board of Governors.   
 

Committee Member Booth asked about information related to California Department 
of Health Care Services (DHCS) contractual mandates and staff recommendations.  Mr. 
Paley indicated that staff  has prepared a chart showing the DHCS mandates and staff 
recommendations to operationalize the DHCS contractual requirements that will be 
available for review by the Board members and the consumer advisory committee 
members.   
 

The minutes of the January 24, 2024 meeting were approved as submitted. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved unanimously.   
3 AYES  
 

   CHAIRPERSON’S 
REPORT 
 

Vice Chairperson Shapiro noted that the redetermination of eligibility for Medi-Cal is 
ongoing and Medi-Cal eligibility has been expanded to undocumented California 
residents ages 26 to 49 years old.  L.A. Care continues to transmit a message to the 
community that it will help with enrollment and make sure health care is accessible by 
supporting the provider community and increasing the provider work force that is 
caring for members.    
 

 

   CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER REPORT 
 

There was no report from the Chief Executive Officer.  

 Government Affairs 
Update 
 

Cherie Compartore, Senior Director, Government Affairs, reported: 
 

The deadline recently passed for introduction of bills at the state legislature. 
Government Affairs staff is monitoring about 125 bills that may affect L.A. Care.  The 
legislature is engaged in healthcare issues in spite of the looming massive budget deficit.  

 

6



 

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2024 
Page 3 of 5 DRAFT 

AGENDA 
ITEM/PRESENTER 

 
MOTIONS / MAJOR DISCUSSIONS 

 
ACTION TAKEN 

Some proposed bills are spot bills and more detail will emerge over time.  Government 
Affairs staff is reaching out to the legislative offices and bill sponsors, gathering 
information and holding preliminary conversations.  Budget committee hearings have 
begun at a very high level and detail of the programs will not be released before the May 
Budget Revise comes out.  Government Affairs will continue to monitor and participate 
in discussoins into March and April and will provide recommendations to the Board on 
L.A. Care’s positions at a future Board meeting.   
 

The first legislative matrix will be included in the March meeting materials and will be 
lengthy.  The bills will narrow down as the session continues.  The budget deficit is 
increasing by billions of dollars.  The latest update from the Legislative Analyst Office 
(LAO) earlier this week indicated that the budget deficit is projected to be $73 billion.  
This is an increase of $15 billion over the Governor’s projected deficit of $38 billion in 
January.  There is a vast difference between the projections by the Department of 
Finance (LAO) and the Governor.  The May Budget Revise will include tax revenue 
received.  
 

The assembly budget committee recently held a hearing focused on the managed care 
organization (MCO) tax proposal.  The legislation has nothing to do with the 
proposition proposed for the November ballot.  The Governor wants the legislature to 
act earlier to obtain approval to collect $1.5 billion additional revenue retroactively from 
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS).  Local Health Plans of California, a 
trade association of which L.A. Care is a member along with other public health plans, 
some provider representatives such as California Medical Association (CMA) and 
others, participated on a panel for this hearing.  The messaging in this hearing is support 
for the concept of MCO.  Details on rates have not been determined.  There will be 
more activity behind the scenes with various interest groups trying to make changes in 
the actual rate increases, but for now there appears to be support for MCO initiative.   
 

It seems that Sacramento will need to determine the roots of the $58 billion budget 
deficit.  The deficit will effect health plans, including L.A. Care.  The state cannot 
technically reduce rates, because rates have to be actuarially sound.  They cannot usually 
solve a budget problem with reducing rates.  Many states have had lawsuits related to 
that exact issue.  The last time this happened in 2008, benefits were reduced and  
reductions were made to rates for primary care and specialty pharmacy, resulting in 
litigation.  Payments to health plans could be delayed.  L.A. Care has about 90 days of 
reserve funds.   

   

7



 

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2024 
Page 4 of 5 DRAFT 

AGENDA 
ITEM/PRESENTER 

 
MOTIONS / MAJOR DISCUSSIONS 

 
ACTION TAKEN 

COMMITTEE ISSUES 
 

  

Approve Consent Agenda 
 

Approve the list of items that will be considered on a Consent Agenda for March 7, 
2024 Board of Governors Meeting. 

 February 1, 2024 meeting minutes 

 January 24, 2024 meeting minutes 

 Quarterly Investment Report 

 Contract Amendment with Metcalfe Security 

 Approve Accounting & Financial Services Policies AFS-027 (Travel Expenses and 
Other Expenses), and retirement of AFS-004 (Non-Travel & Other Related 
Expenses) 

 Contract Amendment with Solugenix, Infosys and Cognizant for Information 
Technology staff augmentation services through September 30, 2024 

 2024 Compliance Program Work Plan 

 
Board Member Booth asked that clarification on the contract amount for Solugenix be 
provided at the March 7 Board meeting.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved unanimously.   
3 AYES  

   PUBLIC COMMENTS There were no public comments. 
 

 

   ADJOURN TO CLOSED 
SESSION 

The Joint Powers Authority Executive Committee meeting adjourned at 2:29 pm.   
 

Augustavia J. Haydel, Esq., General Counsel announced the items for discussion in closed session.  She announced there is 
no report anticipated from the closed session.  The meeting adjourned to closed session at 2:30pm. 
 

REPORT INVOLVING TRADE SECRET 
Pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code Section 14087.38(n)  
Discussion Concerning New Service, Program, Business Plan 
Estimated date of public disclosure:  February 2026 
 

CONTRACT RATES 
Pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code Section 14087.38(m) 

 Plan Partner Rates 

 Provider Rates 

 DHCS Rates 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

8



 

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2024 
Page 5 of 5 DRAFT 

AGENDA 
ITEM/PRESENTER 

 
MOTIONS / MAJOR DISCUSSIONS 

 
ACTION TAKEN 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Section 54956.9(d)(2) of Ralph M. Brown Act:  
Three Potential Cases 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Section 54956.9(d)(1) of the Ralph M. Brown Act 
L.A. Care Health Plan’s Notice of Contract Dispute under Contract No. 04-36069  
Department of Health Care Services (Case No. Unavailable) 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Section 54956.9(d)(1) of the Ralph M. Brown Act 

 Department of Managed Health Care Enforcement Matter Numbers: 18-799, 20-063, 21-428, 21-509, 21-680 

 Department of Health Care Services, Office of Administrative Hearings and Appeals, In the matter of: L.A. Care Health 
Care Plan Appeal No. MCP22-0322-559-MF 

 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION,  PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT and CONFERENCE WITH 
LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
Sections 54957 and 54957.6 of the Ralph M. Brown Act 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 
Agency Designated Representative: Alvaro Ballesteros, MBA 
Unrepresented Employee: John Baackes 
 

   RECONVENE IN 
OPEN SESSION 
 

The meeting reconvened in open session at 2:50 pm.  No reportable actions were taken during the closed session.   
 

   ADJOURNMENT  The meeting adjourned at 2:52 pm.  
 

 

    
Respectfully submitted by:        APPROVED BY: 
Linda Merkens, Senior Manager, Board Services 
Malou Balones, Board Specialist III, Board Services     ____________________________________________ 
Victor Rodriguez, Board Specialist II, Board Services     Alvaro Ballesteros, MBA, Board Chairperson 
           Date: _______________________________________ 

9



Title
Covered	California:	expansion.

Description
AB	4,	as	amended,	Arambula.	Covered	California:	expansion.
Existing	federal	law,	the	Patient	Protection	and	Affordable
Care	Act	(PPACA),	requires	each	state	to	establish	an
American	Health	Benefit	Exchange	to	facilitate	the	purchase
of	qualified	health	benefit	plans	by	qualified	individuals	and
qualified	small	employers.	Existing	state	law	creates	the
California	Health	Benefit	Exchange,	also	known	as	Covered
California,	to	facilitate	the	enrollment	of	qualified	individuals
and	qualified	small	employers	in	qualified	health	plans	as
required	under	PPACA.	Existing	law	requires	the	Exchange	to
apply	for	a	federal	waiver	to	allow	persons	otherwise	not	able
to	obtain	coverage	through	the	Exchange	because	of	their
immigration	status	to	obtain	coverage	from	the	Exchange.This
bill	would	delete	that	requirement	and	would	instead	require
the	Exchange	to	administer	a	program	to	allow	persons
otherwise	not	able	to	obtain	coverage	by	reason	of
immigration	status	to	enroll	in	health	insurance	coverage	in	a
manner	as	substantially	similar	to	other	Californians	as
feasible	given	existing	federal	law	and	rules.	The	bill	would
require	the	Exchange	to	undertake	outreach,	marketing,	and
other	efforts	to	ensure	enrollment.	The	bill	would	also	require
the	Exchange	to	adopt	an	annual	program	design	for	each
coverage	year	to	implement	the	program,	and	would	require
the	Exchange	to	provide	appropriate	opportunities	for
stakeholders,	including	the	Legislature,	and	the	public	to
consult	on	the	design	of	the	program.

Primary	Sponsors
Joaquin	Arambula,	Sabrina	Cervantes,	Maria	Durazo

Introduction	Date:	2022-12-05

Legislative	Matrix
Last	Updated:	March	18,	2024

Bills	by	Issue
2024	Legislation	(183)

Bill	Number
AB	4

Status
In	Senate

Position
Support

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	May	12,	2023,	9:13	PM
L.A.	Care,	Health	Access	California	(co-sponsor),	California	Immigrant	Policy	Center	(co-sponsor):	Support

10

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=ed875be6ace474106bcbb5a6cb9623e5


Title
Medi-Cal:	managed	care	organization	provider	tax.

Description
AB	136,	as	amended,	Committee	on	Budget.	Medi-Cal:
managed	care	organization	provider	tax.	Existing	law
establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by
the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under
which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care
services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and
funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.	Under
existing	law,	one	of	the	methods	by	which	Medi-Cal	services
are	provided	is	pursuant	to	contracts	with	various	types	of
managed	care	plans.Existing	law	imposes	a	managed	care
organization	(MCO)	provider	tax,	administered	and	assessed
by	the	department,	on	licensed	health	care	service	plans	and
managed	care	plans	contracted	with	the	department.	Under
existing	law,	all	revenues,	less	refunds,	derived	from	the	taxes
are	deposited	into	the	Managed	Care	Enrollment	Fund,	to	be
available	to	the	department,	upon	appropriation,	for	the
purpose	of	funding	specified	subcomponents	to	support	the
Medi-Cal	program.Existing	law	sets	forth	certain	taxing	tiers
and	tax	amounts	for	purposes	of	the	tax	periods	of	April	1,
2023,	to	December	31,	2023,	inclusive,	and	the	2024,	2025,
and	2026	calendar	years.	Under	existing	law,	the	Medi-Cal	per
enrollee	tax	amount	for	Medi-Cal	taxing	tier	II,	as	defined,	is
$182.50	for	the	2024	calendar	year,	$187.50	for	the	2025
calendar	year,	and	$192.50	for	the	2026	calendar	year.This
bill	would	raise	that	tax	amount	for	that	tier	to	$205	for	all	3
of	those	calendar	years.This	bill	would	declare	that	it	is	to
take	effect	immediately	as	an	urgency	statute.

Primary	Sponsors
House	Budget	Committee

Introduction	Date:	2023-01-09

Bill	Number
AB	136

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

11

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=267e3c61e8d5bf2042c8297819b9a784


Title
Health	care	coverage:	provider	directories.

Description
AB	236,	as	amended,	Holden.	Health	care	coverage:	provider
directories.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service
Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of
health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed
Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act	a	crime.
Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health	insurers	by
the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	requires	a	health
care	service	plan	and	a	health	insurer	that	contracts	with
providers	for	alternative	rates	of	payment	to	publish	and
maintain	a	provider	directory	or	directories	with	information
on	contracting	providers	that	deliver	health	care	services
enrollees	or	insureds,	and	requires	a	health	care	service	plan
and	health	insurer	to	regularly	update	its	printed	and	online
provider	directory	or	directories,	as	specified.	Existing	law
authorizes	the	departments	to	require	a	plan	or	insurer	to
provide	coverage	for	all	covered	health	care	services	provided
to	an	enrollee	or	insured	who	reasonably	relied	on	materially
inaccurate,	incomplete,	or	misleading	information	contained
in	a	health	plan’s	provider	directory	or	directories.This	bill
would	require	a	plan	or	insurer	to	annually	verify	and	delete
inaccurate	listings	from	its	provider	directories,	and	would
require	a	provider	directory	to	be	60%	accurate	on	July	1,
2025,	with	increasing	required	percentage	accuracy
benchmarks	to	be	met	each	year	until	the	directories	are	95%
accurate	on	or	before	July	1,	2028.	The	bill	would	subject	a
plan	or	insurer	to	administrative	penalties	for	failure	to	meet
the	prescribed	benchmarks.	If	a	plan	or	insurer	has	not
financially	compensated	a	provider	in	the	prior	year,	the	bill
would	require	the	plan	or	insurer	to	delete	the	provider	from
its	directory	beginning	July	1,	2025,	unless	specified	criteria
applies.	The	bill	would	require	a	plan	or	insurer	to	arrange
care	and	provide	coverage	for	all	covered	health	care	services
provided	to	an	enrollee	or	insured	who	reasonably	relied	on
inaccurate,	incomplete,	or	misleading	information	contained
in	a	health	plan	or	policy’s	provider	directory	or	directories
and	to	reimburse	the	provider	the	contracted	amount	for
those	services.	The	bill	would	prohibit	a	provider	from
collecting	an	additional	amount	from	an	enrollee	or	insured
other	than	the	applicable	in-network	cost	sharing.	The	bill
would	require	a	plan	or	insurer	to	provide	information	about
in-network	providers	to	enrollees	and	insureds	upon	request,
and	would	limit	the	cost-sharing	amounts	an	enrollee	or
insured	is	required	to	pay	for	services	from	those	providers
under	specified	circumstances.This	bill	would	authorize	the
Department	of	Managed	Health	Care	and	the	Department	of
Insurance	to	develop	uniform	formats	for	pl...	(click	bill	link	to
see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Chris	Holden

Introduction	Date:	2023-01-13

Bill	Number
AB	236

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Apr	17,	2023,	3:55	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans:	Opposed

12

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=31c833949ff93d387ff927018b0f1e6f


Title
Medi-Cal:	diabetes	management.

Description
AB	365,	as	amended,	Aguiar-Curry.	Medi-Cal:	diabetes
management.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,
which	is	administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income	individuals
receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,
governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.
Existing	law	sets	forth	a	schedule	of	benefits	under	the	Medi-
Cal	program.	This	bill	would	add	continuous	glucose	monitors
and	related	supplies	required	for	use	with	those	monitors	as	a
covered	benefit	under	the	Medi-Cal	program	for	the	treatment
of	diabetes	when	medically	necessary,	subject	to	utilization
controls.	The	bill	would	require	the	department,	by	July	1,
2024,	to	review,	and	update	as	appropriate,	coverage	policies
for	continuous	glucose	monitors,	as	specified.	The	bill	would
authorize	the	department	to	require	a	manufacturer	of	a
continuous	glucose	monitor	to	enter	into	a	rebate	agreement
with	the	department.	The	bill	would	limit	its	implementation
to	the	extent	that	any	necessary	federal	approvals	are
obtained	and	federal	financial	participation	is	available.	The
bill	would	make	related	findings	and	declarations.

Primary	Sponsors
Cecilia	Aguiar-Curry

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-01

Bill	Number
AB	365

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

13

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=a50dec0d462542741db0bc348950268b


Title
Distressed	Hospital	Loan	Program.

Description
AB	412,	as	amended,		Soria.	Distressed	Hospital	Loan
Program.	The	California	Health	Facilities	Financing	Authority
Act	authorizes	the	California	Health	Facilities	Financing
Authority	to,	among	other	things,	make	loans	from	the
continuously	appropriated	California	Health	Facilities
Financing	Authority	Fund	to	participating	health	institutions,
as	defined,	for	financing	or	refinancing	the	acquisition,
construction,	or	remodeling	of	health	facilities.This	bill	would
create	the	Distressed	Hospital	Loan	Program,	until	January	1,
2032,	for	the	purpose	of	providing	loans	to	not-for-profit
hospitals	and	public	hospitals,	as	defined,	in	significant
financial	distress,	or	to	governmental	entities	representing	a
closed	hospital	to	prevent	the	closure	or	facilitate	the
reopening	of	a	closed	hospital.	The	bill	would	require,	subject
to	an	appropriation	by	the	Legislature,	the	Department	of
Health	Care	Access	and	Information	to	administer	the
program	and	would	require	the	department	to	enter	into	an
interagency	agreement	with	the	authority	to	implement	the
program.	The	bill	would	require	the	department,	in
collaboration	with	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services,	the	Department	of	Managed	Health	Care,	and	the
State	Department	of	Public	Health,	to	develop	a	methodology
to	evaluate	an	at-risk	hospital’s	potential	eligibility	for	state
assistance	from	the	program,	as	specified.	Notwithstanding
that	methodology,	the	bill	would	deem	a	hospital	applying	for
aid	to	be	immediately	eligible	for	state	assistance	from	the
program	if	the	hospital	has	90	or	fewer	days	cash	on	hand
and	has	experienced	a	negative	operating	margin	over	the
preceding	12	months.	The	bill	would	require	a	hospital	or	a
closed	hospital	to	provide	the	authority	and	the	department
with	financial	information,	in	a	format	determined	by	the
authority,	demonstrating	the	hospital’s	need	for	assistance
due	to	financial	hardship.	The	bill	would	additionally	require
that	the	department,	in	consultation	with	the	authority,
develop	a	loan	forgiveness	application	and	approval	process,
as	specified.	The	bill	would	specify	that	the	authority	and	the
department	may	implement	these	provisions	by	information
notices	or	other	similar	instructions,	without	taking	any
further	regulatory	action.This	bill	would	create	the	Distressed
Hospital	Loan	Program	Fund,	a	continuously	appropriated
fund,	for	use	by	the	department	and	the	authority	to
administer	the	loan	program,	as	specified.	The	bill	would
authorize	both	the	authority	and	the	department	to	recover
administrative	costs	from	the	fund,	as	specified.	By	creating	a
continuously	appropriated	fund,	the	bill	would	make	an
appropriation.Existing	law	generally	requires	a	health	care
facility	to	report	specified	data	to	the	department,	i...	(click
bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Esmeralda	Soria,	Eduardo	Garcia,	Jim	Wood,	Anna	Caballero

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-02

Bill	Number
AB	412

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

14

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=ec830d1bbd22405afa8882f2c3741021


Title
Contracts	against	public	policy:	personal	or	professional
services:	digital	replicas.

Description
AB	459,	as	amended,		Kalra.	Contracts	against	public	policy:
personal	or	professional	services:	digital	replicas.	Existing	law
prohibits	an	employer	from	requiring	an	employee	or
applicant	for	employment	to	agree,	in	writing,	to	any	term	or
condition	that	is	known	by	the	employer	to	be	illegal.	Existing
law	provides	that	certain	contractual	agreements	between	an
employer	and	employee	are	against	public	policy,	including
specified	provisions	affecting	an	employee’s	membership	in	a
labor	organization	and	the	protection	of	state	law	in
employment.	Under	existing	law,	enforcement	of	state	labor
laws	is	generally	committed	to	the	Division	of	Labor
Standards	Enforcement	within	the	Department	of	Industrial
Relations,	under	the	direction	of	the	Labor	Commissioner.This
bill	would	provide	that	a	provision	in	an	agreement	between
an	individual	and	any	other	person	for	the	performance	of
personal	or	professional	services	is	contrary	to	public	policy
and	deemed	unconscionable	if	the	provision	meets	specified
conditions	relating	to	the	use	of	a	digital	replica	of	the	voice
or	likeness	of	an	individual	in	lieu	of	the	work	of	the	individual
or	to	train	a	generative	artificial	intelligence	system.	The	bill
would	provide	that	it	shall	apply	retroactively.	The	bill	would
require	any	person	who	is	currently	under,	or	has	entered
into,	an	agreement	with	an	individual	performing	personal	or
professional	services	containing	such	a	provision,	by	February
1,	2024,	to	notify	that	individual	in	writing	that	the	provision	is
unenforceable.

Primary	Sponsors
Ash	Kalra,	Matt	Haney

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-06

Bill	Number
AB	459

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

15

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=0c8e6c6f1d17110dd1d83e0ed21c0bfd


Title
Medi-Cal:	reproductive	and	behavioral	health	integration	pilot
programs.

Description
AB	492,	as	amended,	Pellerin.	Medi-Cal:	reproductive	and
behavioral	health	integration	pilot	programs.	Existing	law
establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by
the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under
which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care
services,	including	comprehensive	perinatal	services,	among
other	reproductive	health	services,	and	specialty	or
nonspecialty	mental	health	services	and	substance	use
disorder	services,	among	other	behavioral	health	services.
The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by
federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.Existing	law	establishes
the	Family	Planning,	Access,	Care,	and	Treatment	(Family
PACT)	Program	pursuant	to	a	federal	waiver,	as	part	of	the
schedule	of	Medi-Cal	benefits.	Under	existing	law,	the	Family
PACT	Program	provides	comprehensive	clinical	family
planning	services	to	a	person	who	has	a	family	income	at	or
below	200%	of	the	federal	poverty	level	and	who	is	eligible	to
receive	those	services	pursuant	to	the	waiver.	Under	the
Family	PACT	Program,	comprehensive	clinical	family	planning
services	include,	among	other	things,	contraception	and
general	reproductive	health	care,	and	exclude	abortion.
Abortion	services	are	covered	under	the	Medi-Cal
program.This	bill	would,	on	or	before	July	1,	2024,	subject	to
an	appropriation,	require	the	department	to	make	grants,
incentive	payments,	or	other	financial	support	available	to
Medi-Cal	managed	care	plans	to	develop	and	implement
reproductive	and	behavioral	health	integration	pilot	programs
in	partnership	with	identified	qualified	providers,	in	order	to
improve	access	to	behavioral	health	services	for	beneficiaries
with	mild-to-moderate	behavioral	health	conditions.The	bill
would	define	“qualified	provider”	as	a	Medi-Cal	provider	that
is	enrolled	in	the	Family	PACT	Program	and	that	provides
abortion-	and	contraception-related	services.	For	funding
eligibility,	the	bill	would	require	a	Medi-Cal	managed	care	plan
to	identify	the	qualified	providers	and	the	services	that	will	be
provided	through	the	pilot	program,	as	specified.The	bill
would,	on	or	before	July	1,	2024,	subject	to	an	appropriation,
require	the	department	to	make	grants	or	other	financial
support	available	to	qualified	providers	for	reproductive	and
behavioral	health	integration	pilot	programs,	in	order	to
support	development	and	expansion	of	services,
infrastructure,	and	capacity	for	the	integration	of	behavioral
health	services	for	beneficiaries	with	mild-to-moderate
behavioral	health	conditions.For	funding	eligibility,	the	bill
would	require	a	qualified	provider	to	identify	both	the	patient
population	or	gap	in	access	to	care	and	the	types	of	services
provided,	as	specified.The	bill	would	require	the	department
to...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Gail	Pellerin

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-07

Bill	Number
AB	492

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

16

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=f1f5a08fd7200cfa01245c70bfa02363


Title
Medi-Cal:	specialty	mental	health	services:	foster	children.

Description
AB	551,	as	amended,	Bennett.	Medi-Cal:	specialty	mental
health	services:	foster	children.	Existing	law	establishes	the
Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by	the	State
Department	of	Health	Care	Services	(department),	under
which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care
services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and
funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.	Under
existing	law,	specialty	mental	health	services	include	federal
Early	and	Periodic	Screening,	Diagnostic,	and	Treatment
(EPSDT)	services	provided	to	eligible	Medi-Cal	beneficiaries
under	21	years	of	age.	Existing	law	requires	each	local	mental
health	plan	to	establish	a	procedure	to	ensure	access	to
outpatient	specialty	mental	health	services,	as	required	by
the	EPSDT	program	standards,	for	youth	in	foster	care	who
have	been	placed	outside	their	county	of	adjudication,	as
described.Existing	law	requires	the	department	to	issue	policy
guidance	on	the	conditions	for,	and	exceptions	to,
presumptive	transfer	of	responsibility	for	providing	or
arranging	for	specialty	mental	health	services	to	a	foster
youth	from	the	county	of	original	jurisdiction	to	the	county	in
which	the	foster	youth	resides,	as	prescribed.	On	a	case-by-
case	basis,	and	when	consistent	with	the	medical	rights	of
children	in	foster	care,	existing	law	authorizes	the	waiver	of
presumptive	transfer,	with	the	responsibility	for	the	provision
of	specialty	mental	health	services	remaining	with	the	county
of	original	jurisdiction	if	certain	exceptions	exist.	Under
existing	law,	the	county	probation	agency	or	the	child	welfare
services	agency	is	responsible	for	determining	whether	waiver
of	the	presumptive	transfer	is	appropriate,	with	notice
provided	to	the	person	requesting	the	exception.Under
existing	law,	commencing	July	1,	2023,	in	the	case	of
placement	of	foster	children	in	short-term	residential
therapeutic	programs,	community	treatment	facilities,	or
group	homes,	or	in	the	case	of	admission	of	foster	children	to
children’s	crisis	residential	programs,	the	county	of	original
jurisdiction	is	required	to	retain	responsibility	and
presumptive	transfer	provisions	apply	only	if	certain
circumstances	exist.This	bill,	for	purposes	of	foster	children
placed	or	admitted	in	those	specific	settings,	would	delay,
until	July	1,	2024,	the	requirement	on	the	county	of	original
jurisdiction	to	retain	responsibility	and	the	limitation	on	the
presumptive	transfer	provisions.	By	extending	the	period
during	which	a	county	agency	is	responsible	for	making
determinations	about	presumptive	transfer	waivers	and
making	certain	notifications,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-
mandated	local	program.Existing	law	conditions
implementation	of	the	above-described	provisions	on	the
availability	of	fede...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Steve	Bennett

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-08

Bill	Number
AB	551

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

17

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=488db8fca13b2702ac148f3e1af636fb


Title
Medi-Cal:	claim	or	remittance	forms:	signature.

Description
AB	564,	as	amended,	Villapudua.	Medi-Cal:	claim	or
remittance	forms:	signature.	Existing	law	establishes	the
Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by	the	State
Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under	which	qualified
low-income	individuals	receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-
Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal
Medicaid	program	provisions.Existing	law	requires	the
Director	of	Health	Care	Services	to	develop	and	implement
standards	for	the	timely	processing	and	payment	of	each
claim	type.	Existing	law	requires	that	the	standards	be
sufficient	to	meet	minimal	federal	requirements	for	the	timely
processing	of	claims.	Existing	law	states	the	intent	of	the
Legislature	that	claim	forms	for	use	by	physicians	and
hospitals	be	the	same	as	claim	forms	in	general	use	by	other
payors,	as	specified.This	bill	would	require	the	department	to
allow	a	provider	to	submit	an	electronic	signature	for	a	claim
or	remittance	form	under	the	Medi-Cal	program,	to	the	extent
not	in	conflict	with	federal	law.

Primary	Sponsors
Carlos	Villapudua

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-08

Title
Health	care	coverage:	provider	credentials.

Description
AB	815,	as	amended,	Wood.	Health	care	coverage:	provider
credentials.	Existing	law	establishes	the	California	Health	and
Human	Services	Agency,	which	includes	departments	charged
with	the	administration	of	health,	social,	and	other	human
services.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation
of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed
Health	Care	and	the	regulation	of	health	insurers	by	the
Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	sets	forth	requirements
for	provider	credentialing	by	a	health	care	service	plan	or
health	insurer.This	bill	would	require	the	California	Health	and
Human	Services	Agency	to	create	and	maintain	a	provider
credentialing	board,	with	specified	membership,	to	certify
private	and	public	entities	for	purposes	of	credentialing
physicians	and	surgeons	in	lieu	of	a	health	care	service	plan’s
or	health	insurer’s	credentialing	process.	The	bill	would
require	the	board	to	convene	by	July	1,	2024,	develop	criteria
for	the	certification	of	public	and	private	credentialing	entities
by	January	1,	2025,	and	develop	an	application	process	for
certification	by	July	1,	2025.This	bill	would	require	a	health
care	service	plan	or	health	insurer,	or	its	delegated	entity,	to
accept	a	valid	credential	from	a	board-certified	entity	without
imposing	additional	criteria	requirements	and	to	pay	a	fee	to
a	board-certified	entity	based	on	the	number	of	contracted
providers	credentialed	through	the	board-certified	entity.

Primary	Sponsors
Jim	Wood

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-13

Bill	Number
AB	564

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	815

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Jun	5,	2023,	8:56	PM
Local	Health	Plans	of	California:	Oppose	Unless	Amended

18

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=d47257c7f3899a4ca3adb2381b6ff5f2
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=db5142d946813c9edddcf5246a5c2985


Title
Open	meetings:	teleconferencing:	subsidiary	body.

Description
AB	817,	as	amended,	Pacheco.	Open	meetings:
teleconferencing:	subsidiary	body.	Existing	law,	the	Ralph	M.
Brown	Act,	requires,	with	specified	exceptions,	each
legislative	body	of	a	local	agency	to	provide	notice	of	the	time
and	place	for	its	regular	meetings	and	an	agenda	containing	a
brief	general	description	of	each	item	of	business	to	be
transacted.	The	act	also	requires	that	all	meetings	of	a
legislative	body	be	open	and	public,	and	that	all	persons	be
permitted	to	attend	unless	a	closed	session	is	authorized.	The
act	generally	requires	for	teleconferencing	that	the	legislative
body	of	a	local	agency	that	elects	to	use	teleconferencing
post	agendas	at	all	teleconference	locations,	identify	each
teleconference	location	in	the	notice	and	agenda	of	the
meeting	or	proceeding,	and	have	each	teleconference
location	be	accessible	to	the	public.	Existing	law	also	requires
that,	during	the	teleconference,	at	least	a	quorum	of	the
members	of	the	legislative	body	participate	from	locations
within	the	boundaries	of	the	territory	over	which	the	local
agency	exercises	jurisdiction.Existing	law	authorizes	the
legislative	body	of	a	local	agency	to	use	alternate
teleconferencing	provisions	during	a	proclaimed	state	of
emergency	(emergency	provisions)	and,	until	January	1,	2026,
in	certain	circumstances	related	to	the	particular	member	if	at
least	a	quorum	of	its	members	participate	from	a	singular
physical	location	that	is	open	to	the	public	and	situated	within
the	agency’s	jurisdiction	and	other	requirements	are	met
(nonemergency	provisions).	Existing	law	imposes	different
requirements	for	notice,	agenda,	and	public	participation,	as
prescribed,	when	a	legislative	body	is	using	alternate
teleconferencing	provisions.	The	nonemergency	provisions
impose	restrictions	on	remote	participation	by	a	member	of
the	legislative	body	and	require	the	legislative	body	to
specific	means	by	which	the	public	may	remotely	hear	and
visually	observe	the	meeting.	This	bill,	until	January	1,	2026,
would	authorize	a	subsidiary	body,	as	defined,	to	use	similar
alternative	teleconferencing	provisions	and	would	impose
requirements	for	notice,	agenda,	and	public	participation,	as
prescribed.	In	order	to	use	teleconferencing	pursuant	to	this
act,	the	bill	would	require	the	legislative	body	that	established
the	subsidiary	body	by	charter,	ordinance,	resolution,	or	other
formal	action	to	make	specified	findings	by	majority	vote,
before	the	subsidiary	body	uses	teleconferencing	for	the	first
time	and	every	12	months	thereafter.Existing	constitutional
provisions	require	that	a	statute	that	limits	the	right	of	access
to	the	meetings	of	public	bodies	or	the	writings	of	public
officials	and	agencies	be	adopted	with	findings	demonstrating
the	interest...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Blanca	Pacheco

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-13

Bill	Number
AB	817

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

19

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=681ae5d84c22c453ee5bfdb6f388fa9b


Title
Hospitals:	seismic	safety	compliance.

Description
AB	869,	as	amended,	Wood.	Hospitals:	seismic	safety
compliance.	Existing	law	requires,	no	later	than	January	1,
2030,	owners	of	all	acute	care	inpatient	hospitals	to	either
demolish,	replace,	or	change	to	nonacute	care	use	all	hospital
buildings	not	in	substantial	compliance	with	specified	seismic
safety	standards	or	to	seismically	retrofit	all	acute	care
inpatient	hospital	buildings	so	that	they	are	in	substantial
compliance	with	those	seismic	safety	standards.	Existing	law
requires	the	Department	of	Health	Care	Access	and
Information	to	issue	a	written	notice	upon	compliance	with
those	requirements.Existing	law	establishes	the	Small	and
Rural	Hospital	Relief	Program	under	the	administration	of	the
Department	of	Health	Care	Access	and	Information	for	the
purpose	of	funding	seismic	safety	compliance	with	respect	to
small	hospitals,	rural	hospitals,	and	critical	access	hospitals	in
the	state.	Existing	law	requires	the	department	to	provide
grants	to	small,	rural,	and	critical	access	hospital	applicants
that	meet	certain	criteria,	including	that	seismic	safety
compliance,	as	defined,	imposes	a	financial	burden	on	the
applicant	that	may	result	in	hospital	closure.	Existing	law	also
creates	the	Small	and	Rural	Hospital	Relief	Fund	and
continuously	appropriates	the	moneys	in	the	fund	for
purposes	of	administering	and	funding	the	grant
program.Existing	law	provides	for	the	formation	and
administration	of	health	care	districts.This	bill	would	require
the	department	to	give	first	priority	to	grants	for	single-	and
2-story	general	acute	care	hospitals	located	in	remote	or	rural
areas	with	less	than	80	general	acute	care	beds	and	general
acute	care	hospital	revenue	of	$75	million	or	less.	The	bill
would	require	grants	under	the	program	to	provide	general
acute	care	hospitals	with	funds	to	secure	an	SPC-4D
assessment	for	purposes	of	planning	for,	and	estimating	the
costs	of,	compliance	with	certain	seismic	safety	standards,	as
specified.	The	bill	would	authorize	specified	general	acute
care	hospitals	to	apply	for	a	grant	for	purposes	of	complying
with	those	seismic	safety	standards.The	bill	would	delay	the
requirement	to	meet	those	and	other	building	standards	for
specified	general	acute	care	hospitals	until	January	1,	2035,
and	would	exempt	a	general	acute	care	hospital	with	an	SPC-
4D	assessment	and	with	a	certain	estimated	cost	from	those
seismic	safety	standards	if	the	department	determines	that
the	cost	of	design	and	construction	for	compliance	results	in	a
financial	hardship	for	the	hospital	and	certain	funds	are	not
available	to	assist	with	the	cost	of	compliance.The	bill	would
also	authorize	a	health	care	district	that	meets	certain	criteria
to	submit	financial	information	to	the	department,	on	a	form
required	by	the	dep...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Jim	Wood,	Eduardo	Garcia

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-14

Bill	Number
AB	869

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

20

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=f1ac008168c79cef7cebbee8fc31145f


Title
Kern	County	Hospital	Authority.

Description
AB	892,	as	introduced,	Bains.	Kern	County	Hospital	Authority.
Existing	law,	the	Kern	County	Hospital	Authority	Act,
establishes	the	Kern	County	Hospital	Authority,	which
maintains	and	operates	the	Kern	Medical	Center	and	is
governed	by	a	board	of	governors	that	is	appointed,	both
initially	and	continually,	by	the	board	of	supervisors.	Existing
law	requires	the	authority	to	provide	management,
administration,	and	other	controls	as	needed	to	operate	the
medical	center,	and	maintain	its	status	as	a	designated	public
hospital.	The	Meyers-Milias-Brown	Act	contains	various
provisions	that	govern	collective	bargaining	of	local
represented	employees,	and	requires	the	governing	body	of	a
public	agency	to	meet	and	confer	in	good	faith	regarding
wages,	hours,	and	other	terms	and	conditions	of	employment
with	representatives	of	recognized	employee	organizations.
Existing	law,	the	Ralph	M.	Brown	Act,	requires	each	legislative
body	of	a	local	agency	to	provide	notice	of	the	time	and	place
for	its	regular	meetings	and	also	requires	that	all	meetings	of
a	legislative	body	be	open	and	public,	and	that	all	persons	be
permitted	to	attend	unless	a	closed	session	is	authorized.	The
California	Public	Records	Act	requires	state	and	local	agencies
to	make	their	records	available	for	public	inspection,	unless
an	exemption	from	disclosure	applies.This	bill	would	require
that	all	entities	controlled,	owned,	administered,	or	funded	by
the	authority	be	subject	to	the	Meyer-Milias-Brown	Act,	the
Ralph	M.	Brown	Act,	and	the	California	Public	Records	Act.	By
imposing	new	duties	on	the	authority,	the	bill	would	impose	a
state-mandated	local	program.The	California	Constitution
requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies	and	school
districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory
provisions	establish	procedures	for	making	that
reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that,	if	the	Commission
on	State	Mandates	determines	that	the	bill	contains	costs
mandated	by	the	state,	reimbursement	for	those	costs	shall
be	made	pursuant	to	the	statutory	provisions	noted	above.

Primary	Sponsors
Jasmeet	Bains

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-14

Bill	Number
AB	892

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

21

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=dc035e2564abbf85771977dd1b689976


Title
Social	care:	data	privacy.

Description
AB	1011,	as	amended,	Weber.	Social	care:	data	privacy.
Existing	federal	law,	the	Health	Insurance	Portability	and
Accountability	Act	of	1996	(HIPAA),	establishes	certain
requirements	relating	to	the	provision	of	health	insurance,
including	provisions	relating	to	the	confidentiality	of	health
records.	Existing	state	law,	the	Confidentiality	of	Medical
Information	Act,	prohibits	a	provider	of	health	care,	a	health
care	service	plan,	a	contractor,	a	corporation	and	its
subsidiaries	and	affiliates,	or	any	business	that	offers	software
or	hardware	to	consumers,	including	a	mobile	application	or
other	related	device,	as	defined,	from	intentionally	sharing,
selling,	using	for	marketing,	or	otherwise	using	any	medical
information,	as	defined,	for	any	purpose	not	necessary	to
provide	health	care	services	to	a	patient,	except	as
provided.This	bill	would	prohibit	a	participating	entity	of	a
closed-loop	referral	system	(CLRS)	from	selling,	renting,
releasing,	disclosing,	disseminating,	making	available,
transferring,	or	otherwise	communicating	orally,	in	writing,	or
by	electronic	or	other	means,	social	care	information	stored	in
or	transmitted	through	a	CLRS	in	exchange	for	monetary	or
other	valuable	consideration,	except	as	specified.	The	bill
would	further	prohibit	a	participating	entity	from	using	social
care	information	stored	in,	or	transmitted	through,	a	CLRS	for
any	purpose	or	purposes	other	than	the	social	care	purpose	or
purposes	for	which	that	social	care	information	was	collected
or	generated,	except	as	specified.	The	bill	would	define
“social	care”	to	mean	any	care,	services,	goods,	or	supplies
related	to	an	individual’s	social	needs,	including,	but	not
limited	to,	support	and	assistance	for	an	individual’s	food
stability	and	nutritional	needs,	housing,	transportation,
economic	stability,	employment,	education	access	and
quality,	childcare	and	family	relationship	needs,	and
environmental	and	physical	safety.	The	bill	would	also	define
“social	care	information”	to	mean	any	information,	in	any
form,	that	relates	to	the	need	for,	payment	for,	or	provision
of,	social	care,	and	the	individual’s	personal	information,	as
specified.

Primary	Sponsors
Akilah	Weber

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-15

Bill	Number
AB	1011

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

22

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=9df7a89fa0ef9af11309911213ccc6e1


Title
Health	care	service	plans:	consolidation.

Description
AB	1092,	as	amended,	Wood.	Health	care	service	plans:
consolidation.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	requires	a	health	care	service	plan	that
intends	to	merge	with,	consolidate	with,	or	enter	into	an
agreement	resulting	in	its	purchase,	acquisition,	or	control	by,
an	entity,	to	give	notice	to,	and	secure	prior	approval	from,
the	Director	of	the	Department	of	Managed	Health	Care.
Existing	law	authorizes	the	director	to	disapprove	the
transaction	or	agreement	if	the	director	finds	it	would
substantially	lessen	competition	in	health	care	service	plan
products	or	create	a	monopoly	in	this	state.	Existing	law
authorizes	the	director	to	conditionally	approve	the
transaction	or	agreement,	contingent	upon	the	health	care
service	plan’s	agreement	to	fulfill	one	or	more	conditions	to
benefit	subscribers	and	enrollees	of	the	health	care	service
plan,	provide	for	a	stable	health	care	delivery	system,	and
impose	other	conditions	specific	to	the	transaction	or
agreement,	as	specified.This	bill	would	additionally	require	a
health	care	service	plan	that	intends	to	acquire	or	obtain
control	of	an	entity,	as	specified,	to	give	notice	to,	and	secure
prior	approval	from,	the	director.	Because	a	willful	violation	of
this	provision	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-
mandated	local	program.	The	bill	would	also	authorize	the
director	to	disapprove	a	transaction	or	agreement	if	it	would
substantially	lessen	competition	in	the	health	system	or
among	a	particular	category	of	health	care	providers,	and
would	require	the	director	to	provide	information	related	to
competition	to	the	Attorney	General.	The	bill	would	revise	the
director’s	authority	to	conditionally	approve	a	transaction	or
agreement,	including	authorizing	the	director	to	review
information	from	federal	agencies	and	other	state	agencies,
including	agencies	in	other	states,	that	is	relevant	to	any	of
the	parties	to	the	transaction,	as	specified.	With	respect	to	a
conditional	approval,	the	bill	would	also	authorize	the	director
to	contract	with	an	independent	entity	to	monitor	compliance
with	the	established	conditions	and	report	to	the	department.
The	bill	would	prohibit	the	director	from	waiving,	or	delaying
implementation	of,	certain	requirements	imposed	under
existing	law	and	the	bill,	notwithstanding	a	specified
provision.The	California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to
reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs
mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish
procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would
provide	that	...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Jim	Wood

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-15

Bill	Number
AB	1092

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	27,	2023,	6:12	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans:	Oppose

23

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=fbfe73c2b4fe0c55ff2e09e7daab4834


Title
Public	health:	adverse	childhood	experiences.

Description
AB	1110,	as	amended,	Arambula.	Public	health:	adverse
childhood	experiences.	Existing	law	requires	the	Office	of	the
Surgeon	General	to,	among	other	things,	raise	public
awareness	and	coordinate	policies	governing	scientific
screening	and	treatment	for	toxic	stress	and	adverse
childhood	experiences	(ACEs).This	bill	would,	subject	to	an
appropriation	and	until	January	1,	2027,	require	the	office	and
the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services,	while
administering	the	ACEs	Aware	initiative	and	in	collaboration
with	subject	matter	experts,	to	review	available	literature	on
ACEs,	as	defined,	and	ancestry	or	ethnicity-based	data
disaggregation	practices	in	ACEs	screenings,	develop
guidance	for	culturally	and	linguistically	competent	ACEs
screenings	through	improved	data	collection	methods,	post
the	guidance	on	the	department’s	internet	website	and	the
ACEs	Aware	internet	website,	and	make	the	guidance
accessible,	as	specified.	The	bill	would	make	legislative
findings	and	declarations.

Primary	Sponsors
Joaquin	Arambula

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-15

Title
Hospice	agency	licensure.

Description
AB	1117,	as	introduced,	Irwin.	Hospice	agency	licensure.	The
California	Hospice	Licensure	Act	of	1990	requires	a	person,
political	subdivision	of	the	state,	or	other	governmental
agency	to	obtain	a	license	from	the	State	Department	of
Public	Health	to	provide	hospice	services	to	an	individual	who
is	experiencing	the	last	phase	of	life	due	to	a	terminal
disease,	as	defined,	and	their	family,	except	as	provided.	The
act	also	provides	for	the	renewal	of	a	license.	Existing	law
prohibits	any	person,	political	subdivision	of	the	state,	or
other	governmental	agency	from	establishing,	conducting,
maintaining,	or	representing	itself	as	a	hospice	agency	unless
a	license	has	been	issued	under	the	act.	Existing	law	requires
that	the	department	issue	a	license	to	a	hospice	agency	that
applies	to	the	department	for	a	hospice	agency	license	and
meets	specified	requirements,	including	accreditation	as	a
hospice	by	an	entity	approved	the	federal	Centers	for
Medicare	and	Medicaid	Services	as	a	national	accreditation
organization,	and	the	national	accreditation	organization
forwards	copies	to	the	department	of	all	initial	and
subsequent	survey	and	other	accreditation	reports	or
findings.This	bill	would	require	any	hospice	agency	obtaining
a	license	to	obtain	certification	to	participate	in	the	federal
Medicare	program	within	12	months	of	licensure	and
continuously	serve	patients	as	validated	by	data	submission
to	the	Department	of	Health	Care	Access	and	Information,	or
forfeit	its	license.

Primary	Sponsors
Jacqui	Irwin

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-15

Bill	Number
AB	1110

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	1117

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

24

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=c84300f60f7220b41f80bc8d4cfabaf7
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=20ae34c6b4e33ed83db723c0da1e8f77


Title
Rehabilitative	and	habilitative	services:	durable	medical
equipment	and	services.

Description
AB	1157,	as	amended,	Ortega.	Rehabilitative	and	habilitative
services:	durable	medical	equipment	and	services.	Existing
law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,
requires	the	Department	of	Managed	Health	Care	to	license
and	regulate	health	care	service	plans	and	makes	a	willful
violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Other	existing	law	requires	the
Department	of	Insurance	to	regulate	health	insurers.	Existing
law	requires	an	individual	or	small	group	health	care	service
plan	contract	or	health	insurance	policy	issued,	amended,	or
renewed	on	or	after	January	1,	2017,	to	include,	at	a
minimum,	coverage	for	essential	health	benefits	pursuant	to
the	federal	Patient	Protection	and	Affordable	Care	Act.	Under
existing	law,	essential	health	benefits	includes,	among	other
things,	rehabilitative	and	habilitative	services.	Existing	law
requires	habilitative	services	and	devices	to	be	covered	under
the	same	terms	and	conditions	applied	to	rehabilitative
services	and	devices	under	the	plan	contract	or	policy,	and
defines	habilitative	services	to	mean	health	care	services	and
devices	that	help	a	person	keep,	learn,	or	improve	skills	and
functioning	for	daily	living.This	bill	would	specify	that
coverage	of	rehabilitative	and	habilitative	services	and
devices	under	a	health	care	service	plan	or	health	insurance
policy	includes	durable	medical	equipment,	services,	and
repairs,	if	the	equipment,	services,	or	repairs	are	prescribed
or	ordered	by	a	physician,	surgeon,	or	other	health
professional	acting	within	the	scope	of	their	license.	The	bill
would	define	“durable	medical	equipment”	to	mean	devices,
including	replacement	devices,	that	are	designed	for	repeated
use,	and	that	are	used	for	the	treatment	or	monitoring	of	a
medical	condition	or	injury	in	order	to	help	a	person	to
partially	or	fully	acquire,	improve,	keep,	or	learn,	or	minimize
the	loss	of,	skills	and	functioning	of	daily	living.	The	bill	would
prohibit	coverage	of	durable	medical	equipment	and	services
from	being	subject	to	financial	or	treatment	limitations,	as
specified.The	bill	would	require	the	Secretary	of	California
Health	and	Human	Services	to	communicate	to	the	federal
Center	for	Consumer	Information	and	Insurance	Oversight
that	the	coverage	of	durable	medical	equipment	is	necessary
to	comply	with	federal	requirements	for	purposes	of	being
considered	essential	health	benefits	not	subject	to	defrayal
payments.	If	the	center	overrules	the	state’s	determination
that	the	additional	coverage	subjects	the	state	to	defrayal
payments,	the	bill	would	require	the	secretary	to	reevaluate
California’s	essential	health	benefits	benchmark	plan	to
incorporate	the	coverage	without	triggering	the	defrayal
requirement.	The	bill	would	require	the	secretary,	no	later
than	one	year...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Liz	Ortega,	Lori	Wilson

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	1157

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	27,	2023,	5:55	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans:	Oppose

25

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=a596884dfa912fcee03599e8be2f4dcc


Title
Medi-Cal:	telehealth.

Description
AB	1241,	Weber.	Medi-Cal:	telehealth.	Existing	law	establishes
the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by	the	State
Department	of	Health	Care	Services,	under	which	qualified
low-income	individuals	receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-
Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal
Medicaid	program	provisions.Under	existing	law,	in-person,
face-to-face	contact	is	not	required	when	covered	health	care
services	are	provided	by	video	synchronous	interaction,
audio-only	synchronous	interaction,	remote	patient
monitoring,	or	other	permissible	virtual	communication
modalities,	when	those	services	and	settings	meet	certain
criteria.Existing	law	requires	a	provider	furnishing	services
through	video	synchronous	interaction	or	audio-only
synchronous	interaction,	by	a	date	set	by	the	department,	no
sooner	than	January	1,	2024,	to	also	either	offer	those
services	via	in-person	contact	or	arrange	for	a	referral	to,	and
a	facilitation	of,	in-person	care,	as	specified.This	bill	would
instead	require,	under	the	above-described	circumstance,	a
provider	to	maintain	and	follow	protocols	to	either	offer	those
services	via	in-person	contact	or	arrange	for	a	referral	to,	and
a	facilitation	of,	in-person	care.	The	bill	would	specify	that	the
referral	and	facilitation	arrangement	would	not	require	a
provider	to	schedule	an	appointment	with	a	different	provider
on	behalf	of	a	patient.

Primary	Sponsors
Akilah	Weber

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	1241

Status
Enacted

Position
Monitor

26

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=90aff44bf7499da0a851f6d3497413a2


Title
Mental	health:	impacts	of	social	media.

Description
AB	1282,	as	amended,	Lowenthal.	Mental	health:	impacts	of
social	media.	Existing	law,	the	Mental	Health	Services	Act,	an
initiative	measure	enacted	by	the	voters	as	Proposition	63	at
the	November	2,	2004,	statewide	general	election,
establishes	the	Mental	Health	Services	Oversight	and
Accountability	Commission,	and	authorizes	the	commission	to
take	specified	actions,	including	advising	the	Governor	or	the
Legislature	regarding	actions	the	state	may	take	to	improve
care	and	services	for	people	with	mental	illness.This	bill	would
require	the	commission	to	report	to	specified	policy
committees	of	the	Legislature,	on	or	before	July	1,	2025,	a
statewide	strategy	to	understand,	communicate,	and	mitigate
mental	health	risks	associated	with	the	use	of	social	media	by
children	and	youth.	The	bill	would	require	the	report	to
include,	among	other	things,	(1)	the	degree	to	which
individuals	negatively	impacted	by	social	media	are	accessing
and	receiving	mental	health	services	and	(2)
recommendations	to	strengthen	children	and	youth	resiliency
strategies	and	California’s	use	of	mental	health	services	to
reduce	the	negative	outcomes	that	may	result	from	untreated
mental	illness,	as	specified.	The	bill	would	require	the
commission	to	explore,	among	other	things,	the	persons	and
populations	that	use	social	media	and	the	negative	mental
health	risks	associated	with	social	media	and	artificial
intelligence,	as	defined.	The	bill	would	repeal	these	provisions
on	January	1,	2029.

Primary	Sponsors
Josh	Lowenthal

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	1282

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

27

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=41396a5956a8f892c338fa3e203d47d4


Title
Emergency	services:	psychiatric	emergency	medical
conditions.

Description
AB	1316,	as	amended,	Irwin.	Emergency	services:	psychiatric
emergency	medical	conditions.	Existing	law,	the	Lanterman-
Petris-Short	Act,	provides	for	the	involuntary	commitment	and
treatment	of	a	person	who	is	a	danger	to	themselves	or
others	or	who	is	gravely	disabled,	as	defined.	Existing	law
provides	for	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by
the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services,	under	which
qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care	services.
The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by
federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.	Pursuant	to	a	schedule
of	covered	benefits,	existing	law	requires	Medi-Cal	coverage
for	inpatient	hospital	services,	subject	to	utilization	controls,
and	with	respect	to	fee-for	service	beneficiaries,	coverage	for
emergency	services	and	care	necessary	for	the	treatment	of
an	emergency	medical	condition	and	medical	care	directly
related	to	the	emergency	medical	condition,	as
specified.Existing	law	provides	for	the	licensing	and	regulation
of	health	facilities	by	the	State	Department	of	Public	Health
and	makes	a	violation	of	those	provisions	a	crime.	Existing
law	defines	“psychiatric	emergency	medical	condition,”	for
purposes	of	providing	treatment	for	emergency	conditions,	as
a	mental	disorder	that	manifests	itself	by	acute	symptoms	of
sufficient	severity	that	it	renders	the	patient	as	being	either
an	immediate	danger	to	the	patient	or	to	others,	or
immediately	unable	to	provide	for,	or	utilize,	food,	shelter,	or
clothing,	due	to	the	mental	disorder.	Existing	law	includes
various	circumstances	under	which	a	patient	is	required	to	be
treated	by,	or	may	be	transferred	to,	specified	health	facilities
for	treatment	that	is	solely	necessary	to	relieve	or	eliminate	a
psychiatric	emergency	medical	condition.This	bill	would	revise
the	definition	of	“psychiatric	emergency	medical	condition”	to
make	that	definition	applicable	regardless	of	whether	the
patient	is	voluntary,	or	is	involuntarily	detained	for	evaluation
and	treatment,	under	prescribed	circumstances.	The	bill
would	make	conforming	changes	to	provisions	requiring
facilities	to	provide	that	treatment.	By	expanding	the
definition	of	a	crime	with	respect	to	those	facilities,	the	bill
would	impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The	bill	would
require	the	Medi-Cal	program	to	cover	emergency	services
and	care	necessary	to	treat	an	emergency	medical	condition,
as	defined,	including	all	professional	physical,	mental,	and
substance	use	treatment	services,	including	screening
examinations	necessary	to	determine	the	presence	or
absence	of	an	emergency	medical	condition	and,	if	an
emergency	medical	condition	exists,	all	services	medically
necessary	to	stabilize	the	beneficiary.	The	bill	would	require
coverage,	inclu...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Jacqui	Irwin,	Chris	Ward

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	1316

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

28

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=403ec27fc9ac7da8488a796e5ebf178c


Title
California	Health	and	Human	Services	Data	Exchange
Framework.

Description
AB	1331,	as	amended,	Wood.	California	Health	and	Human
Services	Data	Exchange	Framework.	Existing	law	establishes
the	Center	for	Data	Insights	and	Innovation	within	the
California	Health	and	Human	Services	Agency	to	ensure	the
enforcement	of	state	law	mandating	the	confidentiality	of
medical	information.	Existing	law,	subject	to	an	appropriation
in	the	annual	Budget	Act,	requires	the	California	Health	and
Human	Services	Agency	to	establish	the	California	Health	and
Human	Services	Data	Exchange	Framework	on	or	before	July
1,	2022,	to	govern	and	require	the	exchange	of	health
information	among	health	care	entities	and	government
agencies.This	bill	would	require	the	Center	for	Data	Insights
and	Innovation	to	take	over	establishment,	implementation,
and	all	the	functions	related	to	the	California	Health	and
Human	Services	Data	Exchange	Framework	on	or	before
January	1,	2024,	subject	to	an	appropriation	in	the	annual
Budget	Act.	The	bill	would	require	the	center	to	establish	the
CalHHS	Data	Exchange	Board,	with	specified	membership,	to
develop	recommendations	and	to	review,	modify,	and
approve	any	modifications	to	the	Data	Exchange	Framework
data	sharing	agreement,	among	other	things.	The	bill	would
require	the	center	to	submit	an	annual	report	to	the
Legislature	that	includes	required	signatory	compliance	with
the	data	sharing	agreement,	assessment	of	consumer
experiences	with	health	information	exchange,	and	evaluation
of	technical	assistance	and	other	grant	programs.	The	bill
would	require	the	center,	by	July	1,	2024,	to	establish	a
process	to	designate	qualified	health	information
organizations	according	to	specified	criteria.

Primary	Sponsors
Jim	Wood

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	1331

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

29

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=83f40912ddba9f1d7c765d4ad49f81bd


Title
Paid	sick	days:	health	care	employees.

Description
AB	1359,	as	amended,	Schiavo.	Paid	sick	days:	health	care
employees.	Existing	law,	the	Healthy	Workplaces,	Healthy
Families	Act	of	2014,	entitles	employees	who	satisfy	specified
requirements	to	sick	leave.	The	act	generally	entitles	an
employee	who,	on	or	after	July	1,	2015,	works	in	California	for
the	same	employer	for	30	or	more	days	within	a	year	to	paid
sick	leave,	subject	to	various	use	and	accrual	limits.	The	act
also	authorizes	an	employer	to	limit	an	employee’s	use	of
accrued	paid	sick	days	to	24	hours	or	3	days	in	each	year	of
employment,	calendar	year,	or	12-month	period.This	bill
would	grant	an	employee	of	a	covered	health	care	facility
health	care	worker	sick	leave,	as	those	terms	are	defined.	The
bill	would	permit	accrued	leave,	and	would	prescribe	for	the
use	and	carryover	of	that	leave,	including	permitting	health
care	worker	sick	leave	to	carry	over	to	the	following	year	of
employment	for	those	employees,	subject	to	certain
conditions.	The	bill	would	prohibit	a	covered	health	care
facility	from	limiting	an	employee’s	use	of	health	care	worker
sick	leave.	The	bill	would	exempt	those	employees	from
certain	existing	limits	on	the	use	of	accrued	paid	sick	days.
The	bill	would	authorize	an	employee	of	a	covered	health	care
facility	to	bring	a	civil	action	against	an	employer	that	violates
this	provision	and	would	entitle	the	employee	to	collect
specified	legal	and	equitable	relief	to	remedy	a	violation.

Primary	Sponsors
Pilar	Schiavo

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-17

Bill	Number
AB	1359

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

30

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=5de8bcbcabddbf89489b03354b9fefad


Title
Medi-Cal:	behavioral	health	services:	documentation
standards.

Description
AB	1470,	as	amended,	Quirk-Silva.	Medi-Cal:	behavioral
health	services:	documentation	standards.	Existing	law
establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by
the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under
which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care
services,	including	behavioral	health	services.	The	Medi-Cal
program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid
program	provisions.	Existing	law	establishes	the	California
Advancing	and	Innovating	Medi-Cal	(CalAIM)	initiative,	subject
to	receipt	of	any	necessary	federal	approvals	and	the
availability	of	federal	financial	participation,	in	order	to,
among	other	things,	improve	quality	outcomes	and	reduce
health	disparities.The	bill,	as	part	of	CalAIM,	and	with	respect
to	behavioral	health	services	provided	under	the	Medi-Cal
program,	would	require	the	department	to	standardize	data
elements	relating	to	documentation	requirements,	including,
but	not	limited	to,	medically	necessary	criteria,	and	would
require	the	department	to	develop	standard	forms	containing
information	necessary	to	properly	adjudicate	claims	pursuant
to	CalAIM	Terms	and	Conditions.	The	bill	would	require	the
department	to	consult	with	representatives	of	specified
associations	and	programs	for	purposes	of	implementing
these	provisions.The	bill	would	require	the	department	to
conduct,	on	or	before	July	1,	2025,	regional	trainings	for
personnel	and	provider	networks	of	applicable	entities,
including	county	mental	health	plans,	Medi-Cal	managed	care
plans,	and	entities	within	the	fee-for-service	delivery	system,
on	proper	completion	of	the	standard	forms.	The	bill	would
require	each	applicable	entity	to	distribute	the	training
material	and	standard	forms	to	its	provider	networks,	and	to
commence,	no	later	than	July	1,	2025,	using	the	standard
forms.	The	bill	would	require	providers	of	applicable	entities	to
use	those	forms,	as	specified.	The	bill	would	authorize	the
department	to	restrict	the	imposition	of	additional
documentation	requirements	beyond	those	included	on
standard	forms,	as	specified.The	bill	would	require	the
department	to	conduct	an	analysis	on	the	status	of	utilization
of	the	standard	forms	by	applicable	entities,	and	on	the	status
of	the	trainings	and	training	material,	in	order	to	determine
the	effectiveness	of	implementation	of	the	above-described
provisions.	The	bill	would	require	the	department	to	prepare	a
report	containing	findings	from	the	analysis	no	later	than	July
1,	2026,	and	a	followup	report	no	later	than	July	1,	2028,	and
to	submit	each	report	to	the	Legislature	and	post	it	on	the
department’s	internet	website.

Primary	Sponsors
Sharon	Quirk-Silva

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-17

Bill	Number
AB	1470

Status
Passed	Senate

Position
Monitor

31

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=2f86e8b2a650b5f8aca2300eac859b08


Title
Skilled	nursing	facilities:	direct	care	spending	requirement.

Description
AB	1537,	as	introduced,	Wood.	Skilled	nursing	facilities:	direct
care	spending	requirement.	Existing	law	provides	for	the
licensure	and	regulation	of	health	facilities,	including	skilled
nursing	facilities,	by	the	State	Department	of	Public	Health.	A
violation	of	those	provisions	is	a	crime.	Existing	law	requires
health	facilities	to	submit	specified	financial	reports	to	the
Department	of	Health	Care	Access	and	Information.	Existing
law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered
by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under
which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care
services.This	bill	would	require,	no	later	than	July	1,	2024,	the
establishment	of	a	direct	patient-related	services	spending,
reporting,	and	rebate	requirement	for	skilled	nursing	facilities,
with	exceptions.	Under	the	direct	patient-related	services
spending	requirement,	the	bill	would	require	that	a	minimum
of	85%	of	a	facility’s	total	non-Medicare	health	revenues	from
all	payer	sources	in	each	fiscal	year	be	expended	on
residents’	direct	patient-related	services,	as	defined.The	bill
would	require	a	facility	to	report	total	revenues	collected	from
all	revenue	sources,	along	with	the	portion	of	revenues	that
are	expended	on	all	direct	patient-related	services	and
nondirect	patient-related	services,	to	the	State	Department	of
Health	Care	Services	by	June	30	of	each	calendar	year,	with
certification	signed	by	a	duly	authorized	official,	as
specified.The	bill	would	require	the	State	Department	of
Health	Care	Services	to	conduct	an	audit	of	the	financial
information	reported	by	the	facilities,	to	ensure	its	accuracy
and	to	identify	and	recover	any	payments	that	exceed	the
allowed	limit,	as	specified.	The	bill	would	require	the
department	to	conduct	the	audit	every	3	years,	at	the	same
time	as	the	facility’s	Medi-Cal	audit.If	a	skilled	nursing	facility
fails	to	comply	with	the	direct	patient-related	services
spending	requirement,	the	bill	would	require	the	facility	to
issue	a	pro	rata	dividend	or	credit	to	the	state	and	to	all
individuals	and	entities	making	non-Medicare	payments	to	the
facility	for	resident	services,	as	specified.	The	bill	would
require	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	to
ensure	that	those	payments	are	made	and	to	impose
sanctions,	as	specified.	The	bill	would	also	authorize	the
department	to	withhold	certain	payments	from	a	skilled
nursing	facility	licensee	for	failure	to	fully	disclose
information,	as	specified.Because	a	violation	of	these
requirements	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-
mandated	local	program.The	California	Constitution	requires
the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for
certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions
establish	pro...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Jim	Wood

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-17

Bill	Number
AB	1537

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

32

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=fc5f7981c7db8d9f6957fd77e7e78f55


Title
Health	care:	immigration.

Description
AB	1783,	as	introduced,	Essayli.	Health	care:	immigration.
Existing	federal	law	provides	for	the	Medicare	Program,	which
is	a	public	health	insurance	program	for	persons	65	years	of
age	and	older	and	specified	persons	with	disabilities	who	are
under	65	years	of	age.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	Medi-Cal
program,	administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health
Care	Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income
individuals	receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal
program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid
program	provisions.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation
of	health	insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.This	bill
would	state	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	to	enact	legislation	to
remove	all	taxpayer	funding	for	health	care	for	illegal
immigrants	from	the	California	State	Budget.

Primary	Sponsors
Bill	Essayli

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-03

Title
Health	care	coverage:	Medication-assisted	treatment.

Description
AB	1842,	as	introduced,	Reyes.	Health	care	coverage:
Medication-assisted	treatment.	Existing	law,	the	Knox–Keene
Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the
licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the
Department	of	Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful
violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Existing	law	also	provides	for	the
regulation	of	health	insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.
Existing	law	authorizes	health	care	service	plans	and	health
insurers	that	cover	prescription	drugs	to	utilize	reasonable
medical	management	practices,	including	prior	authorization
and	step	therapy,	consistent	with	applicable	law.	This	bill
would	prohibit	a	medical	service	plan	and	a	health	insurer
from	subjecting	a	naloxone	product	or	another	opioid
antagonist	approved	by	the	United	States	Food	and	Drug
Administration,	or	a	buprenorphine	product	or	long-acting
injectable	naltrexone	for	detoxification	or	maintenance
treatment	of	a	substance	use	disorder,	to	prior	authorization
or	step	therapy.	Because	a	willful	violation	of	these	provisions
by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	this	bill	would
impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The	California
Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies
and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.
Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for	making	that
reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no	reimbursement
is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Eloise	Reyes

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-16

Bill	Number
AB	1783

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	1842

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	7,	2024,	9:14	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans	-	Oppose

33

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=ce9daaeff11a618c8b82a0ac493239d5
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=785f90563d7e1050e3cf7d92e2ddcd9e


Title
Developmental	services:	individual	program	plans	and
individual	family	service	plans:	remote	meetings.

Description
AB	1876,	as	introduced,	Jackson.	Developmental	services:
individual	program	plans	and	individual	family	service	plans:
remote	meetings.	Existing	law,	the	Lanterman	Developmental
Disabilities	Services	Act,	requires	the	State	Department	of
Developmental	Services	to	contract	with	regional	centers	for
the	provision	of	community	services	and	supports	for	persons
with	developmental	disabilities	and	their	families.	Existing
law,	until	June	30,	2024,	requires	a	meeting	regarding	the
provision	of	services	and	supports	by	the	regional	center,
including	a	meeting	to	develop	or	revise	a	consumer’s
individual	program	plan	(IPP),	to	be	held	by	remote	electronic
communications	if	requested	by	the	consumer	or,	if
appropriate,	if	requested	by	the	consumer’s	parents,	legal
guardian,	conservator,	or	authorized	representative.	Existing
law,	the	California	Early	Intervention	Services	Act,	provides	a
statewide	system	of	coordinated,	comprehensive,	family-
centered,	multidisciplinary,	and	interagency	programs	that
are	responsible	for	providing	appropriate	early	intervention
services	and	supports	to	all	eligible	infants	and	toddlers	and
their	families.	Under	the	act,	direct	services	for	eligible	infants
and	toddlers	and	their	families	are	provided	by	regional
centers	and	local	educational	agencies.	The	act	requires	an
eligible	infant	or	toddler	receiving	services	under	the	act	to
have	an	individualized	family	service	plan	(IFSP),	as	specified.
Existing	law,	until	June	30,	2024,	requires,	at	the	request	of
the	parent	or	legal	guardian,	an	IFSP	meeting	to	be	held	by
remote	electronic	communications.	This	bill,	beginning
January	1,	2025,	would	indefinitely	extend	the	requirements
that,	if	requested,	IPP	and	IFSP	meetings	be	held	by	remote
electronic	communications.	By	extending	a	requirement	for
local	educational	agencies,	this	bill	would	impose	a	state-
mandated	local	program.The	California	Constitution	requires
the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for
certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions
establish	procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill
would	provide	that,	if	the	Commission	on	State	Mandates
determines	that	the	bill	contains	costs	mandated	by	the	state,
reimbursement	for	those	costs	shall	be	made	pursuant	to	the
statutory	provisions	noted	above.

Primary	Sponsors
Corey	Jackson

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-22

Title
Public	health:	maternity	ward	closures.

Description
AB	1895,	as	introduced,	Weber.	Public	health:	maternity	ward
closures.	Existing	law	establishes	the	licensure	and	regulation
of	health	facilities	by	the	State	Department	of	Public	Health,
including,	among	others,	general	acute	care	hospitals.This	bill
would	express	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	to	enact	legislation
to	address	maternity	ward	closures.

Primary	Sponsors
Akilah	Weber

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-23

Bill	Number
AB	1876

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	1895

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

34

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=93198ca692f00838ef683663cf572f43
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=a6ea14d544cdc06312efffba17dcd4b5


Title
Health	care	coverage:	chronic	digestive	diseases	and
inherited	metabolic	disorders.

Description
AB	1926,	as	introduced,	Connolly.	Health	care	coverage:
chronic	digestive	diseases	and	inherited	metabolic	disorders.
Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of
1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care
service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed	Health	Care,	and
makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Existing	law
provides	for	the	regulation	of	disability	insurers,	including
health	insurers,	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law
requires	a	health	care	service	plan	contract	and	disability
insurance	policy	that	provides	coverage	for	hospital,	medical,
or	surgical	expenses	and	is	issued,	amended,	delivered,	or
renewed	on	and	after	July	1,	2000,	to	provide	coverage	for	the
testing	and	treatment	of	phenylketonuria,	including	coverage
for	the	formulas	and	special	food	products	that	are	part	of	a
prescribed	diet,	as	specified.This	bill	would	require	a	health
care	service	plan	contract	or	disability	insurance	policy	that
provides	coverage	for	hospital,	medical,	or	surgical	expenses
and	is	issued,	amended,	delivered,	or	renewed	on	and	after
July	1,	2025,	to	provide	coverage	for	formulas,	as	defined,	for
the	treatment	of	other	chronic	digestive	diseases	and
inherited	metabolic	disorders,	as	specified.	The	bill	would
specify	that	these	provisions	do	not	apply	to	Medi-Cal
managed	care	plans	to	the	extent	that	the	services	are
excluded	from	coverage	under	the	contract	between	the
Medi-Cal	managed	care	plan	and	the	State	Department	of
Health	Care	Services.	Because	a	violation	of	the	bill’s
requirements	by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,
the	bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The
California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local
agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by
the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for
making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no
reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Damon	Connolly

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-25

Bill	Number
AB	1926

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	7,	2024,	9:15	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans	-	Oppose

35

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=f75dfb2981c74b0eeba4a65be0f29cbd


Title
Maternal	mental	health	screenings.

Description
AB	1936,	as	amended,	Cervantes.	Maternal	mental	health
screenings.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service
Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of
health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed
Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act	a	crime.
Existing	law	also	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health	insurers
by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	requires	a
health	care	service	plan	or	health	insurer	to	develop	a
maternal	mental	health	program	designed	to	promote	quality
and	cost-effective	outcomes,	as	specified.This	bill	would
require	the	program	to	conduct	at	least	one	maternal	mental
health	screening	during	pregnancy,	and	at	least	one
additional	screening	during	the	first	6	months	of	the
postpartum	period.	Because	a	willful	violation	of	these
provisions	by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the
bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The
California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local
agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by
the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for
making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no
reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Sabrina	Cervantes

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-25

Bill	Number
AB	1936

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

36

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=bac73cc9a0b2d5cb63909e09d0226c0f


Title
Health	information.

Description
AB	1943,	as	introduced,	Weber.	Health	information.	Existing
law	establishes	the	California	Health	and	Human	Services
Agency,	which	includes	departments	charged	with	the
administration	of	health,	social,	and	other	human	services.
Existing	law	establishes	the	Center	for	Data	Insights	and
Innovation	within	the	California	Health	and	Human	Services
Agency	to	ensure	the	enforcement	of	state	law	mandating	the
confidentiality	of	medical	information.	Existing	law	requires
the	center	to	develop	tools	and	education	related	to
improvement	of	consumer	access	to	care,	quality	of	care,	and
addressing	the	disparities	in	quality	of	care	related	to
socioeconomic	status.	Existing	law	also	establishes	the	State
Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	requires	the
department,	among	other	things,	to	administer	the	Medi-Cal
program.This	bill	would	require	the	department,	in
collaboration	with	the	agency,	to	collect	appropriate	data	and
identify	indicators	for	tracking	telehealth	outcomes	associated
with	impacting	individual	patient	outcomes	and	overall
population	health.	The	bill	would	require	the	department	to
use	the	data	collected	to	measure	health	outcomes	of
populations,	as	specified.	The	bill	would	make	a	related	intent
statement.

Primary	Sponsors
Akilah	Weber

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-29

Bill	Number
AB	1943

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	18,	2024,	5:28	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans	-	Oppose

37

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=6edc29456f4e8c82e9d97d2004df154e


Title
Individualized	investigational	treatment.

Description
AB	1944,	as	introduced,	Waldron.	Individualized
investigational	treatment.	Existing	law,	the	federal	Food,
Drug,	and	Cosmetic	Act,	prohibits	a	person	from	introducing
into	interstate	commerce	any	new	drug	unless	the	drug	has
been	approved	by	the	United	States	Food	and	Drug
Administration	(FDA).	Existing	law	requires	the	sponsor	of	a
new	drug	to	submit	to	the	FDA	an	investigational	new	drug
application	and	to	then	conduct	a	series	of	clinical	trials	to
establish	the	safety	and	efficacy	of	the	drug	in	human
populations	and	submit	the	results	to	the	FDA	in	a	new	drug
application.	Existing	federal	law	also	regulates	biomedical	and
behavioral	research	involving	human	subjects.	Existing	law,
the	Sherman	Food,	Drug,	and	Cosmetic	Law,	regulates	the
packaging,	labeling,	and	advertising	of	drugs	and	devices	and
is	administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Public	Health.	A
violation	of	that	law	is	a	crime.	The	Sherman	Food,	Drug,	and
Cosmetic	Law	prohibits,	among	other	things,	the	sale,
delivery,	or	giving	away	of	a	new	drug	or	new	device	unless
either	the	department	has	approved	a	new	drug	or	device
application	for	that	new	drug	or	new	device	and	that	approval
has	not	been	withdrawn,	terminated,	or	suspended	or	the
drug	or	device	has	been	approved	pursuant	to	specified
provisions	of	federal	law,	including	the	federal	Food,	Drug,
and	Cosmetic	Act.Existing	law	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	various	healing	arts	professions	and	vocations
by	boards	within	the	Department	of	Consumer	Affairs.	For
instance,	the	Medical	Practice	Act	provides	for	the	licensure
and	regulation	of	physicians	and	surgeons	by	the	Medical
Board	of	California	and	the	Osteopathic	Act	provides	for	the
licensure	and	regulation	of	osteopathic	physicians	and
surgeons	by	the	Osteopathic	Medical	Board	of	California,
among	others.This	bill,	the	Right	to	Try	Individualized
Investigational	Treatments	Act,	would	permit	a	manufacturer
of	an	individualized	investigational	treatment,	as	defined,	to
make	the	product	available	to	eligible	patients	with	life-
threatening	or	severely	debilitating	illness,	as	specified.	The
bill	would	authorize,	but	not	require,	a	health	benefit	plan,	as
defined,	to	provide	coverage	for	any	individualized
investigational	treatment	made	available	pursuant	to	these
provisions.The	bill	would	prohibit	a	state	regulatory	board
from	taking	any	action	against	a	health	care	provider’s	license
solely	on	a	provider’s	recommendation	of	or	providing	access
to	an	individualized	investigational	treatment.The	bill	would
prohibit	a	state	agency	from	altering	any	recommendation
made	to	the	federal	Centers	for	Medicare	and	Medicaid
Services	regarding	a	health	care	provider's	certification	to
participate	in	the	Medicare	or	Medicaid	program	based	solely
on	...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Marie	Waldron

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-29

Bill	Number
AB	1944

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

38

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=7163ffac2d186e45dd7b3fb2ee65a6ea


Title
Mental	Health:	Black	Mental	Health	Navigator	Certification
Pilot	Program.

Description
AB	1970,	as	introduced,	Jackson.	Mental	Health:	Black	Mental
Health	Navigator	Certification	Pilot	Program.	Existing	law
authorizes	the	State	Department	of	State	Hospitals,	the	State
Department	of	Health	Care	Services,	and	other	departments
as	necessary	to	perform	various	tasks	relating	to	mental
health	services,	including,	among	others,	disseminating
educational	information	relating	to	the	prevention,	diagnosis,
and	treatment	of	mental	illness	and,	upon	request,	advising
all	public	officers,	organizations,	and	agencies	interested	in
the	mental	health	of	the	people	of	the	state.This	bill	would,
commencing	July	1,	2025,	establish,	until	June	30,	2028,	the
Black	Mental	Health	Navigator	Certification	Pilot	Program,	to
be	administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services,	to	provide	comprehensive	training	in	mental	health
resources	and	awareness,	as	specified.	This	bill	would	require
the	department	to	collect	specific	data	and	submit	a	report	to
the	Legislature	and	the	relevant	policy	committees	on	or
before	December	31,	2028.	The	bill	would	make	those
provisions	contingent	upon	appropriation	and	would	repeal
those	provisions	on	January	1,	2030.

Primary	Sponsors
Corey	Jackson

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-30

Bill	Number
AB	1970

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

39

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=a1b7db759397cdfe40e2a6b1328d4412


Title
Medi-Cal:	medically	supportive	food	and	nutrition
interventions.

Description
AB	1975,	as	introduced,	Bonta.	Medi-Cal:	medically	supportive
food	and	nutrition	interventions.	Existing	law	establishes	the
Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by	the	State
Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under	which	qualified
low-income	individuals	receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-
Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal
Medicaid	program	provisions.Existing	law	requires	the
department	to	establish	the	Medically	Tailored	Meals	Pilot
Program	and	the	Short-Term	Medically	Tailored	Meals
Intervention	Services	Program,	to	operate	in	specified
counties	and	during	limited	periods	for	the	purpose	of
providing	medically	tailored	meal	intervention	services	to
eligible	Medi-Cal	beneficiaries	with	certain	health	conditions,
including	congestive	heart	failure,	cancer,	diabetes,	chronic
obstructive	pulmonary	disease,	or	renal	disease.Existing	law,
subject	to	implementation	of	the	California	Advancing	and
Innovating	Medi-Cal	(CalAIM)	initiative,	authorizes	a	Medi-Cal
managed	care	plan	to	elect	to	cover	community	supports
approved	by	the	department	as	cost	effective	and	medically
appropriate	in	a	comprehensive	risk	contract	that	are	in	lieu
of	applicable	Medi-Cal	state	plan	services.	Under	existing	law,
community	supports	that	the	department	is	authorized	to
approve	include,	among	other	things,	medically	supportive
food	and	nutrition	services,	including	medically	tailored
meals.This	bill	would	make	medically	supportive	food	and
nutrition	interventions,	as	defined,	a	covered	benefit	under
the	Medi-Cal	program,	through	both	the	fee-for-service	and
managed	care	delivery	systems,	effective	July	1,	2026,
subject	to	federal	approval	and	the	issuance	of	final	guidance
by	the	department.	The	bill	would	require	those	interventions
to	be	covered	if	determined	to	be	medically	necessary	by	a
health	care	provider	or	health	care	plan,	as	specified.	The	bill
would	require	the	provision	of	interventions	for	12	weeks,	or
longer	if	deemed	medically	necessary.	The	bill	would	require	a
Medi-Cal	managed	care	plan	to	offer	at	least	3	of	6	listed
interventions,	with	certain	conditions	for	a	7th
intervention.The	bill	would	require	the	department	to	define
the	qualifying	medical	conditions	for	purposes	of	the	covered
interventions.	The	bill	would	require	a	health	care	provider,	to
the	extent	possible,	to	match	the	acuity	of	a	patient’s
condition	to	the	intensity	and	duration	of	the	covered
intervention	and	to	include	culturally	appropriate	foods.The
bill	would	require	the	department	to	establish	a	medically
supportive	food	and	nutrition	benefit	stakeholder	group,	with
a	specified	composition,	to	advise	the	department	on	certain
related	items.	The	bill	would	require	the	workgroup	to	issue
final	guidance	on	or	before	July	1,	2026.

Primary	Sponsors
Mia	Bonta

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-30

Bill	Number
AB	1975

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

40

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=7158c30a09e710b8f1fd8e7bdec5634b


Title
Health	care	coverage:	behavioral	diagnoses.

Description
AB	1977,	as	introduced,	Ta.	Health	care	coverage:	behavioral
diagnoses.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service
Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of
health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed
Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act	a	crime.
Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health	insurers	by
the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	requires	a	health
care	service	plan	contract	or	health	insurance	policy	to
provide	coverage	for	behavioral	health	treatment	for
pervasive	developmental	disorder	or	autism.This	bill	would
prohibit	a	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	health
insurance	policy	issued,	amended,	or	renewed	on	or	after
January	1,	2025,	from	requiring	an	enrollee	or	insured
previously	diagnosed	with	pervasive	developmental	disorder
or	autism	to	be	reevaluated	or	receive	a	new	behavioral
diagnosis	to	maintain	coverage	for	behavioral	health
treatment	for	their	condition.	Because	a	willful	violation	of	this
provision	by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the
bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The
California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local
agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by
the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for
making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no
reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Tri	Ta

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-30

Title
Health	care	facilities:	small	and	rural	hospitals.

Description
AB	1995,	as	introduced,	Essayli.	Health	care	facilities:	small
and	rural	hospitals.	Under	existing	law,	the	State	Department
of	Public	Health	issues	licenses	for	and	regulates	health
facilities,	including	small	and	rural	hospitals,	as	defined.
Under	existing	law,	a	hospital	that	meets	the	definition	of	a
small	and	rural	hospital	may	be	eligible	for	special	programs,
including	business	assistance,	regulatory	relief,	and	increased
Medi-Cal	reimbursement.This	bill	would	make	technical,
nonsubstantive	changes	to	the	definition	of	small	and	rural
hospital.

Primary	Sponsors
Bill	Essayli

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-30

Bill	Number
AB	1977

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	1995

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

41

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=832b7c04ec118dea8646f38e2580458d
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=088820135c1c18856a15d30208f23372


Title
Medical	loss	ratios.

Description
AB	2028,	as	introduced,	Ortega.	Medical	loss	ratios.	Existing
law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,
provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care
service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed	Health	Care,	and
makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Existing	law
provides	for	the	regulation	of	health	insurers	by	the
Department	of	Insurance.	The	federal	Patient	Protection	and
Affordable	Care	Act	requires	a	health	insurance	issuer	to
comply	with	minimum	medical	loss	ratios	(MLRs)	and	to
provide	an	annual	rebate	to	each	insured	if	the	MLR	of	the
amount	of	the	revenue	expended	by	the	issuer	on	costs	to	the
total	amount	of	premium	revenue	is	less	than	a	certain
percentage,	as	specified.	Existing	law	requires	health	care
service	plans	and	health	insurers	that	issue,	sell,	renew,	or
offer	a	contract	or	policy,	excluding	specialized	dental	and
vision	contracts	and	policies,	to	comply	with	a	minimum	MLR
of	85%	and	provide	specified	rebates.	Existing	law	requires	a
health	care	service	plan	or	health	insurer	that	issues,	sells,
renews,	or	offers	a	contract	or	policy	covering	dental	services
to	annually	report	MLR	information	to	the	appropriate
department.This	bill	would	require	a	health	care	service	plan
or	health	insurer	that	issues,	sells,	renews,	or	offers	a
specialized	dental	health	care	service	plan	contract	or
specialized	dental	health	insurance	policy	to	comply	with	a
minimum	MLR	of	85%	and	to	provide	a	specified	rebate	to	an
enrollee	or	insured.	Because	a	willful	violation	of	these
provisions	by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the
bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The
California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local
agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by
the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for
making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no
reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Liz	Ortega

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-01

Bill	Number
AB	2028

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

42

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=f1b2d098ecefcc630a468f97d4b2b879


Title
Medi-Cal:	nonmedical	and	nonemergency	medical
transportation.

Description
AB	2043,	as	introduced,	Boerner.	Medi-Cal:	nonmedical	and
nonemergency	medical	transportation.	Existing	law
establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by
the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under
which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care
services,	through	managed	care	or	fee-for-service	delivery
systems.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and
funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.	Existing	law
covers	emergency	or	nonemergency	medical	transportation,
and	nonmedical	transportation,	under	the	Medi-Cal	program,
as	specified.This	bill	would	require	the	department	to	require
Medi-Cal	managed	care	plans	that	are	contracted	to	provide
nonemergency	medical	transportation	or	nonmedical
transportation	to	contract	with	public	paratransit	service
operators	who	are	enrolled	Medi-Cal	providers,	for	the
purpose	of	establishing	reimbursement	rates	for	those
transportation	trips	provided	by	a	public	paratransit	service
operator.	The	bill	would	require	that	the	rates	be	based	on	the
department’s	fee-for-service	rates	for	the	transportation
service,	as	specified.The	bill	would	condition	implementation
of	these	provisions	on	receipt	of	any	necessary	federal
approvals	and	the	availability	of	federal	financial	participation.

Primary	Sponsors
Tasha	Boerner

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-01

Title
Automated	decision	systems.

Description
AB	2058,	as	introduced,	Weber.	Automated	decision	systems.
Existing	law	requires	the	Department	of	Technology	to
conduct,	in	coordination	with	other	interagency	bodies	as	it
deems	appropriate,	a	comprehensive	inventory	of	all	high-risk
automated	decision	systems	that	have	been	proposed	for	use,
development,	or	procurement	by,	or	are	being	used,
developed,	or	procured	by,	any	state	agency.	Existing	law
defines	an	“automated	decision	system”	as	a	computational
process	derived	from	machine	learning,	statistical	modeling,
data	analytics,	or	artificial	intelligence	that	issues	simplified
output,	including	a	score,	classification,	or	recommendation,
that	is	used	to	assist	or	replace	human	discretionary
decisionmaking	and	materially	impacts	natural	persons.This
bill	would	state	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	to	enact
legislation	relating	to	commercial	algorithms	and	artificial
intelligence-enabled	medical	devices.

Primary	Sponsors
Akilah	Weber

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-01

Bill	Number
AB	2043

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2058

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

43

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=08a8aeba4a252651f29311b4f89c890b
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=860a5315a48417a6b791afc78781d02d


Title
Health	care	coverage.

Description
AB	2063,	as	introduced,	Maienschein.	Health	care	coverage.
Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of
1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care
service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed	Health	Care.
Existing	law	exempts	a	health	care	service	plan	from	the
requirements	of	the	act	if	the	plan	is	operated	by	a	city,
county,	city	and	county,	public	entity,	political	subdivision,	or
public	joint	labor	management	trust	that	satisfies	certain
criteria,	including	that	the	plan	requires	providers	to	be
reimbursed	solely	on	a	fee-for-service	basis.	Existing	law
authorizes	the	Director	of	the	Department	of	Managed	Health
Care,	no	later	than	May	1,	2021,	to	authorize	2	pilot
programs,	one	in	northern	California	and	one	in	southern
California,	under	which	providers	approved	by	the	department
may	undertake	risk-bearing	arrangements	with	a	voluntary
employees’	beneficiary	association	with	enrollment	of	more
than	100,000	lives,	notwithstanding	the	fee-for-service
requirement	described	above,	or	a	trust	fund	that	is	a	welfare
plan	and	a	multiemployer	plan	with	enrollment	of	more	than
25,000	lives,	for	independent	periods	of	time	beginning	no
earlier	than	January	1,	2022,	to	December	31,	2025,	inclusive,
if	certain	criteria	are	met.	Existing	law	requires	the
association	or	trust	fund	and	each	health	care	provider
participating	in	each	pilot	program	to	report	to	the
department	information	regarding	cost	savings	and	clinical
patient	outcomes	compared	to	a	fee-for-service	payment
model,	and	requires	the	department	to	report	those	findings
to	the	Legislature	no	later	than	January	1,	2027.	Existing	law
repeals	these	provisions	on	January	1,	2028.	This	bill	would
extend	that	repeal	date	to	January	1,	2030.	The	bill	would
extend	the	period	of	time	authorized	for	those	pilot	programs
to	operate	from	December	31,	2025,	to	December	31,	2027.
The	bill	would	extend	the	deadline	for	the	department	to
report	the	findings	to	the	Legislature	from	January	1,	2027,	to
January	1,	2029.

Primary	Sponsors
Brian	Maienschein

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-01

Bill	Number
AB	2063

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

44

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=b0c8553eab720af65c519ce8e92d2e13


Title
Group	health	care	coverage:	biomedical	industry.

Description
AB	2072,	as	introduced,	Weber.	Group	health	care	coverage:
biomedical	industry.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975	(Knox-Keene),	provides	for	the
licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the
Department	of	Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful
violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Existing	law	also	provides	for	the
regulation	of	health	insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.
Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	individual,	small
employer,	grandfathered	small	employer,	and
nongrandfathered	small	employer	health	care	service	plan
contracts	and	health	insurance	policies,	as	defined.Existing
federal	law,	the	federal	Employee	Retirement	Income	Security
Act	of	1974	(ERISA),	authorizes	multiple	employer	welfare
arrangements	(MEWAs)	in	which	2	or	more	employers	join
together	to	provide	health	care	coverage	for	employees	or	to
their	beneficiaries.	Under	existing	state	law,	the	status	of
each	distinct	member	of	an	association	determines	whether
that	member’s	association	coverage	is	individual,	small
group,	or	large	group	health	coverage.Existing	law,	until
January	1,	2026,	authorizes	an	association	of	employers	to
offer	a	large	group	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	large
group	health	insurance	policy	to	small	group	employer
members	of	the	association	consistent	with	ERISA	if	certain
requirements	are	met,	including	that	the	association	is	the
sponsor	of	a	MEWA	that	has	offered	a	large	group	health	care
service	plan	contract	since	January	1,	2012,	in	connection
with	an	employee	welfare	benefit	plan	under	ERISA,	provides
a	specified	level	of	coverage,	and	includes	coverage	for
common	law	employees,	and	their	dependents,	who	are
employed	by	an	association	member	in	the	biomedical
industry	with	operations	in	California.	This	bill	would	repeal
the	sunset	date	of	January	1,	2026,	for	the	authorization	of
this	type	of	health	care	service	plan	and	insurance	policy,
thereby	authorizing	these	plans	and	policies	indefinitely.	By
indefinitely	extending	the	authorization	for	a	specific	type	of
health	care	service	plan,	this	bill	would	correspondingly
extend	the	applicability	of	the	crime	for	a	violation	of	Knox-
Keene,	thereby	imposing	a	state-mandated	local	program.The
California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local
agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by
the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for
making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no
reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Akilah	Weber

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-05

Bill	Number
AB	2072

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

45

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=497dd9fb59d2357a68306ee398ab0f57


Title
Coverage	for	PANDAS	and	PANS.

Description
AB	2105,	as	introduced,	Lowenthal.	Coverage	for	PANDAS	and
PANS.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service	Plan
Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of
health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed
Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act	a	crime.
Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health	insurers	by
the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	sets	forth	specified
coverage	requirements	for	health	care	service	plan	contracts
and	health	insurance	policies,	and	limits	the	copayment,
coinsurance,	deductible,	and	other	cost	sharing	that	may	be
imposed	for	specified	health	care	services.This	bill	would
require	a	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	health	insurance
policy	issued,	amended,	or	renewed	on	or	after	January	1,
2025,	to	provide	coverage	for	the	prophylaxis,	diagnosis,	and
treatment	of	Pediatric	Autoimmune	Neuropsychiatric	Disorder
Associated	with	Streptococcal	Infections	(PANDAS)	and
Pediatric	Acute-onset	Neuropsychiatric	Syndrome	(PANS)	that
is	prescribed	or	ordered	by	the	treating	physician	and
surgeon.	The	bill	would	prohibit	coverage	for	PANDAS	and
PANS	from	being	subject	to	a	copayment,	coinsurance,
deductible,	or	other	cost	sharing	that	is	greater	than	that
applied	to	other	benefits.	The	bill	would	prohibit	a	plan	or
insurer	from	denying	or	delaying	coverage	for	PANDAS	or
PANS	therapies	because	the	enrollee	or	insured	previously
received	treatment	for	PANDAS	or	PANS	or	was	diagnosed
with	or	received	treatment	for	the	condition	under	a	different
diagnostic	name.	Because	a	willful	violation	of	these
provisions	by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the
bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The
California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local
agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by
the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for
making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no
reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Josh	Lowenthal

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-05

Bill	Number
AB	2105

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	18,	2024,	5:29	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans	-	Oppose

46

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=95f6dd06127ecb0d2e3241be9613e933


Title
Medi-Cal:	Adverse	Childhood	Experiences	trauma	screenings:
providers.

Description
AB	2110,	as	introduced,	Arambula.	Medi-Cal:	Adverse
Childhood	Experiences	trauma	screenings:	providers.	Existing
law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered
by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under
which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care
services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and
funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.Existing	law
requires	that	Medi-Cal	provider	payments	and	payments	for
specified	non-Medi-Cal	programs	be	reduced	by	10%	for	dates
of	service	on	and	after	June	1,	2011,	and	conditions
implementation	of	those	payment	reductions	on	receipt	of
any	necessary	federal	approvals.	Existing	law,	for	dates	of
service	on	and	after	July	1,	2022,	authorizes	the	maintenance
of	the	reimbursement	rates	or	payments	for	specified
services,	including,	among	others,	Adverse	Childhood
Experiences	(ACEs)	trauma	screenings	and	specified
providers,	using	General	Fund	or	other	state	funds
appropriated	to	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services
as	the	state	share,	at	the	payment	levels	in	effect	on
December	31,	2021,	as	specified,	under	the	California
Healthcare,	Research	and	Prevention	Tobacco	Tax	Act	of	2016
that	were	implemented	with	funds	from	the	Healthcare
Treatment	Fund,	as	specified.	Existing	law	requires	the
department	to	develop	the	eligibility	criteria,	methodologies,
and	parameters	for	the	payments	and	rate	increases
maintained,	and	would	authorize	revisions,	as	specified.This
bill	would	require	the	department,	as	part	of	its	above-
described	duties,	to	include	(1)	community-based
organizations	and	local	health	jurisdictions	that	provide	health
services	through	community	health	workers	and	(2)	doulas,
that	are	enrolled	Medi-Cal	providers,	as	providers	qualified	to
provide,	and	eligible	to	receive	payments	for,	ACEs	trauma
screenings	pursuant	to	the	provisions	described	above.	The
bill	would	require	the	department	to	file	a	state	plan
amendment	and	seek	any	federal	approvals	it	deems
necessary	to	implement	these	provisions	and	condition
implementation	on	receipt	of	any	necessary	federal	approvals
and	the	availability	of	federal	financial	participation.	The	bill
would	also	require	the	department	to	update	its	internet
website	and	the	ACEs	Aware	internet	website	to	reflect	the
addition	of	the	Medi-Cal	providers	described	above	as
authorized	to	provide	ACEs	screenings.

Primary	Sponsors
Joaquin	Arambula

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-05

Bill	Number
AB	2110

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

47

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=e6384af049a2918703755aeec1491208


Title
Controlled	substances:	clinics.

Description
AB	2115,	as	introduced,	Haney.	Controlled	substances:	clinics.
Existing	law,	the	Pharmacy	Law,	provides	for	the	licensure
and	regulation	of	pharmacists	by	the	California	State	Board	of
Pharmacy	and	makes	a	violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Under
existing	law,	specified	clinics,	including	surgical	clinics,	may
purchase	drugs	at	wholesale	for	administration	or	dispensing
to	the	clinic’s	patients.	Existing	law	requires	these	clinics	to
maintain	certain	records	and	to	obtain	a	license	from	the
board.	Existing	law	prohibits	specified	substances	from	being
dispensed	by	a	nonprofit	or	free	clinic,	as	defined.This	bill
would	authorize	a	nonprofit	or	free	clinic	to	dispense	a
narcotic	drug	for	the	purpose	of	relieving	acute	withdrawal
symptoms	while	arrangements	are	being	made	for	referral	for
treatment,	as	described,	and	would	require	the	clinic
dispensing	the	narcotic	to	be	subject	to	specified	labeling	and
recordkeeping	requirements.	Because	the	bill	would	specify
additional	requirements	under	the	Pharmacy	Law,	a	violation
of	which	would	be	a	crime,	it	would	impose	a	state-mandated
local	program.The	California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to
reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs
mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish
procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would
provide	that	no	reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a
specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Matt	Haney

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-05

Bill	Number
AB	2115

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

48

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=ec70683b1cb14cf6ba0ebd79a906ea4f


Title
Immediate	postpartum	contraception.

Description
AB	2129,	as	introduced,	Petrie-Norris.	Immediate	postpartum
contraception.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health
insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law
generally	regulates	contractual	provisions	between	health
care	service	plans	and	health	insurers	and	their	contracting
health	care	providers.This	bill	would	require	a	contract
between	a	health	care	service	plan	or	health	insurer	and	a
health	care	provider	issued,	amended,	or	renewed	on	or	after
January	1,	2025,	to	authorize	a	provider	to	separately	bill	for
devices,	implants,	or	professional	services,	or	a	combination
thereof,	associated	with	immediate	postpartum	contraception
if	the	birth	takes	place	in	a	licensed	hospital	or	birthing
center.	The	bill	would	prohibit	that	provider	contract	from
considering	those	devices,	implants,	or	services	to	be	part	of
a	payment	for	a	general	obstetric	procedure.	Because	a
violation	of	the	bill’s	requirements	by	a	health	care	service
plan	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-
mandated	local	program.The	California	Constitution	requires
the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for
certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions
establish	procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill
would	provide	that	no	reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act
for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Cottie	Petrie-Norris

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-06

Bill	Number
AB	2129

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

49

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=a658fbf674ade1636705fffaa6ff65c9


Title
Health	care	services.

Description
AB	2132,	as	amended,	Low.	Health	care	services.	Existing	law
provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of	health	facilities
and	clinics,	including	primary	care	clinics,	by	the	State
Department	of	Public	Health.	A	violation	of	these	provisions	is
a	crime.	Existing	law	requires	an	adult	patient	receiving
primary	care	services	in	certain	health	care	settings	to	be
offered	a	screening	test	for	hepatitis	B	and	hepatitis	C,	as
specified.This	bill	would	require	an	adult	patient	receiving
primary	care	services	in	a	facility,	clinic,	unlicensed	clinic,
center,	office,	or	other	setting,	as	specified,	to	be	offered	a
tuberculosis	(TB)	risk	assessment	and	TB	screening	test,	if	TB
risk	factors	are	identified,	to	the	extent	these	services	are
covered	under	the	patient’s	health	insurance,	unless	the
health	care	provider	reasonably	believes	certain	conditions
apply.	The	bill	would	also	require	the	health	care	provider	to
offer	the	patient	followup	health	care	or	refer	the	patient	to	a
health	care	provider	who	can	provide	followup	health	care	if	a
screening	test	is	positive,	as	specified.	The	bill	would	prohibit
a	health	care	provider	who	fails	to	comply	with	these
provisions	from	being	subject	to	any	disciplinary	action
related	to	their	licensure	or	certification,	or	to	any	civil	or
criminal	liability	for	that	failure.	The	bill	would	make	related
findings	and	declarations.

Primary	Sponsors
Evan	Low

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-06

Title
The	Early	Psychosis	Intervention	Plus	Program.

Description
AB	2161,	as	introduced,	Arambula.	The	Early	Psychosis
Intervention	Plus	Program.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Early
Psychosis	and	Mood	Disorder	Detection	and	Intervention	Fund
and	makes	the	moneys	in	the	fund	available,	upon
appropriation,	to	the	Mental	Health	Services	Oversight	and
Accountability	Commission.	Existing	law	authorizes	the
commission	to	allocate	moneys	from	that	fund	to	provide
grants	through	a	competitive	selection	process	to	counties	or
other	entities	to	create,	or	expand	existing	capacity	for,	early
psychosis	and	mood	disorder	detection	and	intervention
services	and	supports.This	bill	would	state	the	intent	of	the
Legislature	to	enact	legislation	relating	to	national	standards
for	early	psychosis.

Primary	Sponsors
Joaquin	Arambula

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-06

Bill	Number
AB	2132

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2161

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

50

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=33a00525380b098a5f87fac6f7eac81d
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=9c5cad3a582f77b787a5272897a1e095


Title
Prescription	drug	coverage:	dose	adjustments.

Description
AB	2169,	as	introduced,	Bauer-Kahan.	Prescription	drug
coverage:	dose	adjustments.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene
Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the
licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the
Department	of	Managed	Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful
violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the
regulation	of	health	insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.
Existing	law	generally	authorizes	a	health	care	service	plan	or
health	insurer	to	use	utilization	review,	under	which	a	licensed
physician	or	a	licensed	health	care	professional	who	is
competent	to	evaluate	specific	clinical	issues	may	approve,
modify,	delay,	or	deny	requests	for	health	care	services	based
on	medical	necessity.	Existing	law	also	prohibits	a	health	care
service	plan	that	covers	prescription	drug	benefits	from
limiting	or	excluding	coverage	for	a	drug	that	was	previously
approved	for	coverage	if	an	enrollee	continues	to	be
prescribed	that	drug,	as	specified.The	bill	would	authorize	a
licensed	health	care	professional	to	request,	and	would
require	that	they	be	granted,	the	authority	to	adjust	the	dose
or	frequency	of	a	drug	to	meet	the	specific	medical	needs	of
the	enrollee	or	insured	without	prior	authorization	if	specified
conditions	are	met.	Under	the	bill,	if	the	enrollee	or	insured
has	been	continuously	using	a	prescription	drug	selected	by
their	prescribing	provider	for	the	medical	condition	under
consideration	while	covered	by	their	current	or	previous
health	coverage,	the	health	care	service	plan	or	health
insurance	policy	would	be	prohibited	from	limiting	or
excluding	coverage	of	that	prescription.	With	respect	to	health
care	service	plans,	the	bill	would	specify	that	its	provisions	do
not	apply	to	Medi-Cal	managed	care	plan	contracts.	Because
a	willful	violation	of	these	provisions	by	a	health	care	service
plan	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-
mandated	local	program.The	California	Constitution	requires
the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for
certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions
establish	procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill
would	provide	that	no	reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act
for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Rebecca	Bauer-Kahan

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-07

Bill	Number
AB	2169

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	7,	2024,	9:17	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans	-	Oppose

51

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=8ffe9a42be42c601953411217800f833


Title
Health	care	coverage:	cost	sharing.

Description
AB	2180,	as	introduced,	Weber.	Health	care	coverage:	cost
sharing.	Existing	law	generally	prohibits	a	person	who
manufactures	a	prescription	drug	from	offering	in	California
any	discount,	repayment,	product	voucher,	or	other	reduction
in	an	individual’s	out-of-pocket	expenses	associated	with	the
individual’s	health	insurance,	health	care	service	plan,	or
other	health	coverage,	including,	but	not	limited	to,	a
copayment,	coinsurance,	or	deductible,	for	any	prescription
drug	if	a	lower	cost	generic	drug	is	covered	under	the
individual’s	health	insurance,	health	care	service	plan,	or
other	health	coverage	on	a	lower	cost-sharing	tier	that	is
designated	as	therapeutically	equivalent	to	the	prescription
drug	manufactured	by	that	person	or	if	the	active	ingredients
of	the	drug	are	contained	in	products	regulated	by	the	federal
Food	and	Drug	Administration,	are	available	without
prescription	at	a	lower	cost,	and	are	not	otherwise
contraindicated	for	the	condition	for	which	the	prescription
drug	is	approved.Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health
insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.This	bill	would
require	a	health	care	service	plan,	health	insurance	policy,	or
pharmacy	benefit	manager	that	administers	pharmacy
benefits	for	a	health	care	service	plan	or	health	insurer	to
apply	any	amounts	paid	by	the	enrollee,	insured,	or	another
source	pursuant	to	a	discount,	repayment,	product	voucher,
or	other	reduction	to	the	enrollee’s	or	insured’s	out-of-pocket
expenses	toward	the	enrollee’s	or	insured’s	overall
contribution	to	any	out-of-pocket	maximum,	deductible,
copayment,	coinsurance,	or	applicable	cost-sharing
requirement	under	the	enrollee’s	or	insured’s	health	care
service	plan	contract	or	health	insurance	policy.	The	bill	would
limit	the	application	of	the	section	to	health	care	service	plans
and	health	insurance	policies	issued,	amended,	delivered,	or
renewed	on	or	after	January	1,	2025.	Because	a	willful
violation	of	these	requirements	by	a	health	care	service	plan
would	be	a	crime,	this	bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated
local	program.The	California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to
reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs
mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish
procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would
provide	that	no	reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a
specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Akilah	Weber

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-07

Bill	Number
AB	2180

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

52

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=661a292c1fa3b62ce280720b940c7c78


Title
Health	information.

Description
AB	2198,	as	introduced,	Flora.	Health	information.	Existing
law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,
provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care
service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed	Health	Care.
Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health	insurers	by
the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	requires	health
care	service	plans	and	health	insurers	to	establish	and
maintain	specified	application	programming	interfaces	(API),
including	patient	access	API,	for	the	benefit	of	enrollees,
insureds,	and	contracted	providers.This	bill	would	exclude
dental	or	vision	benefits	from	the	above-described	API
requirements.

Primary	Sponsors
Heath	Flora

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-07

Bill	Number
AB	2198

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

53

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=b329f3a6a2f778771fa03a29b248cce1


Title
Guaranteed	Health	Care	for	All.

Description
AB	2200,	as	introduced,	Kalra.	Guaranteed	Health	Care	for	All.
Existing	federal	law,	the	federal	Patient	Protection	and
Affordable	Care	Act	(PPACA),	requires	each	state	to	establish
an	American	Health	Benefit	Exchange	to	facilitate	the
purchase	of	qualified	health	benefit	plans	by	qualified
individuals	and	qualified	small	employers.	PPACA	defines	a
“qualified	health	plan”	as	a	plan	that,	among	other
requirements,	provides	an	essential	health	benefits	package.
Existing	state	law	creates	the	California	Health	Benefit
Exchange,	also	known	as	Covered	California,	to	facilitate	the
enrollment	of	qualified	individuals	and	qualified	small
employers	in	qualified	health	plans	as	required	under
PPACA.Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service	Plan
Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of
health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed
Health	Care.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health
insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law
provides	for	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by
the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services,	under	which
qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care	services.
The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by
federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.This	bill,	the	California
Guaranteed	Health	Care	for	All	Act,	would	create	the
California	Guaranteed	Health	Care	for	All	program,	or	CalCare,
to	provide	comprehensive	universal	single-payer	health	care
coverage	and	a	health	care	cost	control	system	for	the	benefit
of	all	residents	of	the	state.	The	bill,	among	other	things,
would	provide	that	CalCare	cover	a	wide	range	of	medical
benefits	and	other	services	and	would	incorporate	the	health
care	benefits	and	standards	of	other	existing	federal	and	state
provisions,	including	the	federal	Children’s	Health	Insurance
Program,	Medi-Cal,	ancillary	health	care	or	social	services
covered	by	regional	centers	for	persons	with	developmental
disabilities,	Knox-Keene,	and	the	federal	Medicare	program.
The	bill	would	make	specified	persons	eligible	to	enroll	as
CalCare	members	during	the	implementation	period,	and
would	provide	for	automatic	enrollment.	The	bill	would	require
the	board	to	seek	all	necessary	waivers,	approvals,	and
agreements	to	allow	various	existing	federal	health	care
payments	to	be	paid	to	CalCare,	which	would	then	assume
responsibility	for	all	benefits	and	services	previously	paid	for
with	those	funds.This	bill	would	create	the	CalCare	Board	to
govern	CalCare,	made	up	of	9	voting	members	with
demonstrated	and	acknowledged	expertise	in	health	care,
and	appointed	as	provided,	plus	the	Secretary	of	California
Health	and	Human	Services	or	their	designee	as	a	nonvoting,
ex	officio	member.	The	bill	would	provide	the	board	with	all
the	p...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Ash	Kalra,	Isaac	Bryan,	Wendy	Carrillo,	Damon	Connolly,	Dave
Cortese,	Lena	Gonzalez,	Alex	Lee

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-07

Bill	Number
AB	2200

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

54

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=7658a7f6c142ecd16cfd03155f5c6dec


Title
Foster	children	and	youth:	transfer	of	specialty	mental	health
services.

Description
AB	2237,	as	introduced,	Aguiar-Curry.	Foster	children	and
youth:	transfer	of	specialty	mental	health	services.	Existing
law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered
by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services
(department),	under	which	qualified	low-income	individuals
receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,
governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.
Under	existing	law,	specialty	mental	health	services	include
federal	Early	and	Periodic	Screening,	Diagnostic,	and
Treatment	(EPSDT)	services	provided	to	eligible	Medi-Cal
beneficiaries	under	21	years	of	age.	Existing	law	requires
each	local	mental	health	plan	to	establish	a	procedure	to
ensure	access	to	outpatient	specialty	mental	health	services,
as	required	by	the	EPSDT	program	standards,	for	youth	in
foster	care	who	have	been	placed	outside	their	county	of
adjudication,	as	described.Existing	law	requires	the
department	to	issue	policy	guidance	on	the	conditions	for,
and	exceptions	to,	presumptive	transfer	of	responsibility	for
providing	or	arranging	for	specialty	mental	health	services	to
a	foster	youth	from	the	county	of	original	jurisdiction	to	the
county	in	which	the	foster	youth	resides,	as	prescribed.	On	a
case-by-case	basis,	and	when	consistent	with	the	medical
rights	of	children	in	foster	care,	existing	law	authorizes	the
waiver	of	presumptive	transfer,	with	the	responsibility	for	the
provision	of	specialty	mental	health	services	remaining	with
the	county	of	original	jurisdiction	if	certain	exceptions	exist.
Under	existing	law,	the	county	probation	agency	or	the	child
welfare	services	agency	is	responsible	for	determining
whether	waiver	of	the	presumptive	transfer	is	appropriate,
with	notice	provided	to	the	person	requesting	the
exception.Under	existing	law,	in	the	case	of	placement	of
foster	children	in	short-term	residential	therapeutic	programs,
community	treatment	facilities,	or	group	homes,	or	in	the
case	of	admission	of	foster	children	to	children’s	crisis
residential	programs,	the	county	of	original	jurisdiction	is
required	to	retain	responsibility	and	presumptive	transfer
provisions	apply	only	if	certain	circumstances	exist.This	bill
would	declare	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	to	enact	legislation
requiring,	when	jurisdiction	of	a	child	or	youth	is	being
transferred	from	one	county	to	another,	the	transfer	county	to
assume	financial	responsibility	for	purposes	of	ensuring	that
the	child	or	youth	receives,	or	continues	to	receive,	timely
access	to	specialty	mental	health	services	when	the	child	or
youth	has	been	transferred	from	the	county	of	original
jurisdiction,	while	the	transfer	county	conducts	its
investigation	and	casework	transfer	process,	if	specified
conditions	are	met,	including,	but	not	l...	(click	bill	link	to	see
more).

Primary	Sponsors
Cecilia	Aguiar-Curry

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-08

Bill	Number
AB	2237

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

55

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=d51a9b071c075a7127fb9b5ab5e8f8bc


Title
Social	determinants	of	health:	screening	and	outreach.

Description
AB	2250,	as	introduced,	Weber.	Social	determinants	of	health:
screening	and	outreach.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health
Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health
insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	requires
health	care	service	plans	and	health	insurers	to	include
coverage	for	screening	for	various	conditions	and
circumstances,	including	adverse	childhood	experiences.
Existing	law	provides	for	the	Medi-Cal	program,	administered
by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under
which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care
services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and
funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.This	bill	would
require	a	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	health	insurance
policy	issued,	amended,	or	renewed	on	or	after	January	1,
2027,	to	include	coverage	for	screenings	for	social
determinants	of	health,	as	defined.	The	bill	would	require
providers	to	use	specified	tools	or	protocols	when
documenting	patient	responses	to	questions	asked	in	these
screenings.	The	bill	would	require	a	health	care	service	plan
or	health	insurer	to	provide	physicians	who	provide	primary
care	services	with	adequate	access	to	peer	support
specialists,	lay	health	workers,	social	workers,	or	community
health	workers	in	counties	where	the	plan	or	insurer	has
enrollees	or	insureds,	as	specified.	The	bill	would	authorize
the	respective	departments	to	adopt	guidance	to	implement
its	provisions.	Because	a	violation	of	the	bill’s	requirements	by
a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would
impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.This	bill	would	make
social	determinants	of	health	screenings	a	covered	benefit	for
Medi-Cal	beneficiaries	and	would	require	the	State
Department	of	Health	Care	Services	or	a	Medi-Cal	managed
care	plan	to	provide	reimbursement	for	those	screenings,	as
specified.The	California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to
reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs
mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish
procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would
provide	that	no	reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a
specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Akilah	Weber

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-08

Bill	Number
AB	2250

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

56

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=e2c421e1f313b2afa91363b982c4cbe1


Title
Health	care	coverage:	cost	sharing.

Description
AB	2258,	as	introduced,	Zbur.	Health	care	coverage:	cost
sharing.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service
Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of
health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed
Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act	a	crime.
Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health	insurers	by
the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	requires	a	group	or
individual	nongrandfathered	health	care	service	plan	contract
or	health	insurance	policy	to	provide	coverage	for,	and
prohibits	a	contract	or	policy	from	imposing	cost-sharing
requirements	for,	specified	preventive	care	services	and
screenings.This	bill	would	prohibit	a	group	or	individual
nongrandfathered	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	health
insurance	policy	issued,	amended,	or	renewed	on	or	after
January	1,	2025,	from	imposing	a	cost-sharing	requirement	for
items	or	services	that	are	integral	to	the	provision	of	the
above-described	preventive	care	services	and	screenings.	The
bill	would	require	those	contracts	and	policies	to	cover	items
and	services	for	those	preventive	care	services	and
screenings,	including	home	test	kits	for	sexually	transmitted
diseases	and	specified	cancer	screenings.	Because	a	willful
violation	of	this	provision	by	a	health	care	service	plan	would
be	a	crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local
program.The	California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to
reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs
mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish
procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would
provide	that	no	reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a
specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Rick	Zbur

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-08

Bill	Number
AB	2258

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	7,	2024,	9:18	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans	-	Oppose

57

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=47f650b4e7b4d9f7820e65ae6542dae3


Title
Coverage	for	naloxone	hydrochloride.

Description
AB	2271,	as	introduced,	Ortega.	Coverage	for	naloxone
hydrochloride.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,
which	is	administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income	individuals
receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,
governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.
Under	existing	law,	the	pharmacist	service	of	furnishing
naloxone	hydrochloride	is	a	covered	Medi-Cal	benefit.	The
Medi-Cal	program	also	covers	certain	medications	to	treat
opioid	use	disorders	as	part	of	narcotic	treatment	program
services,	or	as	part	of	medication-assisted	treatment	services
within	the	Drug	Medi-Cal	Treatment	Program,	as
specified.Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service
Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of
health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed
Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act	a	crime.
Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health	insurers	by
the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	sets	forth	specified
coverage	requirements	for	health	care	service	plan	contracts
and	health	insurance	policies.Under	this	bill,	prescription	or
nonprescription	naloxone	hydrochloride	or	another	drug
approved	by	the	FDA	for	the	complete	or	partial	reversal	of	an
opioid	overdose	would	be	a	covered	benefit	under	the	Medi-
Cal	program.	The	bill	would	require	a	health	care	service	plan
contract	or	health	insurance	policy,	as	specified,	to	include
coverage	for	the	same	medications	under	the	same
conditions.	The	bill	would	prohibit	a	health	care	service	plan
contract	or	health	insurance	policy	from	imposing	any	cost-
sharing	requirements	for	that	coverage	exceeding	$10	per
package	of	medication,	and	would	prohibit	a	high	deductible
health	plan	from	imposing	cost	sharing,	as	specified.	Because
a	willful	violation	of	these	provisions	by	a	health	care	service
plan	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-
mandated	local	program.	The	bill	would	make	implementation
of	its	provisions	contingent	on	funding	from	the	Naloxone
Distribution	Project.	The	bill’s	provisions	would	be	inoperative
when	the	state	records	500	or	fewer	opioid	deaths	in	a
calendar	year,	and	the	bill	would	repeal	these	provisions	on
the	following	January	1.The	California	Constitution	requires
the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for
certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions
establish	procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill
would	provide	that	no	reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act
for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Liz	Ortega

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-08

Bill	Number
AB	2271

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

58

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=b72a99b026a517fd63fad6602683f00f


Title
Joint	powers	agreements:	health	care	services.

Description
AB	2293,	as	introduced,	Mathis.	Joint	powers	agreements:
health	care	services.	Existing	law,	the	Joint	Exercise	of	Powers
Act,	authorizes	2	or	more	public	agencies	by	agreement	to
exercise	any	power	common	to	the	contracting	parties,
subject	to	meeting	certain	conditions	with	respect	to	that
agreement.	Existing	law	authorizes	a	private,	nonprofit
corporation,	until	January	1,	2023,	formed	for	the	purposes	of
providing	services	to	zero-emission	transportation	systems	or
facilities,	to	join	a	joint	powers	authority	or	enter	into	a	joint
powers	agreement	with	a	public	agency	to	facilitate	the
development,	construction,	and	operation	of	zero-emission
transportation	systems	or	facilities	that	lower	greenhouse
gases,	reduce	vehicle	congestion	and	vehicle	miles	traveled,
and	improve	public	transit	connections.	This	bill	would
authorize	one	or	more	private,	nonprofit	mutual	benefit
corporations	formed	for	purposes	of	providing	health	care
services	to	join	a	joint	powers	authority	or	enter	into	a	joint
powers	agreement	with	one	or	more	public	entities
established	under	the	act.	The	bill	would	deem	any	joint
powers	authority	formed	pursuant	to	this	provision	to	be	a
public	entity,	except	that	the	authority	would	not	have	the
power	to	incur	debt.

Primary	Sponsors
Devon	Mathis

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Bill	Number
AB	2293

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

59

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=69f31200a36380af39d327bf73cff7c4


Title
Hospital	and	Emergency	Physician	Fair	Pricing	Policies.

Description
AB	2297,	as	introduced,	Friedman.	Hospital	and	Emergency
Physician	Fair	Pricing	Policies.	Existing	law	requires	a	hospital
to	maintain	a	written	charity	care	policy	and	a	discount
payment	policy	for	uninsured	patients	or	patients	with	high
medical	costs	who	are	at	or	below	400	percent	of	the	federal
poverty	level.	Existing	law	requires	the	written	policy
regarding	discount	payments	to	also	include	a	statement	that
an	emergency	physician	who	provides	emergency	medical
services	in	a	hospital	that	provides	emergency	care	is	also
required	by	law	to	provide	discounts	to	uninsured	patients	or
patients	with	high	medical	costs	who	are	at	or	below	400
percent	of	the	federal	poverty	level.	Existing	law	authorizes
an	emergency	physician	to	choose	to	grant	eligibility	for	a
discount	payment	policy	to	patients	with	incomes	over	350%
of	the	federal	poverty	level.	Existing	law	defines	“high
medical	costs”	for	these	purposes	to	mean,	among	other
things,	specified	annual	out-of-pocket	costs	incurred	by	the
individual	at	the	hospital	or	a	hospital	that	provided
emergency	care.This	bill	would	authorize	an	emergency
physician	to	choose	to	grant	eligibility	for	a	discount	payment
policy	to	patients	with	incomes	over	400%	of	the	federal
poverty	level.	The	bill	would	also	clarify	that	out-of-pocket
costs	for	the	above-described	definition	of	“high	medical
costs”	means	any	expenses	for	medical	care	that	are	not
reimbursed	by	insurance	or	a	health	coverage	program,	such
as	Medicare	copays	or	Medi-Cal	cost	sharing.Existing	law
requires	a	hospital’s	discount	payment	policy	to	clearly	state
the	eligibility	criteria	based	upon	income,	and	authorizes	a
hospital	to	consider	the	income	and	monetary	assets	of	the
patient	in	determining	eligibility	under	its	charity	care	policy.
This	bill	would	define	charity	policy	for	those	purposes.	The
bill	would	prohibit	a	hospital	from	considering	the	monetary
assets	of	the	patient	in	determining	eligibility	for	both	the
charity	care	and	the	discount	payment	policies.	The	bill	would
instead	require	that	the	eligibility	for	charity	care	or
discounted	payments	be	determined	at	any	time	the	hospital
is	in	receipt	of	recent	pay	stubs	or	income	tax	returns.	The	bill
would	prohibit	a	hospital	from	imposing	time	limits	for
eligibility.	The	bill	would	authorize	a	hospital	to	waive	Medi-Cal
and	Medicare	cost-sharing	amounts	as	part	of	its	charity	care
program	or	discount	payment	program.Existing	law	requires	a
hospital	or	an	emergency	physician	to	establish	a	written
policy	defining	standards	and	practices	for	the	collection	of
debt.	Existing	law	authorizes	a	hospital	or	emergency
physician	to	consider	only	income	and	monetary	assets,	as
specified,	in	determining	the	amount	of	debt	a	hospital	or
emergency	physician	may	seek...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Laura	Friedman

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Bill	Number
AB	2297

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

60

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=79e0cee5b9886a5872f8e2fa9e515080


Title
Medical	devices:	Di-(2-ethylhexyl)	phthalate	(DEHP).

Description
AB	2300,	as	amended,	Wilson.	Medical	devices:	Di-(2-
ethylhexyl)	phthalate	(DEHP).	Existing	law	prohibits	a	person
or	entity	from	manufacturing,	selling,	or	distributing	in
commerce	any	toy	or	childcare	article	that	contains,	among
other	things,	Di-(2-ethylhexyl)	phthalate	(DEHP)	in
concentrations	exceeding	0.1%.This	bill	would,	commencing
January	1,	2026,	prohibit	a	person	or	entity	from
manufacturing,	selling,	or	distributing	into	commerce	in	the
State	of	California	intravenous	solution	containers	made	with
intentionally	added	DEHP.	The	bill	would,	commencing	January
1,	2031,	prohibit	a	person	or	entity	from	manufacturing,
selling,	or	distributing	into	commerce	in	the	State	of	California
intravenous	tubing	made	with	intentionally	added	DEHP	for
use	in	neonatal	intensive	care	units,	nutrition	infusions,	or
oncology	treatment	infusions.	The	bill	would	prohibit	a	person
or	entity	from	replacing	DEHP	for	revised	or	new	products	with
other	specified	ortho-phthalates.

Primary	Sponsors
Lori	Wilson

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Bill	Number
AB	2300

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

61

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=1c6e1f847a95bd37f200133b347d510b


Title
Open	meetings:	local	agencies:	teleconferences.

Description
AB	2302,	as	introduced,	Addis.	Open	meetings:	local
agencies:	teleconferences.	Existing	law,	the	Ralph	M.	Brown
Act,	requires,	with	specified	exceptions,	that	all	meetings	of	a
legislative	body,	as	defined,	of	a	local	agency	be	open	and
public	and	that	all	persons	be	permitted	to	attend	and
participate.	The	act	generally	requires	for	teleconferencing
that	the	legislative	body	of	a	local	agency	that	elects	to	use
teleconferencing	post	agendas	at	all	teleconference	locations,
identify	each	teleconference	location	in	the	notice	and	agenda
of	the	meeting	or	proceeding,	and	have	each	teleconference
location	be	accessible	to	the	public.	Existing	law	also	requires
that,	during	the	teleconference,	at	least	a	quorum	of	the
members	of	the	legislative	body	participate	from	locations
within	the	boundaries	of	the	territory	over	which	the	local
agency	exercises	jurisdiction.	The	act	provides	an	exemption
to	the	jurisdictional	requirement	for	health	authorities,	as
defined.Existing	law,	until	January	1,	2026,	authorizes	the
legislative	body	of	a	local	agency	to	use	alternative
teleconferencing	in	specified	circumstances	if,	during	the
teleconference	meeting,	at	least	a	quorum	of	the	members	of
the	legislative	body	participates	in	person	from	a	singular
physical	location	clearly	identified	on	the	agenda	that	is	open
to	the	public	and	situated	within	the	boundaries	of	the
territory	over	which	the	local	agency	exercises	jurisdiction,
and	the	legislative	body	complies	with	prescribed
requirements.	Existing	law	imposes	prescribed	restrictions	on
remote	participation	by	a	member	under	these	alternative
teleconferencing	provisions,	including	establishing	limits	on
the	number	of	meetings	a	member	may	participate	in	solely
by	teleconference	from	a	remote	location,	prohibiting	such
participation	for	a	period	of	more	than	3	consecutive	months
or	20%	of	the	regular	meetings	for	the	local	agency	within	a
calendar	year,	or	more	than	2	meetings	if	the	legislative	body
regularly	meets	fewer	than	10	times	per	calendar	year.This
bill	would	revise	those	limits,	instead	prohibiting	such
participation	for	more	than	a	specified	number	of	meetings
per	year,	based	on	how	frequently	the	legislative	body
regularly	meets.	The	bill,	for	the	purpose	of	counting
meetings	attended	by	teleconference,	would	define	a
“meeting”	as	any	number	of	meetings	of	the	legislative	body
of	a	local	agency	that	begin	on	the	same	calendar	day.The
California	Constitution	requires	local	agencies,	for	the	purpose
of	ensuring	public	access	to	the	meetings	of	public	bodies	and
the	writings	of	public	officials	and	agencies,	to	comply	with	a
statutory	enactment	that	amends	or	enacts	laws	relating	to
public	records	or	open	meetings	and	contains	findings
demonstrating	that	the	enactment	furthe...	(click	bill	link	to
see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Dawn	Addis

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Bill	Number
AB	2302

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

62

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=e2b88ef5af3469e3d080dc5d2a7f0f0c


Title
Health	and	care	facilities:	prospective	payment	system	rate
increase.

Description
AB	2303,	as	introduced,	Juan	Carrillo.	Health	and	care
facilities:	prospective	payment	system	rate	increase.	Existing
law	provides	for	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered
by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services,	under	which
qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care	services.
The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by
federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.	Existing	law	provides
that	federally	qualified	health	center	services	and	rural	health
clinic	services,	as	defined,	are	covered	benefits	under	the
Medi-Cal	program,	to	be	reimbursed,	to	the	extent	that
federal	financial	participation	is	obtained,	to	providers	on	a
per-visit	basis	and	at	a	per-visit	prospective	payment	system
rate,	as	defined.Existing	law	establishes	5	separate	minimum
wage	schedules	for	covered	health	care	employees,	as
defined,	depending	on	the	nature	of	the	employer	and
includes	increases	beginning	on	June	1,	2024.	Existing	law
generally	requires	the	State	Department	of	Public	Health	to
license,	regulate,	and	inspect	health	and	care	facilities.This
bill	would	require	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services,	on	or	before	April	1,	2025,	to	submit	a	request	for
approval	to	the	federal	Centers	for	Medicare	and	Medicaid
Services	to	authorize	a	waiver	for	specified	health	care
facilities	to	request	a	change	in	its	prospective	payment
system	rate.

Primary	Sponsors
Juan	Carrillo

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Title
Mental	health:	programs	for	seriously	emotionally	disturbed
children	and	court	wards	and	dependents.

Description
AB	2315,	as	introduced,	Lowenthal.	Mental	health:	programs
for	seriously	emotionally	disturbed	children	and	court	wards
and	dependents.	Existing	law	generally	provides	for	the
placement	of	foster	youth	in	various	placement	settings	and
governs	the	provision	of	child	welfare	services,	as	specified.
Existing	law,	the	California	Community	Care	Facilities	Act,
provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of	community	care
facilities,	including	community	treatment	facilities	(CTFs)	by
the	State	Department	of	Social	Services.Existing	law	requires
the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	to	adopt	certain
regulations	for	CTFs,	including,	among	others,	that	only
seriously	emotionally	disturbed	children,	as	defined,	either	(1)
for	whom	other	less	restrictive	mental	health	interventions
have	been	tried,	as	specified,	or	(2)	who	are	currently	placed
in	an	acute	psychiatric	hospital	or	state	hospital	or	in	a	facility
outside	the	state	for	mental	health	treatment,	and	who	may
require	periods	of	containment	to	participate	in,	and	benefit
from,	mental	health	treatment,	shall	be	placed	in	a	CTF.This
bill	would	make	technical,	nonsubstantive	changes	to	these
provisions.

Primary	Sponsors
Josh	Lowenthal

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Bill	Number
AB	2303

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2315

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

63

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=7c40f43b2a7a94b69a968344cd276754
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=ab9eb48b106dd99fc2640fa8b965dbf3


Title
California	Dignity	in	Pregnancy	and	Childbirth	Act.

Description
AB	2319,	as	introduced,	Wilson.	California	Dignity	in
Pregnancy	and	Childbirth	Act.	Existing	law	requires	the	State
Department	of	Public	Health	to	maintain	a	program	of
maternal	and	child	health,	which	may	include,	among	other
things,	facilitating	services	directed	toward	reducing	infant
mortality	and	improving	the	health	of	mothers	and	children.
Existing	law	requires	the	Office	of	Health	Equity	within	the
department	to	serve	as	a	resource	for	ensuring	that	programs
collect	and	keep	data	and	information	regarding	ethnic	and
racial	health	statistics,	and	strategies	and	programs	that
address	multicultural	health	issues,	including,	but	not	limited
to,	infant	and	maternal	mortality.	Existing	law	makes
legislative	findings	relating	to	implicit	bias	and	racial
disparities	in	maternal	mortality	rates.	Existing	law	requires	a
hospital	that	provides	perinatal	care,	and	an	alternative	birth
center	or	a	primary	clinic	that	provides	services	as	an
alternative	birth	center,	to	implement	an	evidence-based
implicit	bias	program,	as	specified,	for	all	health	care
providers	involved	in	perinatal	care	of	patients	within	those
facilities.	Existing	law	requires	the	health	care	provider	to
complete	initial	basic	training	through	the	program	and	a
refresher	course	every	2	years	thereafter,	or	on	a	more
frequent	basis	if	deemed	necessary	by	the	facility.	Existing
law	requires	the	facility	to	provide	a	certificate	of	training
completion	upon	request,	to	accept	certificates	of	completion
from	other	facilities,	and	to	offer	training	to	physicians	not
directly	employed	by	the	facility.	Existing	law	requires	the
department	to	track	and	publish	data	on	pregnancy-related
death	and	severe	maternal	morbidity,	as	specified.This	bill
would	make	a	legislative	finding	that	the	Legislature
recognizes	all	birthing	people,	including	nonbinary	persons
and	persons	of	transgender	experience.	The	bill	would	extend
the	evidence-based	implicit	bias	training	requirements	to	also
include	hospitals	that	provide	perinatal	or	prenatal	care,	as
defined.	The	bill	would	require	an	implicit	bias	program	to
include	recognition	of	intersecting	identities	and	the	potential
associated	biases.	The	bill	would	require	initial	basic	training
for	the	implicit	bias	program	to	be	completed	by	June	1,	2025,
for	current	health	care	providers,	and	within	6	months	of	their
start	date	for	new	health	care	providers,	unless	exempted.
The	bill	would	require,	by	February	1	of	each	year,	that	a
facility	provide	the	department	with	proof	of	compliance,	with
specified	requirements.	The	bill	would	authorize	the
department	to	issue	an	administrative	penalty	if	it	determines
that	a	facility	has	violated	these	provisions,	and	would	require
the	department	to	annually	post	on	its	internet	website	a	lis...
(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Lori	Wilson,	Akilah	Weber,	Mia	Bonta,	Steve	Bradford,	Isaac
Bryan,	Mike	Gipson,	Chris	Holden

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Bill	Number
AB	2319

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

64

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=58d2784039276c5f677f09fb0ac1c8db


Title
Optometry:	mobile	optometric	offices:	regulations.

Description
AB	2327,	as	introduced,	Wendy	Carrillo.	Optometry:	mobile
optometric	offices:	regulations.	Existing	law,	the	Optometry
Practice	Act,	establishes	the	State	Board	of	Optometry	within
the	Department	of	Consumer	Affairs	and	sets	forth	the	powers
and	duties	of	the	board	relating	to	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	the	practice	of	optometry.	Existing	law	requires
the	board,	by	January	1,	2023,	to	adopt	regulations
establishing	a	registry	for	the	owners	and	operators	of	mobile
optometric	offices,	as	specified.	Existing	law	prohibits	the
board,	before	January	1,	2023,	from	bringing	an	enforcement
action	against	an	owner	and	operator	of	a	mobile	optometric
office	based	solely	on	its	affiliation	status	with	an	approved
optometry	school	in	California	for	remotely	providing
optometric	service.	Existing	law	makes	these	and	other
provisions	related	to	the	permitting	and	regulation	of	mobile
optometric	offices	effective	only	until	July	1,	2025,	and
repeals	them	as	of	that	date.This	bill	would	require	the	board
to	adopt	the	above-described	regulations	by	January	1,	2026.
The	bill	would	prohibit	the	board	from	bringing	the	above-
described	enforcement	action	before	January	1,	2026.	The	bill
would	extend	the	repeal	date	of	the	provisions	related	to	the
permitting	and	regulation	of	mobile	optometric	clinics	to	July
1,	2035.

Primary	Sponsors
Wendy	Carrillo

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Title
Corrections:	health	care.

Description
AB	2332,	as	introduced,	Connolly.	Corrections:	health	care.
Existing	law	establishes	the	Department	of	Corrections	and
Rehabilitation	and	charges	it	with	various	duties	and
obligations.	Existing	law	requires	the	department	to	maintain
a	statewide	utilization	management	program,	as	defined,	in
order	to	promote	the	best	possible	patient	outcomes,
eliminate	unnecessary	medical	and	pharmacy	costs,	and
ensure	consistency	in	the	delivery	of	health	care	services,	as
specified.The	bill	would	state	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	to
enact	legislation	to	improve	inmate	health	outcomes	in	state
prisons.

Primary	Sponsors
Damon	Connolly

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Bill	Number
AB	2327

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2332

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

65

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=f20b69adf0e3781017e157438cba7977
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=af203fe35262dd3f1938c0fca684e7e4


Title
Medi-Cal:	telehealth.

Description
AB	2339,	as	introduced,	Aguiar-Curry.	Medi-Cal:	telehealth.
Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is
administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income	individuals
receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,
governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program
provisions.Under	existing	law,	subject	to	federal	approval,	in-
person,	face-to-face	contact	is	not	required	under	Medi-Cal
when	covered	health	care	services	are	provided	by	video
synchronous	interaction,	asynchronous	store	and	forward,
audio-only	synchronous	interaction,	remote	patient
monitoring,	or	other	permissible	virtual	communication
modalities,	when	those	services	and	settings	meet	certain
criteria.	Existing	law	defines	“asynchronous	store	and
forward”	as	the	transmission	of	a	patient’s	medical
information	from	an	originating	site	to	the	health	care
provider	at	a	distant	site.This	bill	would	expand	that
definition,	for	purposes	of	the	above-described	Medi-Cal
provisions,	to	include	asynchronous	electronic	transmission
initiated	directly	by	patients,	including	through	mobile
telephone	applications.Existing	law	prohibits	a	health	care
provider	from	establishing	a	new	patient	relationship	with	a
Medi-Cal	beneficiary	via	asynchronous	store	and	forward,
telephonic	(audio-only)	synchronous	interaction,	remote
patient	monitoring,	or	other	virtual	communication	modalities,
except	as	specified.	Among	those	exceptions,	existing	law
authorizes	a	health	care	provider	to	establish	a	new	patient
relationship	using	an	audio-only	synchronous	interaction
when	the	visit	is	related	to	sensitive	services,	as	defined,	and
when	established	in	accordance	with	department-specific
requirements	and	consistent	with	federal	and	state	law,
regulations,	and	guidance.This	bill	would	expand	that
exception	to	include	asynchronous	store	and	forward	when
the	visit	is	related	to	sensitive	services,	as	specified.	The	bill
would	also	authorize	a	health	care	provider	to	establish	a	new
patient	relationship	using	asynchronous	store	and	forward
when	the	patient	requests	an	asynchronous	store	and	forward
modality,	as	specified.Existing	law	authorizes	a	health	care
provider	to	establish	a	new	patient	relationship	using	an
audio-only	synchronous	interaction	when	the	patient	requests
an	audio-only	modality	or	attests	that	they	do	not	have
access	to	video,	as	specified.This	bill	would	remove,	from	that
exception,	the	option	of	the	patient	attesting	that	they	do	not
have	access	to	video.

Primary	Sponsors
Cecilia	Aguiar-Curry

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Bill	Number
AB	2339

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

66

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=33a2626d1219bdf509681c0a35a6c35a


Title
Medi-Cal:	EPSDT	services.

Description
AB	2340,	as	introduced,	Bonta.	Medi-Cal:	EPSDT	services.
Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is
administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income	individuals
receive	medically	necessary	health	care	services,	through	fee-
for-service	or	managed	care	delivery	systems.	The	Medi-Cal
program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid
program	provisions.	Under	existing	law,	early	and	periodic
screening,	diagnostic,	and	treatment	(EPSDT)	services	are
covered	under	Medi-Cal	for	an	individual	under	21	years	of
age	in	accordance	with	certain	federal	provisions.Under
existing	law,	for	an	individual	under	21	years	of	age,	a	service
is	medically	necessary	if	the	service	meets	the	standards	set
forth	in	one	of	those	federal	EPSDT	provisions,	including	the
correction	or	amelioration	of	defects	and	physical	and	mental
illnesses	and	conditions	discovered	by	the	screening	services,
whether	or	not	those	services	are	covered	under	the	state
plan.	Existing	law	sets	forth	other	provisions	on	medical
necessity	standards	for	covered	benefits	provided	in	a	Medi-
Cal	behavioral	health	delivery	system.This	bill	would	prohibit
limits	on	EPSDT	services	when	those	services	are	medically
necessary.	The	bill	would	require	a	Medi-Cal	managed	care
plan	to	cover	all	medically	necessary	EPSDT	services,	unless
otherwise	carved	out	of	the	contract	between	the	managed
care	plan	and	the	department,	regardless	of	whether	those
services	are	covered	under	the	Medi-Cal	State	Plan.The	bill
would	establish	definitions	for	“EPSDT	services”	and
“medically	necessary”	by	making	references	to	the	above-
described	provisions.	The	bill	would	specify	that	EPSDT
services	also	include	all	age-specific	assessments	and
services	listed	under	the	most	current	periodicity	schedule	by
the	American	Academy	of	Pediatrics	(AAP)	and	Bright	Futures,
and	any	other	medically	necessary	assessments	and	services
that	exceed	those	listed	by	AAP	and	Bright	Futures.The	bill
would	require	the	department	and	its	contractors	to
accurately	reflect	these	provisions	in	any	model	evidence-of-
coverage	documents,	beneficiary	handbooks,	and	related
material.

Primary	Sponsors
Mia	Bonta

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Bill	Number
AB	2340

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

67

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=d35795934122713bf915f76f182bb6d9


Title
Medi-Cal:	critical	access	hospitals:	islands.

Description
AB	2342,	as	introduced,	Lowenthal.	Medi-Cal:	critical	access
hospitals:	islands.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal
program,	which	is	administered	by	the	State	Department	of
Health	Care	Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income
individuals	receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal
program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid
program	provisions.Under	existing	law,	a	hospital	designated
by	the	department	as	a	critical	access	hospital,	and	certified
as	such	by	the	Secretary	of	the	United	States	Department	of
Health	and	Human	Services	under	the	federal	Medicare	rural
hospital	flexibility	program,	is	eligible	for	supplemental
payments	for	Medi-Cal	covered	outpatient	services	rendered
to	Medi-Cal	eligible	persons.	Existing	law	conditions	those
payments	on	receipt	of	federal	financial	participation	and	an
appropriation	in	the	annual	Budget	Act	for	the	nonfederal
share	of	those	payments,	with	supplemental	payments	being
apportioned	among	critical	access	hospitals	based	on	their
number	of	Medi-Cal	outpatient	visits.This	bill,	subject	to
appropriation	and	the	availability	of	federal	funding,	would
require	the	department	to	provide	an	annual	supplemental
payment,	for	services	covered	under	Medi-Cal,	to	each	critical
access	hospital	that	operates	on	an	island	that	is	located
more	than	10	miles	offshore	of	the	mainland	coast	of	the
state	but	is	still	within	the	jurisdiction	of	the	state.	The	bill
would	specify	the	formula	of	the	payment	amount,	which
would	be	in	addition	to	any	supplemental	payment	described
above.This	bill	would	make	legislative	findings	and
declarations	as	to	the	necessity	of	a	special	statute	for	critical
access	hospitals	operating	on	those	islands.

Primary	Sponsors
Josh	Lowenthal

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Bill	Number
AB	2342

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

68

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=eb3f766d0e6205675f86c4f8748a4059


Title
Psychiatric	advance	directives.

Description
AB	2352,	as	introduced,	Irwin.	Psychiatric	advance	directives.
Existing	law	establishes	the	requirements	for	executing	a
written	advance	health	care	directive	that	is	legally	sufficient
to	direct	health	care	decisions.	Existing	law	provides	a	form
that	an	individual	may	use	or	modify	to	create	an	advance
health	care	directive.	The	statutory	form	includes	a	space	to
designate	an	agent	to	make	health	care	decisions,	as	well	as
optional	spaces	to	designate	a	first	alternate	agent	and	2nd
alternate	agent.	Existing	law	defines	“health	care	decision,”
as	specified.	Existing	law	authorizes	an	individual	to	provide
an	“individual	health	care	instruction”	as	the	individual’s
authorized	written	or	oral	direction	regarding	a	health	care
decision	for	the	individual.	Existing	law	confirms	that	the
provisions	relating	to	execution	of	advance	health	directives
do	not	prohibit	the	execution	of	a	voluntary	standalone
psychiatric	advance	directive.	Existing	law	defines	“advance
psychiatric	directive”	as	a	legal	document,	executed	on	a
voluntary	basis	by	a	person	who	has	the	capacity	to	make
medical	decisions	and	in	accordance	with	the	requirements
for	an	advance	health	care	directive	in	this	division,	that
allows	a	person	with	mental	illness	to	protect	their	autonomy
and	ability	to	direct	their	own	care	by	documenting	their
preferences	for	treatment	in	advance	of	a	mental	health
crisis.This	bill	would	declare	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	to
enact	legislation	relating	to	psychiatric	advance	directives.

Primary	Sponsors
Jacqui	Irwin

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Bill	Number
AB	2352

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

69

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=877b96d763a277b4d34e2f4814c2f973


Title
Medi-Cal:	monthly	maintenance	amount:	personal	and
incidental	needs.

Description
AB	2356,	as	introduced,	Wallis.	Medi-Cal:	monthly
maintenance	amount:	personal	and	incidental	needs.	Existing
law	provides	for	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered
by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services,	under	which
qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care	services.
The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by
federal	Medicaid	provisions.	Qualified	individuals	under	the
Medi-Cal	program	include	medically	needy	persons	and
medically	needy	family	persons	who	meet	the	required
eligibility	criteria,	including	applicable	income
requirements.Existing	law	requires	the	department	to
establish	income	levels	for	maintenance	need	at	the	lowest
levels	that	reasonably	permit	a	medically	needy	person	to
meet	their	basic	needs	for	food,	clothing,	and	shelter,	and	for
which	federal	financial	participation	will	still	be	provided
under	applicable	federal	law.	In	calculating	the	income	of	a
medically	needy	person	in	a	medical	institution	or	nursing
facility,	or	a	person	receiving	institutional	or	noninstitutional
services	from	a	Program	of	All-Inclusive	Care	for	the	Elderly
organization,	the	required	monthly	maintenance	amount
includes	an	amount	providing	for	personal	and	incidental
needs	in	the	amount	of	not	less	than	$35	per	month	while	a
patient.	Existing	law	authorizes	the	department	to	increase,
by	regulation,	this	amount	as	necessitated	by	increasing	costs
of	personal	and	incidental	needs.This	bill	would	increase	the
monthly	maintenance	amount	for	personal	and	incidental
needs	from	$35	to	$50,	and	would	require	that	the	amount	be
increased	annually,	as	specified.	The	bill	would	make	these
changes	subject	to	receipt	of	necessary	federal	approvals.

Primary	Sponsors
Greg	Wallis

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Title
Medi-Cal.

Description
AB	2376,	as	introduced,	Bains.	Medi-Cal.	Existing	law
establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by
the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under
which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care
services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and
funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.	Existing	law
sets	forth	a	schedule	of	benefits	under	the	Medi-Cal
program.This	bill	would	state	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	to
enact	legislation	to	allow	for	acute	care	hospitals	that	accept
Medi-Cal	coverage	to	directly	bill	for	inpatient	detox	services
and	Medically	Assisted	Treatment	for	substance	abuse	issues,
as	specified.

Primary	Sponsors
Jasmeet	Bains

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Bill	Number
AB	2356

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2376

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

70

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=acc7a96892f257e54808fd0edc479954
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=4ae49641801f9ae55045585a2598031f


Title
Local	Youth	Mental	Health	Boards.

Description
AB	2411,	as	introduced,	Wendy	Carrillo.	Local	Youth	Mental
Health	Boards.	Existing	law,	the	Bronzan-McCorquodale	Act,
contains	provisions	governing	the	operation	and	financing	of
community	mental	health	services	for	the	mentally	disordered
in	every	county	through	locally	administered	and	locally
controlled	community	mental	health	programs.	This	bill	would
require	each	community	mental	health	service	to	have	a	local
youth	mental	health	board	(board),	appointed	as	specified,
consisting	of	members	between	15	and	23	years	of	age,
inclusive,	at	least	1/2	of	whom	are,	to	the	extent	possible,
mental	health	consumers	who	are	receiving,	or	have	received,
mental	health	services,	or	siblings	or	close	family	members	of
mental	health	consumers	and	1/2	of	whom	are,	to	the	extent
possible,	enrolled	in	schools	in	the	county.	The	bill	would
require	the	board,	among	other	duties,	to	review	and	evaluate
the	local	public	mental	health	system	and	advise	the
governing	body	and	school	district	governing	bodies	on
mental	health	services	related	to	youth	that	are	delivered	by
the	local	mental	health	agency	or	local	behavioral	health
agency,	school	districts,	or	others,	as	applicable.	The	bill,
upon	appropriation	by	the	Legislature,	would	require	the
governing	body	to	provide	a	budget	for	the	board	sufficient	to
facilitate	the	purposes,	duties,	and	responsibilities	of	the
board.	By	increasing	the	duties	of	local	governments,	this	bill
would	impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The	California
Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies
and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.
Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for	making	that
reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that,	if	the	Commission
on	State	Mandates	determines	that	the	bill	contains	costs
mandated	by	the	state,	reimbursement	for	those	costs	shall
be	made	pursuant	to	the	statutory	provisions	noted	above.

Primary	Sponsors
Wendy	Carrillo,	Dave	Cortese

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-12

Bill	Number
AB	2411

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

71

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=45d45fc074a42cda3ad6e9ab351ec44e


Title
Medi-Cal:	Community-Based	Adult	Services.

Description
AB	2428,	as	introduced,	Calderon.	Medi-Cal:	Community-
Based	Adult	Services.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal
program,	which	is	administered	by	the	State	Department	of
Health	Care	Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income
individuals	receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal
program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid
program	provisions.	Existing	law	requires	the	department	to
standardize	applicable	covered	Medi-Cal	benefits	provided	by
Medi-Cal	managed	care	plans	under	comprehensive	risk
contracts	with	the	department	on	a	statewide	basis	and
across	all	models	of	Medi-Cal	managed	care,	in	accordance
with	the	Terms	and	Conditions	of	the	California	Advancing	and
Innovating	Medi-Cal	(CalAIM)	initiative.Existing	law	requires,
commencing	January	1,	2022,	that	Community-Based	Adult
Services	(CBAS)	continue	to	be	available	as	a	capitated
benefit	for	a	qualified	Medi-Cal	beneficiary	under	a
comprehensive	risk	contract	with	an	applicable	Medi-Cal
managed	care	plan.	For	contract	periods	during	which	that
provision	is	implemented,	existing	law	requires	each
applicable	plan	to	reimburse	a	network	provider	furnishing
CBAS	to	a	Medi-Cal	beneficiary	enrolled	in	that	plan,	and
requires	each	network	provider	of	CBAS	to	accept	the
payment	amount	that	the	network	provider	of	CBAS	would	be
paid	for	the	service	in	the	Medi-Cal	fee-for-service	delivery
system,	as	specified,	unless	the	plan	and	network	provider
mutually	agree	to	reimbursement	in	a	different	amount.This
bill,	for	purposes	of	the	mutual	agreement	between	a	Medi-
Cal	managed	care	plan	and	a	network	provider,	would	require
that	the	reimbursement	be	in	an	amount	equal	to	or	greater
than	the	amount	paid	for	the	service	in	the	Medi-Cal	fee-for-
service	delivery	system.	Under	the	bill,	no	later	than	January
1,	2025,	for	payments	commencing	on	July	1,	2019,	a	Medi-
Cal	managed	care	plan	that	has	not	reimbursed	a	network
provider	furnishing	CBAS	according	to	those	provisions	would
be	required	to	reimburse	the	network	provider	the	difference
between	the	amount	required	and	the	amount	that	has	been
paid.Existing	law	requires	that	capitation	rates	paid	by	the
department	to	an	applicable	Medi-Cal	managed	care	plan	be
actuarially	sound	and	account	for	the	payment	levels	in	the
above-described	provisions	as	applicable.This	bill	would
prohibit	the	changes	made	by	the	bill	to	the	above-described
reimbursement	from	being	construed	as	requiring	the
department	to	retroactively	recalculate	the	capitation	rates
for	purposes	of	any	reimbursement	of	the	difference	between
the	amount	required	and	the	amount	that	has	been	paid.

Primary	Sponsors
Lisa	Calderon,	Bill	Dodd

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Bill	Number
AB	2428

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

72

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=11d2a558c2e654eab71f6dfb9fb0efd4


Title
Health	care	coverage:	multiple	employer	welfare
arrangements.

Description
AB	2434,	as	amended,	Grayson.	Health	care	coverage:
multiple	employer	welfare	arrangements.	Existing	law,	the
Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for
the	licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by
the	Department	of	Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful
violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the
regulation	of	health	insurers	by	the	Department	of
Insurance.Existing	federal	law,	the	federal	Employee
Retirement	Income	Security	Act	of	1974	(ERISA),	authorizes
multiple	employer	welfare	arrangements	(MEWAs)	in	which	2
or	more	employers	join	together	to	provide	health	care
coverage	for	employees	or	to	their	beneficiaries.	Existing	law
authorizes	an	association	of	employers	to	offer	a	large	group
health	care	service	plan	contract	or	large	group	health
insurance	policy,	consistent	with	ERISA,	if	certain
requirements	are	met.	Until	January	1,	2026,	existing	law	also
authorizes	an	association	of	employers	to	offer	a	large	group
health	care	service	plan	contract	or	large	group	health
insurance	policy	to	small	group	employer	members	of	the
association,	consistent	with	ERISA,	if	certain	requirements	are
met,	including	that	the	association	is	headquartered	in	this
state,	was	established	before	March	23,	2010,	and	is	the
sponsor	of	a	MEWA,	and	that	the	contract	or	policy	includes
coverage	of	employees	of	an	association	member	in	the
biomedical	industry.This	bill	would	authorize	an	association	of
employers	to	offer	a	large	group	health	care	service	plan
contract	or	large	group	health	insurance	policy	to	small	group
employer	members	of	the	association,	consistent	with	ERISA,
if	certain	requirements	are	met,	including	that	the	association
was	established	before	January	1,	1966,	and	is	the	sponsor	of
a	MEWA,	and	that	the	contract	or	policy	includes	coverage	of
employees	of	an	association	member	in	the	engineering,
surveying,	or	design	industry.	The	bill,	on	or	after	June	1,
2025,	would	prohibit	a	plan	or	insurer	from	marketing,	issuing,
amending,	renewing,	or	delivering	large	employer	coverage	to
an	association	or	MEWA	that	provides	a	benefit	to	a	resident
in	this	state	unless	the	association	and	MEWA	have	registered
and	are	in	compliance	with	the	requirements	described
above,	or	have	filed	applications	for	registration,	as	specified,
that	are	pending	with	the	department.	The	bill	would
authorize	the	Department	of	Managed	Health	Care	and	the
Department	of	Insurance	to	issue	guidance	to	health	care
service	plans	and	health	insurers	regarding	these
requirements,	as	specified.	Because	a	willful	violation	of	these
provisions	by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the
bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The
California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	loca...
(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Tim	Grayson

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Bill	Number
AB	2434

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

73

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=417657327acded6d179ef3347cc2aece


Title
California	Health	Benefit	Exchange.

Description
AB	2435,	as	introduced,	Maienschein.	California	Health
Benefit	Exchange.	Existing	federal	law,	the	Patient	Protection
and	Affordable	Care	Act	(PPACA),	requires	each	state	to
establish	an	American	Health	Benefit	Exchange	to	facilitate
the	purchase	of	qualified	health	benefit	plans	by	qualified
individuals	and	qualified	small	employers.	Existing	state	law
creates	the	California	Health	Benefit	Exchange,	also	known	as
Covered	California,	governed	by	an	executive	board,	to
facilitate	the	enrollment	of	qualified	individuals	and	qualified
small	employers	in	qualified	health	plans	as	required	under
PPACA.	Existing	law	specifies	the	powers	of	the	executive
board.	Existing	law	authorizes	the	executive	board	to	adopt
necessary	rules	and	regulations	by	emergency	regulations
until	January	1,	2025,	with	the	exception	of	regulations
implementing	prescribed	provisions	relating	to	criminal
background	history	checks	for	persons	with	access	to
confidential,	personal,	or	financial	information.	Existing	law
authorizes	the	Office	of	Administrative	Law	to	approve	more
than	2	readoptions	of	emergency	regulations	until	January	1,
2030.	Existing	law	provides	that	these	extensions	apply	to	a
regulation	adopted	before	January	1,	2022.This	bill	would
extend	the	authority	of	the	executive	board	to	adopt
necessary	rules	and	regulations	by	emergency	regulations
until	January	1,	2030,	and	would	extend	the	authority	of	the
Office	of	Administrative	Law	to	approve	more	than	2
readoptions	of	emergency	regulations	until	January	1,	2035.
The	bill	would	provide	that	these	prescribed	time	extensions
apply	to	a	regulation	adopted	before	January	1,	2025.

Primary	Sponsors
Brian	Maienschein

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Title
Healing	arts:	expedited	licensure	process:	gender-affirming
health	care	and	gender-affirming	mental	health	care.

Description
AB	2442,	as	introduced,	Zbur.	Healing	arts:	expedited
licensure	process:	gender-affirming	health	care	and	gender-
affirming	mental	health	care.	Existing	law	requires	the	Medical
Board	of	California,	the	Osteopathic	Medical	Board	of
California,	the	Board	of	Registered	Nursing,	and	the	Physician
Assistant	Board	to	expedite	the	licensure	process	for	an
applicant	who	demonstrates	that	they	intend	to	provide
abortions	within	the	scope	of	practice	of	their	license,	and
specifies	the	manner	in	which	the	applicant	is	required	to
demonstrate	their	intent.	This	bill	would	also	require	those
boards	to	expedite	the	licensure	process	for	an	applicant	who
demonstrates	that	they	intend	to	provide	gender-affirming
health	care	and	gender-affirming	mental	health	care,	as
defined,	within	the	scope	of	practice	of	their	license,	and
would	specify	the	manner	in	which	the	applicant	would	be
required	to	demonstrate	their	intent.

Primary	Sponsors
Rick	Zbur

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Bill	Number
AB	2435

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2442

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

74

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=89497a64959a94af34d7746d0fb7d3ce
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=a299fc13d92a4e22fc8c36814b5fb422


Title
Prescriptions:	personal	use	pharmaceutical	disposal	system.

Description
AB	2445,	as	introduced,	Wallis.	Prescriptions:	personal	use
pharmaceutical	disposal	system.	Existing	law,	the	Pharmacy
Law,	provides	for	the	licensing	and	regulation	of	pharmacists
by	the	California	State	Board	of	Pharmacy	in	the	Department
of	Consumer	Affairs.	Existing	law	prohibits	a	pharmacist	from
dispensing	a	prescription	unless	the	prescription	is	in	a
container	that	meets	the	requirements	of	state	and	federal
law	and	is	correctly	labeled	with	certain	information.	Existing
law	requires	a	pharmacy	or	practitioner	that	dispenses	a
prescription	drug	containing	an	opioid	to	a	patient	for
outpatient	use	to	prominently	display	a	specified	notice	on
the	label	or	container	of	the	prescription	drug	containing	an
opioid.	Existing	law,	when	no	other	penalty	is	provided,	makes
a	knowing	violation	of	the	Pharmacy	Law	a	misdemeanor	and,
in	all	other	instances,	makes	a	violation	punishable	as	an
infraction.This	bill	would	prohibit	a	dispenser	from	dispensing
a	prescription	drug	containing	an	opioid	to	a	patient	for
outpatient	use	unless	the	dispenser	also	provides	a	personal
use	pharmaceutical	disposal	system,	as	defined,	to	the
patient.	The	bill	would	provide	that	its	provisions	become
operative	only	upon	the	Legislature	enacting	a	framework	for
the	governing	of	a	personal	use	pharmaceutical	disposal
system	program.	By	expanding	the	scope	of	a	crime,	the	bill
would	impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The	California
Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies
and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.
Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for	making	that
reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no	reimbursement
is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Greg	Wallis

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Title
Medi-Cal:	diapers.

Description
AB	2446,	as	introduced,	Ortega.	Medi-Cal:	diapers.	Existing
law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered
by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under
which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	healthcare
services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	by,	and
funded	pursuant	to,	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.
Existing	law	establishes	a	schedule	of	covered	benefits	under
the	Medi-Cal	program,	including	incontinence	supplies.This	bill
would	add	to	the	schedule	of	Medi-Cal	benefits	diapers	for
infants	or	toddlers	with	certain	conditions,	such	as	a	urinary
tract	infection	and	colic,	among	others.	The	bill	would
establish	diapers	as	a	covered	benefit	for	a	child	greater	than
3	years	of	age	with	a	condition	that	contributes	to
incontinence.	The	bill	would	require	the	department	to	seek
any	and	all	available	federal	funding	to	implement	this
provision	and	would	implement	these	provision	only	to	the
extent	that	the	department	obtains	any	necessary	federal
approvals	or	waivers.

Primary	Sponsors
Liz	Ortega

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Bill	Number
AB	2445

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2446

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

75

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=0f7212f327f659cd328b3dd0cb713860
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=c9815a7e355465ba94c972160fd925d9


Title
Health	care	coverage:	qualified	autism	service	providers.

Description
AB	2449,	as	introduced,	Ta.	Health	care	coverage:	qualified
autism	service	providers.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health
Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation
of	health	insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing
law	requires	a	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	health
insurance	policy	to	provide	coverage	for	behavioral	health
treatment	provided	for	pervasive	developmental	disorder	or
autism	and	requires	a	plan	or	policy	to	maintain	an	adequate
network	of	qualified	autism	service	providers.	Under	existing
law,	a	“qualified	autism	service	provider”	means,	among
other	things,	a	person	who	is	certified	by	a	national	entity,
such	as	the	Behavior	Analyst	Certification	Board,	with	a
certification	that	is	accredited	by	the	National	Commission	for
Certifying	Agencies.This	bill	would	clarify	that	the	Qualified
Applied	Behavior	Analysis	Credentialing	Board	is	also	a
national	entity	that	may	certify	a	qualified	autism	service
provider,	and	would	authorize	the	certification	to	be
accredited	by	the	American	National	Standards	Institute.

Primary	Sponsors
Tri	Ta

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Title
Mental	health.

Description
AB	2466,	as	introduced,	Wendy	Carrillo.	Mental	health.
Existing	law	establishes	various	state	and	local	programs	for
the	provision	of	mental	health	services	within	the	jurisdiction
of	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services,	the	State
Department	of	Public	Health,	the	California	Behavioral	Health
Planning	Council,	the	Department	of	Health	Care	Access	and
Information,	and	county	public	health	or	behavioral	health
departments,	among	other	entities.	Under	existing	law,	those
programs,	services,	and	provisions	include,	among	others,	the
Mental	Health	Services	Act,	the	Lanterman-Petris-Short	Act,
the	Children	and	Youth	Behavioral	Health	Initiative,	the
Behavioral	Health	Continuum	Infrastructure	Program,	the
Licensed	Mental	Health	Service	Provider	Education	Program,
and	Medi-Cal	specialty	mental	health	services.This	bill	would
state	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	to	enact	legislation	relating
to	mental	health.

Primary	Sponsors
Wendy	Carrillo

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Bill	Number
AB	2449

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2466

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

76

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=2e63629d7b175e156ba4d9923b7b4db7
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=d8931f490eacb711c667a0fac5d48134


Title
Health	care	coverage	for	menopause.

Description
AB	2467,	as	amended,	Bauer-Kahan.	Health	care	coverage	for
menopause.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service
Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of
health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed
Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act	a	crime.
Existing	law	also	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health	insurers
by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	sets	forth
specified	coverage	requirements	for	health	care	service	plan
contracts	and	health	insurance	policies.This	bill	would	require
a	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	health	insurance	policy,
except	for	a	specialized	contract	or	policy,	that	is	issued,
amended,	or	renewed	on	or	after	January	1,	2025,	to	include
coverage	for	treatment	of	perimenopause	and	menopause.
Because	a	willful	violation	of	these	provisions	by	a	health	care
service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-
mandated	local	program.The	California	Constitution	requires
the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for
certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions
establish	procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill
would	provide	that	no	reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act
for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Rebecca	Bauer-Kahan

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Bill	Number
AB	2467

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	18,	2024,	5:16	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans	-	Oppose

77

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=bfbc0a19a62313d57932a85783f40534


Title
Incarcerated	persons:	health	records.

Description
AB	2478,	as	introduced,	Ramos.	Incarcerated	persons:	health
records.	Existing	law,	the	Confidentiality	of	Medical
Information	Act,	prohibits	a	health	care	provider,	a	contractor,
or	a	health	care	service	plan	from	disclosing	medical
information,	as	defined,	regarding	a	patient	of	the	provider	or
an	enrollee	or	subscriber	of	the	health	care	service	plan
without	first	obtaining	an	authorization,	except	as	specified.
Existing	law	authorizes,	among	other	things,	mental	health
records	to	be	disclosed	by	a	county	correctional	facility,
county	medical	facility,	state	correctional	facility,	or	state
hospital,	as	specified.Existing	law	requires,	when	jurisdiction
of	an	inmate	is	transferred	from	or	between	the	Department
of	Corrections	and	Rehabilitation,	the	State	Department	of
State	Hospitals,	and	county	agencies	caring	for	inmates,
those	agencies	to	disclose,	by	electronic	transmission	when
possible,	mental	health	records,	as	defined,	regarding	each
transferred	inmate	who	received	mental	health	services	while
in	custody	of	the	transferring	facility,	as	specified.	Existing
law	requires	mental	health	records	to	be	disclosed	to	ensure
sufficient	mental	health	history	is	available	for	the	purpose	of
satisfying	specified	requirements	relating	to	parole	and	to
ensure	the	continuity	of	mental	health	treatment	of	an	inmate
being	transferred	between	those	facilities.	Existing	law
requires	all	transmissions	made	pursuant	to	those	provisions
to	comply	with	specified	provisions	of	state	and	federal	law,
including	the	Confidentiality	of	Medical	Information	Act.This
bill	would	require,	when	jurisdiction	of	an	inmate	is
transferred	from	or	between	a	county	correctional	facility,	a
county	medical	facility,	the	State	Department	of	State
Hospitals,	and	a	county	agency	caring	for	inmates,	those
agencies	to	disclose,	by	electronic	transmission	if	possible,
mental	health	records,	as	defined,	regarding	each	transferred
inmate	who	received	mental	health	services	while	in	custody
of	the	transferring	facility,	as	specified.	The	bill	would	require
mental	health	records	to	be	disclosed	to	ensure	sufficient
mental	health	history	is	available	to	ensure	the	continuity	of
mental	health	treatment	of	an	inmate	being	transferred
between	those	facilities.This	bill	would	require	all	county
behavioral	health	departments	and	contractors	to	establish
and	maintain	a	secure	and	standardized	system	for	sharing
inmate	mental	health	records,	as	specified.	The	bill	would
require	each	county	to	prepare	a	report	containing
information	about	the	effectiveness	of	the	data	sharing,	the
continuity	of	care	measures,	and	an	evaluation	on	the	impact
of	inmate	well-being,	safety,	and	recidivism	rates.	The	bill
would	require	the	report	to	be	submitted	to	the	Legislature	on
or	befor...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
James	Ramos

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Bill	Number
AB	2478

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

78

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=fbec9098e0926af9864bbd799e5f3729


Title
Health	care:	provider	enrollment	and	certification.

Description
AB	2494,	as	introduced,	Calderon.	Health	care:	provider
enrollment	and	certification.	Existing	law	requires	the
Department	of	Health	Care	Services	to	implement,	on	or
before	July	1,	2005,	a	process	that	allows	an	applicant	for
licensure	as	a	primary	care	clinic	to	submit	an	application	for
review	of	the	clinic’s	qualifications	for	participation	in
specified	programs	simultaneously	with	any	review	for
enrollment	and	certification	as	a	provider	in	the	Medi-Cal
program,	and	if	approved	for	participation	in	a	program,	to	be
enrolled	or	certified,	or	both,	as	a	provider	in	the	program,
subsequent	to	certification	and	enrollment	as	a	provider	in	the
Medi-Cal	program.This	bill	would	make	technical,
nonsubstantive	changes	to	that	provision.

Primary	Sponsors
Lisa	Calderon

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Title
Dentistry:	deep	sedation	and	general	anesthesia.

Description
AB	2526,	as	introduced,	Gipson.	Dentistry:	deep	sedation	and
general	anesthesia.	The	Dental	Practice	Act	provides	for	the
licensure	and	regulation	of	dentists	by	the	Dental	Board	of
California	within	the	Department	of	Consumer	Affairs.	The	act,
among	other	things,	prescribes	requirements	for	dentists	who
administer	or	order	the	administration	of	deep	sedation	or
general	anesthesia,	as	those	terms	are	defined.This	bill	would
make	a	nonsubstantive	change	to	the	provision	that	defines
those	terms.

Primary	Sponsors
Mike	Gipson

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Bill	Number
AB	2494

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2526

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

79

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=3622d5887ad0389ffe10bf2a557e0090
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=fa0f776e8795910ed1cb54720cdb6663


Title
Behavioral	health	and	wellness	screenings:	notice.

Description
AB	2556,	as	introduced,	Jackson.	Behavioral	health	and
wellness	screenings:	notice.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene
Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the
licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the
Department	of	Managed	Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful
violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the
regulation	of	health	insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.
This	bill	would	require	a	health	care	service	plan	or	insurer	to
provide	to	each	legal	guardian	of	a	patient,	enrollee,	or
insured,	10	to	18	years	of	age,	a	written	or	electronic	notice
regarding	the	benefits	of	a	behavioral	health	and	wellness
screening,	as	defined.	The	bill	would	require	a	health	care
service	plan	or	insurer	to	provide	the	notice	at	least	once
every	2	years	in	the	preferred	method	of	the	legal	guardian.
Because	a	violation	of	the	bill’s	requirements	relative	to	a
health	care	service	plan	would	be	crimes,	the	bill	would
impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.	The	California
Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies
and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.
Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for	making	that
reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no	reimbursement
is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Corey	Jackson

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-14

Bill	Number
AB	2556

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	18,	2024,	5:29	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans	-	Oppose

80

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=d9f9767783b9a3e03c79faa9c50fc25a


Title
Newborn	screening	program.

Description
AB	2563,	as	introduced,	Essayli.	Newborn	screening	program.
Existing	law	requires	the	State	Department	of	Public	Health	to
establish	a	program	for	the	development,	provision,	and
evaluation	of	genetic	disease	testing.	Existing	law	establishes
the	continuously	appropriated	Genetic	Disease	Testing	Fund
(GDTF),	consisting	of	fees	paid	for	newborn	screening	tests,
and	states	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	that	all	costs	of	the
genetic	disease	testing	program	be	fully	supported	by	fees
paid	for	newborn	screening	tests,	which	are	deposited	in	the
GDTF.	Existing	law	also	authorizes	moneys	in	the	GDTF	to	be
used	for	the	expansion	of	the	Genetic	Disease	Branch
Screening	Information	System	to	include	cystic	fibrosis,
biotinidase,	severe	combined	immunodeficiency	(SCID),	and
adrenoleukodystrophy	(ALD)	and	exempts	the	expansion	of
contracts	for	this	purpose	from	certain	provisions	of	the	Public
Contract	Code,	the	Government	Code,	and	the	State
Administrative	Manual,	as	specified.This	bill	would	require	the
department	to	expand	statewide	screening	of	newborns	to
include	screening	for	Duchenne	Muscular	Dystrophy.	By
expanding	the	purposes	for	which	moneys	from	the	fund	may
be	expended,	this	bill	would	make	an	appropriation.

Primary	Sponsors
Bill	Essayli

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-14

Title
Nursing.

Description
AB	2578,	as	introduced,	Flora.	Nursing.	Existing	law,	the
Nursing	Practice	Act,	establishes	the	Board	of	Registered
Nursing	to	license	and	regulate	the	practice	of	nursing.	The
act	prohibits	a	person	from	engaging	in	the	practice	of
nursing	without	an	active	license	but	authorizes	a	student	to
render	nursing	services	incidental	to	the	course	of	study,	as
specified.	This	bill	would	make	a	nonsubstantive	change	to
those	provisions.

Primary	Sponsors
Heath	Flora

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-14

Bill	Number
AB	2563

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2578

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

81

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=d7f6b5c7d24dc094396ba68a854623d0
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=3e2ccf26fa4dbfdaf736b95a08501075


Title
Mello-Granlund	Older	Californians	Act.

Description
AB	2636,	as	introduced,	Bains.	Mello-Granlund	Older
Californians	Act.	Existing	law	requires	the	California
Department	of	Aging	to	administer	the	Mello-Granlund	Older
Californians	Act	(act),	which	establishes	various	programs	that
serve	older	individuals,	defined	as	persons	60	years	of	age	or
older,	except	as	specified.	The	act	requires	the	department	to
designate	various	private	nonprofit	or	public	agencies	as	area
agencies	on	aging	to	work	within	a	planning	and	service	area
and	provide	a	broad	array	of	social	and	nutritional	services.
Under	the	act,	the	department’s	mission	is	to	provide
leadership	to	those	agencies	in	developing	systems	of	home-
and	community-based	services	that	maintain	individuals	in
their	own	homes	or	least	restrictive	homelike
environments.This	bill	would	recast	and	revise	various
provisions	of	the	act,	including	updating	findings	and
declarations	relating	to	statistics	and	issues	of	concern	to	the
older	adult	population,	and	replacing	references	throughout
the	act	from	“senior,”	and	similar	terminology	to	“older
adult.”	The	bill	would	repeal	obsolete	provisions,	such	as	the
Senior	Center	Bond	Act	of	1984.The	bill	would	expand	existing
provisions	relating	to	volunteering,	including	establishing	the
Older	Adults	Volunteer	Corps	Support	Center,	to	serve	as	a
clearinghouse	for	volunteer	opportunities	with	older	adults.
The	center	would	make	funds	available	to	area	agencies	on
aging	to	establish	a	formally	structured	volunteer	program	for
specified	purposes.	The	bill	would	increase	flexibility	for	area
agencies	on	aging	to	develop	and	manage	community-based
program	based	on	local	need,	as	specified.	Existing	law	also
provides	for	the	Long-Term	Care	Ombudsman	Program	under
which	funds	are	allocated	to	local	ombudsman	programs	to
assist	elderly	persons	in	long-term	health	care	facilities.
Existing	law,	as	part	of	the	Mello-Granlund	Older	Californians
Act,	establishes	the	Office	of	the	State	Long-Term	Care
Ombudsman,	under	the	direction	of	the	State	Long-Term	Care
Ombudsman,	in	the	California	Department	of	Aging.	Existing
law	requires	the	State	Long-Term	Care	Ombudsman	to
investigate	and	seek	to	resolve	complaints	against	long-term
health	care	facilities	and	to	provide	services	to	assist
residents	in	the	protection	of	their	health,	safety,	welfare,	and
rights.	Existing	law	also	provides	for	the	Long-Term	Care
Ombudsman	Program	under	which	funds	are	allocated	to	local
ombudsman	programs	to	assist	elderly	persons	in	long-term
health	care	facilities.	Under	existing	law,	the	base	allocation
to	a	local	ombudsman	program	is	$100,000	per	fiscal
year.This	bill	would	require	additional	funds	for	local
ombudsman	programs	to	be	sought	from	the	Federal	Health
Facilities	Citation	Penalty	Account	to	represent	the	inter...
(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Jasmeet	Bains

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-14

Bill	Number
AB	2636

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

82

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=445a2b010f1c8abd65b7b51d3a015f8a


Title
Coverage	for	cranial	prostheses.

Description
AB	2668,	as	introduced,	Berman.	Coverage	for	cranial
prostheses.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service
Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of
health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed
Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act	a	crime.
Existing	law	also	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health	insurers
by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	requires	health
care	service	plans	and	health	insurers	to	provide	coverage	for
prosthetic	devices	in	connection	with	specified	health
conditions	and	procedures.This	bill	would	require	a	health
care	service	plan	contract	or	health	insurance	policy	issued,
amended,	or	renewed	on	or	after	January	1,	2025,	to	cover
cranial	prostheses,	as	defined,	for	individuals	experiencing
permanent	or	temporary	medical	hair	loss.	The	bill	would
require	a	licensed	provider	to	prescribe	the	cranial	prosthesis
for	an	individual’s	course	of	treatment	for	a	diagnosed	health
condition,	chronic	illness,	or	injury,	as	specified.	The	bill	would
limit	coverage	to	once	every	12	months	and	$750	for	each
instance	of	coverage.	The	bill	would	not	apply	these
provisions	to	a	specialized	health	care	service	plan	or
specialized	health	insurance	policy.	Because	a	violation	of
these	requirements	by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a
crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local
program.Existing	law	also	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,
which	is	administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income	individuals
receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,
governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.
Commencing	January	1,	2025,	this	bill	would	require	coverage
for	cranial	prostheses	for	individuals	experiencing	permanent
or	temporary	medical	hair	loss.	or	treatment	for	those
conditions	as	a	Medi-Cal	benefit,	subject	to	the	same
requirements	with	respect	to	provider	prescription,	coverage
frequency,	and	amount.	The	bill	would	not	apply	these
provisions	to	a	specialized	health	care	service	plan.The
California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local
agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by
the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for
making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no
reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Marc	Berman

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-14

Bill	Number
AB	2668

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

83

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=b069dcbec259f32df4e8569d93524c5d


Title
Medical	Board	of	California:	appointments:	removal.

Description
AB	2688,	as	introduced,	Berman.	Medical	Board	of	California:
appointments:	removal.	Existing	law,	the	Medical	Practice	Act,
establishes	the	Medical	Board	of	California	within	the
Department	of	Consumer	Affairs	and	sets	forth	its	powers	and
duties	relating	to	the	licensure	and	regulation	of	the	practice
of	medicine	by	physicians	and	surgeons.	Under	the	act,	the
board	consists	of	15	members,	including	13	members
appointed	by	the	Governor,	one	appointed	by	the	Senate
Committee	on	Rules,	and	one	appointed	by	the	Speaker	of	the
Assembly,	as	prescribed.	The	act	authorizes	the	appointing
power	to	remove	any	member	of	the	board	for	neglect	of
duty,	incompetency,	or	unprofessional	conduct.Under	other
existing	law	with	respect	to	the	department	and	its
constituent	boards,	an	appointing	authority	has	power	to
remove	from	office	at	any	time	a	member	of	any	board
appointed	by	the	appointing	authority	for	continued	neglect	of
duties	required	by	law,	or	for	incompetence,	or	unprofessional
or	dishonorable	conduct.	Existing	law	prohibits	this	provision
from	being	construed	as	a	limitation	or	restriction	on	the
power	of	the	appointing	authority	conferred	on	the	appointing
authority	by	any	other	provision	of	law	to	remove	any
member	of	any	board.This	bill	would	revise	the	removal
authority	of	an	appointing	power	of	the	Medical	Board	of
California	granted	by	the	Medical	Practice	Act	to	instead
authorize	the	removal	of	a	member	of	the	board	appointed	by
that	authority	for	continued	neglect	of	duties	required	by	law,
or	for	incompetence,	or	unprofessional	or	dishonorable
conduct.

Primary	Sponsors
Marc	Berman

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-14

Title
Health	care	service	plans:	provider	directories.

Description
AB	2699,	as	introduced,	Wendy	Carrillo.	Health	care	service
plans:	provider	directories.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene
Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the
licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care	service	plans.	Existing
law	requires	plans	to	publish	and	maintain	provider
directories,	as	specified.This	bill	would	make	technical,
nonsubstantive	changes	to	those	provisions.

Primary	Sponsors
Wendy	Carrillo

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-14

Bill	Number
AB	2688

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2699

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

84

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=9c2cf7633d7f61c2c653c895429e590b
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=5914f554f335c9fdc443b2beb16f6439


Title
Medi-Cal:	dental	cleanings	and	examinations.

Description
AB	2701,	as	introduced,	Villapudua.	Medi-Cal:	dental
cleanings	and	examinations.	Existing	law	establishes	the
Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by	the	State
Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under	which	qualified
low-income	individuals	receive	health	care	services,	including
certain	dental	services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,
governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program
provisions.Under	existing	law,	one	dental	prophylaxis	cleaning
per	year	and	one	initial	dental	examination	by	a	dentist	are
covered	Medi-Cal	benefits	for	beneficiaries	21	years	of	age	or
older.	Under	existing	law,	2	dental	prophylaxis	cleanings	per
year	and	2	periodic	dental	examinations	per	year	are	covered
Medi-Cal	benefits	for	beneficiaries	under	21	years	of	age.
Existing	law	conditions	implementation	of	those	provisions	on
receipt	of	any	necessary	federal	approvals	and	the	availability
of	federal	financial	participation	and	funding	in	the	annual
Budget	Act.This	bill	would	restructure	those	provisions	so	that
2	cleanings	and	2	examinations	per	year,	as	specified,	would
be	covered	Medi-Cal	benefits	for	all	beneficiaries,	regardless
of	age.

Primary	Sponsors
Carlos	Villapudua

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-14

Title
Federally	qualified	health	centers	and	rural	health	clinics:
psychological	associates.

Description
AB	2703,	as	introduced,	Aguiar-Curry.	Federally	qualified
health	centers	and	rural	health	clinics:	psychological
associates.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,
which	is	administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income	individuals
receive	health	care	services,	including	federally	qualified
health	center	(FQHC)	services	and	rural	health	clinic	(RHC)
services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and
funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.Existing	law
requires	the	department	to	seek	any	necessary	federal
approvals	and	issue	appropriate	guidance	to	allow	an	FQHC	or
RHC	to	bill,	under	a	supervising	licensed	behavioral	health
practitioner,	for	an	encounter	between	an	FQHC	or	RHC
patient	and	an	associate	clinical	social	worker	or	associate
marriage	and	family	therapist	when	certain	conditions	are
met,	including,	among	others,	that	the	FQHC	or	RHC	is
otherwise	authorized	to	bill	for	services	provided	by	the
supervising	practitioner	as	a	separate	visit.This	bill	would	add
a	psychological	associate	to	those	provisions,	requiring	the
department	to	seek	any	necessary	federal	approvals	and
issue	appropriate	guidance	to	allow	an	FQHC	or	RHC	to	bill	for
an	encounter	between	a	patient	and	a	psychological	associate
under	those	conditions.	The	bill	would	make	conforming
changes	with	regard	to	supervision	by	a	licensed	psychologist
as	required	by	the	Board	of	Psychology.

Primary	Sponsors
Cecilia	Aguiar-Curry

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-14

Bill	Number
AB	2701

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2703

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

85

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=cafb025914b348c12860ec550feff618
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=3b1855d002a4a8d3d261ba74ef72744b


Title
Ralph	M.	Brown	Act:	closed	sessions.

Description
AB	2715,	as	introduced,	Boerner.	Ralph	M.	Brown	Act:	closed
sessions.	Existing	law,	the	Ralph	M.	Brown	Act,	generally
requires	that	all	meetings	of	a	legislative	body	of	a	local
agency	be	open	and	public	and	that	all	persons	be	permitted
to	attend	and	participate.	Existing	law	authorizes	a	legislative
body	to	hold	a	closed	session	on,	among	other	things,	matters
posing	a	threat	to	the	security	of	essential	public	services,	as
specified.This	bill	would	additionally	authorize	a	closed
session	to	consider	or	evaluate	matters	related	to
cybersecurity,	as	specified,	provided	that	any	action	taken	on
those	matters	is	done	in	open	session.Existing	constitutional
provisions	require	that	a	statute	that	limits	the	right	of	access
to	the	meetings	of	public	bodies	or	the	writings	of	public
officials	and	agencies	be	adopted	with	findings	demonstrating
the	interest	protected	by	the	limitation	and	the	need	for
protecting	that	interest.This	bill	would	make	legislative
findings	to	that	effect.The	California	Constitution	requires
local	agencies,	for	the	purpose	of	ensuring	public	access	to
the	meetings	of	public	bodies	and	the	writings	of	public
officials	and	agencies,	to	comply	with	a	statutory	enactment
that	amends	or	enacts	laws	relating	to	public	records	or	open
meetings	and	contains	findings	demonstrating	that	the
enactment	furthers	the	constitutional	requirements	relating	to
this	purpose.This	bill	would	make	legislative	findings	to	that
effect.

Primary	Sponsors
Tasha	Boerner

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-14

Title
Health	care	coverage:	access	to	specialty	care.

Description
AB	2726,	as	introduced,	Flora.	Health	care	coverage:	access
to	specialty	care.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	requires	health	care	service	plans	to
meet	specified	requirements,	including	establishing	a
procedure	by	which	a	covered	individual	may	receive	a
standing	referral	to	a	specialist.This	bill	would	state	that	it	is
the	intent	of	the	Legislature	to	enact	legislation	to	increase
access	to	specialty	care	to	support	whole-person	care	among
California’s	most	medically	complex	patients	facing	significant
adverse	social	drivers	of	health.

Primary	Sponsors
Heath	Flora

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-14

Bill	Number
AB	2715

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2726

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

86

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=0ba7228a0c4ec1eb40270df47ae63390
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=fdb03cfd20f5bd4f9994021282ab63e6


Title
California	Health	Benefit	Exchange:	financial	assistance.

Description
AB	2749,	as	introduced,	Wood.	California	Health	Benefit
Exchange:	financial	assistance.	Existing	federal	law,	the
federal	Patient	Protection	and	Affordable	Care	Act	(PPACA),
requires	each	state	to	establish	an	American	Health	Benefit
Exchange	to	facilitate	the	purchase	of	qualified	health	benefit
plans	by	qualified	individuals	and	qualified	small	employers.
PPACA	authorizes	a	state	to	apply	to	the	United	States
Department	of	Health	and	Human	Services	for	a	state
innovation	waiver	of	any	or	all	PPACA	requirements,	if	certain
criteria	are	met,	including	that	the	state	has	enacted	a	law
that	provides	for	state	actions	under	a	waiver.	Existing	state
law	creates	the	California	Health	Benefit	Exchange
(Exchange),	also	known	as	Covered	California,	to	facilitate	the
enrollment	of	qualified	individuals	and	qualified	small
employers	in	qualified	health	plans	as	required	under	PPACA.
Existing	law	requires	the	Exchange,	upon	appropriation	by	the
Legislature,	to	administer	a	program	of	financial	assistance
beginning	July	1,	2023,	to	help	Californians	obtain	and
maintain	health	benefits	through	the	Exchange	if	they	lose
employer-provided	health	care	coverage	as	a	result	of	a	labor
dispute.This	bill	would	make	a	technical,	nonsubstantive
change	to	this	provision.

Primary	Sponsors
Jim	Wood

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
AB	2749

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

87

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=018e3b42c19c4c506835443e7a890b58


Title
Rehabilitative	and	habilitative	services:	durable	medical
equipment	and	services.

Description
AB	2753,	as	introduced,	Ortega.	Rehabilitative	and	habilitative
services:	durable	medical	equipment	and	services.	Existing
law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,
requires	the	Department	of	Managed	Health	Care	to	license
and	regulate	health	care	service	plans	and	makes	a	willful
violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Other	existing	law	requires	the
Department	of	Insurance	to	regulate	health	insurers.	Existing
law	requires	an	individual	or	small	group	health	care	service
plan	contract	or	health	insurance	policy	issued,	amended,	or
renewed	on	or	after	January	1,	2017,	to	include,	at	a
minimum,	coverage	for	essential	health	benefits	pursuant	to
the	federal	Patient	Protection	and	Affordable	Care	Act.	Under
existing	law,	essential	health	benefits	include,	among	other
things,	rehabilitative	and	habilitative	services.	Existing	law
requires	habilitative	services	and	devices	to	be	covered	under
the	same	terms	and	conditions	applied	to	rehabilitative
services	and	devices	under	the	plan	contract	or	policy,	and
defines	habilitative	services	to	mean	health	care	services	and
devices	that	help	a	person	keep,	learn,	or	improve	skills	and
functioning	for	daily	living.This	bill	would	specify	that
coverage	of	rehabilitative	and	habilitative	services	and
devices	under	a	health	care	service	plan	or	health	insurance
policy	includes	durable	medical	equipment,	services,	and
repairs,	if	the	equipment,	services,	or	repairs	are	prescribed
or	ordered	by	a	physician,	surgeon,	or	other	health
professional	acting	within	the	scope	of	their	license.	The	bill
would	define	“durable	medical	equipment”	to	mean	devices,
including	replacement	devices,	that	are	designed	for	repeated
use,	and	that	are	used	for	the	treatment	or	monitoring	of	a
medical	condition	or	injury	in	order	to	help	a	person	to
partially	or	fully	acquire,	improve,	keep,	or	learn,	or	minimize
the	loss	of,	skills	and	functioning	of	daily	living.	The	bill	would
prohibit	coverage	of	durable	medical	equipment	and	services
from	being	subject	to	financial	or	treatment	limitations,	as
specified.The	bill	would	make	related	findings	and
declarations,	including	that	coverage	of	durable	medical
equipment	is	necessary	to	comply	with	federal	requirements
for	purposes	of	being	considered	essential	health	benefits	not
subject	to	defrayal	payments.	Because	a	violation	of	the	bill’s
provisions	by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the
bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The
California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local
agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by
the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for
making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no
reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Liz	Ortega

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
AB	2753

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

88

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=c46303b69e232f668cf4ade61eaf482d


Title
Pelvic	Floor	and	Core	Conditioning	Pilot	Program.

Description
AB	2756,	as	introduced,	Boerner.	Pelvic	Floor	and	Core
Conditioning	Pilot	Program.	Existing	law	finds	and	declares
that	postpartum	care,	among	other	things,	is	an	essential
service	necessary	to	ensure	maternal	health.	Existing	law
establishes	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services,
and	requires	the	department	to,	among	other	things,	maintain
programs	relating	to	maternal	health.This	bill	would,
commencing	January	1,	2026,	until	January	1,	2029,	authorize
the	County	of	San	Diego	to	establish	a	pilot	program	for	pelvic
floor	and	core	conditioning	group	classes	that	would	be
provided	to	people	twice	a	week	between	their	6	to	12	week
postpartum	window	to	help	people	rebuild	their	pelvic	floor
after	pregnancy.	The	bill	would	require	the	program	to	record
specified	information	to	directly	assess	pelvic	floor	changes,
and	would	require	the	program	to	annually	report	all	the
information	and	outcomes	to	the	department.	The	bill	would
require	the	department	to	provide	a	final	report	on	the
program	to	the	Legislature	by	June	1,	2029.

Primary	Sponsors
Tasha	Boerner

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Title
Financial	Solvency	Standards	Board:	membership.

Description
AB	2767,	as	introduced,	Santiago.	Financial	Solvency
Standards	Board:	membership.	Existing	law	establishes	the
Department	of	Managed	Health	Care,	which,	among	other
duties,	ensures	the	financial	stability	of	managed	care	plans.
Existing	law	establishes	within	the	department	the	Financial
Solvency	Standards	Board	for	the	purpose	of,	among	other
things,	developing	and	recommending	to	the	director	of	the
department	financial	solvency	requirements	and	standards
relating	to	health	care	service	plan	operations.	Existing	law
requires	the	board	to	be	composed	of	the	director,	or	their
designee,	and	7	members	appointed	by	the	director,	and
authorizes	the	director	to	appoint	individuals	with	training	and
experience	in	specified	subject	areas	or	fields.This	bill	would
instead	require	the	director	to	appoint	10	members	to	the
board,	and	would	additionally	authorize	the	director	to
appoint	health	care	consumer	advocates,	representatives	of
organized	labor	unions	representing	health	care	workers,	and
individuals	with	training	and	experience	in	large	group	health
insurance	purchasing.

Primary	Sponsors
Miguel	Santiago

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
AB	2756

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2767

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

89

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=8ffddf8c87d767a171e4625ec88a6b9a
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=d77cb8bf0da60c2deb484b18c3016f98


Title
Community	paramedicine.

Description
AB	2775,	as	introduced,	Gipson.	Community	paramedicine.
Existing	law	establishes,	until	January	1,	2031,	the	Community
Paramedicine	or	Triage	to	Alternate	Destination	Act	of	2020.
Existing	law	states	that	it	is	the	intent	of	the	Legislature,
among	other	things,	that	local	emergency	medical	services
(EMS)	agencies	be	authorized	to	develop	a	community
paramedicine	or	triage	to	alternate	destination	program	to
improve	patient	care	and	community	health.	Existing	law
states	that	it	is	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	to	monitor	and
evaluate	implementation	of	community	paramedicine	and
triage	to	alternate	destination	programs	by	local	EMS
agencies	in	California	and	determine	whether	these	programs
should	be	modified	or	extended	before	the	program	ends.This
bill	would	make	a	technical	conforming	change	to	these
provisions.

Primary	Sponsors
Mike	Gipson

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Title
Mental	health.

Description
AB	2806,	as	introduced,	Santiago.	Mental	health.	Existing	law,
the	Bronzan-McCorquodale	Act,	governs	the	organization	and
financing	of	community	mental	health	services	for	persons
with	mental	health	disorders	in	every	county	through	locally
administered	and	locally	controlled	community	mental	health
programs.This	bill	would	make	technical,	nonsubstantive
changes	to	that	provision.

Primary	Sponsors
Miguel	Santiago

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
AB	2775

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2806

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

90

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=641b92c2c29071f3bf5149713b1649b0
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=81c5052038ff155f98fac8ee6f8efc8e


Title
Health	care	coverage:	rape	and	sexual	assault.

Description
AB	2843,	as	introduced,	Petrie-Norris.	Health	care	coverage:
rape	and	sexual	assault.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health
Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health
insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.Existing	law	requires
a	victim	of	sexual	assault	who	seeks	a	medical	evidentiary
examination	to	be	provided	with	one,	as	specified.	Existing
law	prohibits	costs	incurred	by	a	qualified	health	care
professional,	hospital,	clinic,	sexual	assault	forensic
examination	team,	or	other	emergency	medical	facility	for	the
medical	evidentiary	examination	portion	of	the	examination	of
the	victim	of	a	sexual	assault,	as	described	in	a	specified
protocol,	when	the	examination	is	performed	as	specified,
from	being	charged	directly	or	indirectly	to	the	victim	of	the
assault.	This	bill	would	require	a	health	care	service	plan	or
health	insurance	policy	that	is	issued,	amended,	renewed,	or
delivered	on	or	after	January	1,	2025,	to	provide	coverage
without	cost	sharing	for	emergency	room	medical	care	and
follow-up	health	care	treatment	for	an	enrollee	or	insured	who
is	treated	following	a	rape	or	sexual	assault.	The	bill	would
prohibit	a	health	care	service	plan	or	health	insurer	from
requiring,	as	a	condition	of	providing	coverage,	(1)	an	enrollee
or	insured	to	file	a	police	report,	(2)	charges	to	be	brought
against	an	assailant,	(3)	or	an	assailant	to	be	convicted	of
rape	or	sexual	assault.	Because	a	violation	of	the	bill	by	a
health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would
impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.	The	California
Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies
and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.
Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for	making	that
reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no	reimbursement
is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Cottie	Petrie-Norris

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
AB	2843

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

91

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=3f42c68a7c69433e67c40becf52903b4


Title
Emergency	medical	technicians:	peer	support.

Description
AB	2859,	as	introduced,	Jim	Patterson.	Emergency	medical
technicians:	peer	support.	Existing	law	establishes	a
statewide	system	for	emergency	medical	services	and
establishes	the	Emergency	Medical	Services	Authority,	which
is	responsible	for	establishing	training,	scope	of	practice,	and
continuing	education	for	emergency	medical	technicians	and
other	prehospital	personnel.Existing	law	authorizes	a	public
fire	agency	or	law	enforcement	agency	to	establish	a	peer
support	and	crisis	referral	program,	to	provide	a	network	of
peer	representatives	who	are	available	to	come	to	the	aid	of
their	fellow	employees	on	a	broad	range	of	emotional	or
professional	issues.	This	bill	would	state	the	intent	of	the
Legislature	to	enact	legislation	to	provide	peer-to-peer
support	for	emergency	medical	technicians	and	other
ambulance	employees.

Primary	Sponsors
Jim	Patterson

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
AB	2859

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

92

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=077a42042f55323707941ca09c9931b5


Title
Licensed	Physicians	and	Dentists	from	Mexico	programs.

Description
AB	2860,	as	introduced,	Garcia.	Licensed	Physicians	and
Dentists	from	Mexico	programs.	Existing	law,	the	Licensed
Physicians	and	Dentists	from	Mexico	Pilot	Program,	allows	up
to	30	licensed	physicians	and	up	to	30	licensed	dentists	from
Mexico	to	practice	medicine	or	dentistry	in	California	for	a
period	not	to	exceed	3	years,	in	accordance	with	certain
requirements.	Existing	law	requires	the	Medical	Board	of
California	and	the	Dental	Board	of	California	to	provide
oversight	pursuant	to	these	provisions.	Existing	law	requires
appropriate	funding	to	be	secured	from	nonprofit
philanthropic	entities	before	implementation	of	the	pilot
program	may	proceed.Existing	law	requires	physicians
participating	in	the	Licensed	Physicians	and	Dentists	from
Mexico	Pilot	Program	to	be	enrolled	in	English	as	a	second
language	classes,	to	have	satisfactorily	completed	a	6-month
orientation	program,	and	to	have	satisfactorily	completed	a	6-
month	externship	at	the	applicant’s	place	of	employment,
among	various	other	requirements.This	bill	would	repeal	the
provisions	regarding	the	Licensed	Physicians	and	Dentists
from	Mexico	Pilot	Program,	and	would	instead	establish	two
bifurcated	programs,	the	Licensed	Physicians	from	Mexico
Program	and	the	Licensed	Dentists	from	Mexico	Pilot	Program.
Within	these	2	programs,	the	bill	would	generally	revise	and
recast	certain	requirements	pertaining	to	the	Licensed
Physicians	and	Dentists	from	Mexico	Pilot	Program,	including
deleting	the	above-described	requirement	that	Mexican
physicians	participating	in	the	program	enroll	in	adult	English
as	a	second	language	classes.	The	bill	would	instead	require
those	physicians	to	have	satisfactorily	completed	the	Test	of
English	as	a	Foreign	Language	or	the	Occupational	English
Test,	as	specified.	The	bill	would	remove	the	requirement	that
the	orientation	program	be	6	months,	and	would	further
require	the	orientation	program	to	include	electronic	medical
records	systems	utilized	by	federally	qualified	health	centers
and	standards	for	medical	chart	notations.	The	bill	would	also
delete	the	requirement	that	the	physicians	participate	in	a	6-
month	externship.	The	bill	would	further	delete	provisions
requiring	an	evaluation	of	the	pilot	program	to	be	undertaken
with	funds	provided	from	philanthropic	foundations,	and
would	make	various	other	related	changes	to	the
program.Commencing	January	1,	2025,	the	bill	would	require
the	Medical	Board	of	California	to	permit	each	of	the	no	more
than	30	licensed	physicians	who	were	issued	a	3-year	license
to	practice	medicine	pursuant	to	the	program	to	extend	their
license	for	3	years	on	a	one-time	basis.	Commencing	January
1,	2025,	and	every	3	years	thereafter,	until	January	1,	2041,
the	bill	would	require	the	board	to	permit	no	more	t...	(click
bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Eduardo	Garcia

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
AB	2860

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

93

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=cf147e509a9eb51a81cbc761f24ac1b5


Title
Artificial	intelligence.

Description
AB	2885,	as	introduced,	Bauer-Kahan.	Artificial	intelligence.
Existing	law	establishes	within	the	Government	Operations
Agency	the	Department	of	Technology,	which	is	supervised	by
the	Director	of	Technology.	Existing	law	authorizes	the	director
and	the	department	to	exercise	various	powers	in	creating
and	managing	the	information	technology	policy	of	the	state,
including	establishing	and	enforcing	state	information
technology	strategic	plans,	policies,	standards,	and	enterprise
architecture.This	bill	would	state	the	intent	of	the	Legislature
to	enact	legislation	to	define	the	term	”artificial	intelligence.”

Primary	Sponsors
Rebecca	Bauer-Kahan

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Title
Women’s	health.

Description
AB	2893,	as	introduced,	Ward.	Women’s	health.	Existing	law
requires	the	State	Department	of	Public	Health,	among	other
things,	to	develop	a	coordinated	state	strategy	for	addressing
the	health-related	needs	of	women	and	requires	the
department	to	place	priority	on	providing	information	to
consumers,	patients,	and	health	care	providers	regarding
women’s	gynecological	cancers,	including	signs	and
symptoms,	risk	factors,	the	benefits	of	early	detection
through	appropriate	diagnostic	testing,	and	treatment
options.This	bill	would	make	technical,	nonsubstantive
changes	to	these	provisions.

Primary	Sponsors
Chris	Ward

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Title
Health	care	service	plan	requirements.

Description
AB	2914,	as	introduced,	Bonta.	Health	care	service	plan
requirements.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care.	Existing	law	requires	a	health	care
service	plan	to	meet	specified	requirements,	and	requires	a
health	care	service	plan	contract	to	provide	to	subscribers
and	enrollees	specified	basic	health	care	services.This	bill
would	make	technical,	nonsubstantive	changes	to	those
provisions.

Primary	Sponsors
Mia	Bonta

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
AB	2885

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2893

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2914

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

94

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=e0f7ca67a49ab36f012458e866fcdf9e
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=5afb43986f1afb5442a114a0b56d1bc8
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=16e9973b3cbfa4b728e616521ca4cbfd


Title
Automated	decision	tools.

Description
AB	2930,	as	introduced,	Bauer-Kahan.	Automated	decision
tools.	The	Unruh	Civil	Rights	Act	provides	that	all	persons
within	the	jurisdiction	of	this	state	are	free	and	equal	and,
regardless	of	their	sex,	race,	color,	religion,	ancestry,	national
origin,	disability,	medical	condition,	genetic	information,
marital	status,	sexual	orientation,	citizenship,	primary
language,	or	immigration	status,	are	entitled	to	the	full	and
equal	accommodations,	advantages,	facilities,	privileges,	or
services	in	all	business	establishments	of	every	kind
whatsoever.The	California	Fair	Employment	and	Housing	Act
establishes	the	Civil	Rights	Department	within	the	Business,
Consumer	Services,	and	Housing	Agency	and	requires	the
department	to,	among	other	things,	bring	civil	actions	to
enforce	the	act.This	bill	would,	among	other	things,	require	a
deployer,	as	defined,	and	a	developer	of	an	automated
decision	tool,	as	defined,	to,	on	or	before	January	1,	2026,	and
annually	thereafter,	perform	an	impact	assessment	for	any
automated	decision	tool	the	deployer	uses	that	includes,
among	other	things,	a	statement	of	the	purpose	of	the
automated	decision	tool	and	its	intended	benefits,	uses,	and
deployment	contexts.	The	bill	would	require	a	deployer	or
developer	to	provide	the	impact	assessment	to	the	Civil
Rights	Department	within	7	days	of	a	request	by	the
department	and	would	punish	a	violation	of	that	provision
with	an	administrative	fine	of	not	more	than	$10,000	to	be
recovered	in	an	administrative	enforcement	action	brought	by
the	Civil	Rights	Department.	The	bill	would,	in	complying	with
a	request	for	public	records,	require	the	Civil	Rights
Department,	or	an	entity	with	which	an	impact	assessment
was	shared,	to	redact	any	trade	secret	from	the	impact
assessment.This	bill	would	require	a	deployer	to,	at	or	before
the	time	an	automated	decision	tool	is	used	to	make	a
consequential	decision,	as	defined,	notify	any	natural	person
that	is	the	subject	of	the	consequential	decision	that	an
automated	decision	tool	is	being	used	to	make,	or	be	a
controlling	factor	in	making,	the	consequential	decision	and	to
provide	that	person	with,	among	other	things,	a	statement	of
the	purpose	of	the	automated	decision	tool.	The	bill	would,	if
a	consequential	decision	is	made	solely	based	on	the	output
of	an	automated	decision	tool,	require	a	deployer	to,	if
technically	feasible,	accommodate	a	natural	person’s	request
to	not	be	subject	to	the	automated	decision	tool	and	to	be
subject	to	an	alternative	selection	process	or	accommodation,
as	prescribed.This	bill	would	prohibit	a	deployer	from	using	an
automated	decision	tool	in	a	manner	that	results	in
algorithmic	discrimination,	which	the	bill	would	define	to
mean	the	condition	in	which	an	automated	decision	tool
cont...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Rebecca	Bauer-Kahan

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
AB	2930

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

95

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=2532a0831107b1213f1d0c35806ec287


Title
Medi-Cal	eligibility:	redetermination.

Description
AB	2956,	as	amended,	Boerner.	Medi-Cal	eligibility:
redetermination.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal
program,	which	is	administered	by	the	State	Department	of
Health	Care	Services,	under	which	qualified	low-income
individuals	receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal
program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid
program	provisions.Existing	law	generally	requires	a	county	to
redetermine	a	Medi-Cal	beneficiary’s	eligibility	to	receive
Medi-Cal	benefits	every	12	months	and	whenever	the	county
receives	information	about	changes	in	a	beneficiary’s
circumstances	that	may	affect	their	Medi-Cal	eligibility.
Existing	law	conditions	implementation	of	the	redetermination
provisions	on	the	availability	of	federal	financial	participation
and	receipt	of	any	necessary	federal	approvals.	Under
existing	law,	if	a	county	has	facts	clearly	demonstrating	that	a
Medi-Cal	beneficiary	cannot	be	eligible	for	Medi-Cal	due	to	an
event,	such	as	death	or	change	of	state	residency,	Medi-Cal
benefits	are	terminated	without	a	redetermination.Existing
law	requires	the	department,	subject	to	federal	funding,	to
extend	continuous	eligibility	to	children	19	years	of	age	or
younger	for	a	12-month	period,	as	specified.	Under	existing
law,	operative	on	January	1,	2025,	or	the	date	that	the
department	certifies	that	certain	conditions	have	been	met,	a
child	is	continuously	eligible	for	Medi-Cal	up	to	5	years	of	age.
Under	those	provisions,	a	redetermination	is	prohibited	during
this	time,	unless	certain	circumstances	apply,	including,
voluntary	disenrollment,	death,	or	change	of	state
residency.This	bill	would	require	the	department	to	seek
federal	approval	to	extend	continuous	eligibility	to	individuals
over	19	years	of	age.	Under	the	bill,	subject	to	federal
funding,	and	except	as	described	above	with	regard	to	death,
change	of	state	residency,	or	other	events,	an	individual
would	remain	eligible	from	the	date	of	a	Medi-Cal	eligibility
determination	until	the	end	of	a	12-month	period,	as
specified.The	bill	would	make	various	changes	to	the	above-
described	redetermination	procedures.	The	bill	would,	among
other	things,	require	the	county,	in	the	event	of	a	loss	of
contact,	to	attempt	communication	with	the	intended
recipient	through	all	additionally	available	channels	before
completing	a	prompt	redetermination.	The	bill	would	require
the	county	to	make	another	review	of	certain	obtained
information	in	an	attempt	to	renew	eligibility	without	needing
a	response	from	a	beneficiary.The	bill	would	require	the
county	to	complete	a	determination	at	renewal	without
requesting	additional	information	or	documentation	if
specified	conditions	are	met,	relating	to,	among	other	things,
prior	income	verification	and	no	contradictory	informatio...
(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Tasha	Boerner

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	2956

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

96

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=d0a2b3c35996eb2d1abb2304b2efef95


Title
Mental	health	care.

Description
AB	2976,	as	introduced,	Jackson.	Mental	health	care.	Existing
law	establishes	various	state	and	local	programs	for	the
provision	of	mental	health	services	within	the	jurisdiction	of
the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services,	the	State
Department	of	Public	Health,	the	California	Behavioral	Health
Planning	Council,	the	Department	of	Health	Care	Access	and
Information,	and	county	public	health	or	behavioral	health
departments,	among	other	entities.	Under	existing	law,	those
programs,	services,	and	provisions	include,	among	others,	the
Mental	Health	Services	Act,	the	Lanterman-Petris-Short	Act,
the	Children	and	Youth	Behavioral	Health	Initiative,	the
Behavioral	Health	Continuum	Infrastructure	Program,	the
Licensed	Mental	Health	Service	Provider	Education	Program,
and	Medi-Cal	specialty	mental	health	services.This	bill	would
state	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	to	enact	legislation	relating
to	access	to	mental	health	care.

Primary	Sponsors
Corey	Jackson

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Title
Minors:	consent	to	medical	care.

Description
AB	2998,	as	introduced,	McKinnor.	Minors:	consent	to	medical
care.	Existing	law	authorizes	a	minor	who	is	12	years	of	age
or	older	to	consent	to	medical	care	and	counseling	relating	to
the	diagnosis	and	treatment	of	a	drug-	or	alcohol-related
problem.	Existing	law	exempts	replacement	narcotic	abuse
treatment,	except	as	specified,	from	these	provisions.This	bill
would	authorize	a	minor	to	consent	to	receiving,	and	to	carry
and	administer,	naloxone	hydrochloride	or	other	opioid
antagonist	if	approved	by	a	physician	and	surgeon	or
physician	assistant,	as	specified.	The	bill	would	prohibit	a
minor	permitted	to	carry	and	administer	naloxone
hydrochloride	pursuant	to	these	provisions	from	being	held
liable	in	a	civil	action	or	from	being	subject	to	a	criminal
prosecution	if	they	administer	naloxone	hydrochloride	or	other
opioid	antagonist	in	good	faith	and	not	for	compensation	to	a
person	who	appears	to	be	experiencing	an	opioid	overdose.

Primary	Sponsors
Tina	McKinnor

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	2976

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	2998

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

97

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=df217f9d7fb5b150faeb0b65f0ff715d
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=c917a69b37283ae21882b9ce790e1880


Title
Artificial	intelligence.

Description
AB	3050,	as	introduced,	Low.	Artificial	intelligence.	Existing
law	requires	the	Secretary	of	Government	Operations	to
develop	a	coordinated	plan	to,	among	other	things,
investigate	the	feasibility	of,	and	obstacles	to,	developing
standards	and	technologies	for	state	departments	to
determine	digital	content	provenance.	For	the	purpose	of
informing	that	coordinated	plan,	existing	law	requires	the
secretary	to	evaluate,	among	other	things,	the	impact	of	the
proliferation	of	deepfakes,	as	defined.This	bill	would	require
the	Department	of	Technology	to	issue	regulations	to
establish	standards	for	watermarks	to	be	included	in	covered
AI-generated	material,	as	defined.	The	bill	would	require	the
department’s	standard	to,	at	minimum,	require	an	AI-
generating	entity	to	include	digital	content	provenance	in	the
watermarks.	The	bill	would	prohibit	an	AI-generating	entity
from	creating	covered	AI-generated	material	unless	the
material	includes	a	watermark	that	meets	the	standards
established	by	the	department.	The	bill	would	provide	that
the	prohibition	becomes	operative	on	the	date	that	is	one
year	after	the	date	on	which	the	department	issues	the
regulations	to	establish	standards	for	watermarks.Under
existing	law,	a	person	who	knowingly	uses	another’s	name,
voice,	signature,	photograph,	or	likeness,	in	any	manner,	on
or	in	products,	merchandise,	or	goods,	or	for	the	purposes	of
advertising	or	selling,	or	soliciting	purchases	of,	products,
merchandise,	goods,	or	services,	without	that	person’s	prior
consent	is	liable	for	any	damages	sustained	by	the	person	or
persons	injured	as	a	result	thereof	and	for	the	payment	to	the
injured	party	of	any	profits	attributable	to	that	unauthorized
use.This	bill	would	provide	that	an	AI-generating	entity	or
individual	that	creates	a	deepfake	using	a	person’s	name,
voice,	signature,	photograph,	or	likeness,	in	any	manner,
without	permission	from	the	person	being	depicted	in	the
deepfake,	is	liable	for	the	actual	damages	suffered	by	the
person	or	persons	as	a	result	of	the	unauthorized	use.This	bill
would	provide	that	an	AI-generating	entity	that	violates	the
provisions	of	this	act	is	subject	to	a	civil	penalty	assessed	by
the	department	in	an	amount,	as	determined	by	the
department,	not	less	than	$250	or	more	than	$500.

Primary	Sponsors
Evan	Low

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	3050

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

98

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=6be57908a12b5a24639aab955219dfab


Title
Human	milk.

Description
AB	3059,	as	amended,	Weber.	Human	milk.	Existing	law
licenses	and	regulates	tissue	banks	and	generally	makes	a
violation	of	the	requirements	applicable	to	tissue	banks	a
crime.	Existing	law	exempts	a	“mothers’	milk	bank,”	as
defined,	from	paying	a	licensing	fee	to	be	a	tissue	bank.This
bill	would	specify	that	a	general	acute	care	hospital	is	not
required	to	have	a	license	to	operate	a	tissue	bank	to	store	or
distribute	pasteurized	human	milk	that	was	obtained	from	a
mothers’	milk	bank.Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	requires	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care	to	license	and	regulate	health	care
service	plans	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act	a	crime.
Other	existing	law	requires	the	Department	of	Insurance	to
regulate	health	insurers.	Existing	law	requires	health	care
service	plans	and	health	insurers,	as	specified,	to	provide
certain	health	benefits	and	services,	including,	among	others,
maternity	hospital	stays,	inpatient	hospital	and	ambulatory
maternity	services,	and	maternal	mental	health	programs.
This	bill	would	require	a	health	care	service	plan	contract	or
health	insurance	policy	that	is	issued,	amended,	delivered,	or
renewed	on	or	after	January	1,	2025,	to	cover	the	same	health
benefits	for	human	milk	and	human	milk	derivatives	covered
under	the	Medi-Cal	program	as	of	1988.Because	a	violation	of
the	bill’s	provisions	by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a
crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local
program.The	California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to
reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs
mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish
procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would
provide	that	no	reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a
specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Akilah	Weber

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	3059

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

99

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=fb2964c850961272dc0192e99473d9c0


Title
Pharmacies:	compounding.

Description
AB	3063,	as	introduced,	McKinnor.	Pharmacies:	compounding.
Existing	law,	the	Pharmacy	Law,	requires	the	California	State
Board	of	Pharmacy	to	license	and	regulate	the	practice	of
pharmacy	by	pharmacists	and	pharmacy	corporations	in	this
state.	Existing	law	prohibits	a	pharmacy	from	compounding
sterile	drug	products	unless	the	pharmacy	has	obtained	a
sterile	compounding	pharmacy	license	from	the	board.
Existing	law	requires	the	compounding	of	drug	preparations
by	a	pharmacy	for	furnishing,	distribution,	or	use	to	be
consistent	with	standards	established	in	the	pharmacy
compounding	chapters	of	the	current	version	of	the	United
States	Pharmacopeia-National	Formulary,	including	relevant
testing	and	quality	assurance.	Existing	law	authorizes	the
board	to	adopt	regulations	to	impose	additional	standards	for
compounding	drug	preparations.This	bill	would,
notwithstanding	those	provisions,	specify	that	compounding
does	not	include	reconstitution	of	a	drug	pursuant	to	a
manufacturer’s	directions,	the	sole	act	of	tablet	splitting	or
crushing,	capsule	opening,	or	the	addition	of	a	flavoring	agent
to	enhance	palatability.	The	bill	would	require	a	pharmacy	to
retain	documentation	that	a	flavoring	agent	was	added	to	a
prescription	and	to	make	that	documentation	available	to	the
board	or	its	agent	upon	request.	The	bill	would	make	those
provisions	operative	until	January	1,	2030.This	bill	would
declare	that	it	is	to	take	effect	immediately	as	an	urgency
statute.

Primary	Sponsors
Tina	McKinnor

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	3063

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

100

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=a9d566e4905bbb28e0442801b10f4cc6


Title
Health	care	system	consolidation.

Description
AB	3129,	as	introduced,	Wood.	Health	care	system
consolidation.	Existing	law	requires	a	nonprofit	corporation
that	operates	or	controls	a	health	facility	or	other	facility	that
provides	similar	health	care	to	provide	written	notice	to,	and
to	obtain	the	written	consent	of,	the	Attorney	General	prior	to
entering	into	any	agreement	or	transaction	to	sell,	transfer,
lease,	exchange,	option,	convey,	or	otherwise	dispose	of	the
asset,	or	to	transfer	control,	responsibility,	or	governance	of
the	asset	or	operation,	to	a	for-profit	corporation	or	entity,	to
a	mutual	benefit	corporation	or	entity,	or	to	a	nonprofit
corporation,	as	specified.This	bill	would	require	a	private
equity	group	or	a	hedge	fund,	as	defined,	to	provide	written
notice	to,	and	obtain	the	written	consent	of,	the	Attorney
General	prior	to	a	change	of	control	or	an	acquisition	between
the	private	equity	group	or	hedge	fund	and	a	health	care
facility	or	provider	group,	as	those	terms	are	defined,	except
as	specified.	The	bill	would	require	the	notice	to	be	submitted
at	the	same	time	that	any	other	state	or	federal	agency	is
notified	pursuant	to	state	or	federal	law,	and	otherwise	at
least	90	days	before	the	change	in	control	or	acquisition.	The
bill	would	authorize	the	Attorney	General	to	extend	that	90-
day	period	under	certain	circumstances.	The	bill	would
additionally	require	a	private	equity	group	or	hedge	fund	to
provide	advance	written	notice	to	the	Attorney	General	prior
to	a	change	of	control	or	acquisition	between	a	private	equity
group	or	hedge	fund	and	a	nonphysician	provider,	or	a
provider	with	specified	annual	revenue.The	bill	would
authorize	the	Attorney	General	to	give	the	private	equity
group	or	hedge	fund	a	written	waiver	or	the	notice	and
consent	requirements	if	specified	conditions	apply,	including,
but	not	limited	to,	that	the	party	makes	a	written	waiver
request,	the	party’s	operating	costs	have	exceeded	its
operating	revenue	in	the	relevant	market	for	3	or	more	years
and	the	party	cannot	meet	its	debts,	and	the	acquisition	or
change	of	control	will	ensure	continued	health	care	access	in
the	relevant	markets.	The	bill	would	require	the	Attorney
General	to	grant	or	deny	the	waiver	within	60	days,	as
prescribed.The	bill	would	authorize	the	Attorney	General	to
grant,	deny,	or	impose	conditions	to	a	change	of	control	or	an
acquisition	between	a	private	equity	group	or	hedge	fund	and
a	health	care	facility,	provider	group,	or	both,	if	the	change	of
control	or	acquisition	may	have	a	substantial	likelihood	of
anticompetitive	effects	or	may	create	a	significant	effect	on
the	access	or	availability	of	health	care	services	to	the
affected	community,	applying	a	public	interest	standard,	as
defined.	The	bill	would	authorize	any	party	to	the	acquisition
...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Jim	Wood

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	3129

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

101

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=769879942eb5fc0f2d8139da9660870a


Title
Privacy:	internet	privacy	requirements.

Description
AB	3130,	as	introduced,	Quirk-Silva.	Privacy:	internet	privacy
requirements.	Existing	law	requires	an	operator	of	a
commercial	internet	website	or	online	service	that	collects
personally	identifiable	information	through	the	internet
website	or	online	service	from	individual	consumers	who	use
or	visit	the	commercial	internet	website	or	online	service	and
who	reside	in	California	to	comply	with	specified	provisions
relating	to	the	operator’s	privacy	policy.	Noncompliance,	as
described,	constitutes	a	violation	of	these	provisions.This	bill
would	make	nonsubstantive	changes	to	these	provisions.

Primary	Sponsors
Sharon	Quirk-Silva

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Title
Community	health	workers.

Description
AB	3149,	as	introduced,	Garcia.	Community	health	workers.
Existing	law	requires	the	Department	of	Health	Care	Access
and	Information	to,	on	or	before	July	1,	2023,	develop
statewide	requirements	for	community	health	worker
certificate	programs	in	consultation	with	stakeholders,
including,	but	not	limited	to,	the	State	Department	of	Health
Care	Services,	the	State	Department	of	Public	Health,
community	health	workers,	Promotores	and	Promotores	de
Salud,	or	representative	organizations.	Existing	law	defines
“community	health	worker”	as,	among	other	things,	a	liaison,
link,	or	intermediary	between	health	and	social	services	and
the	community	to	facilitate	access	to	services	and	to	improve
the	access	and	cultural	competence	of	service	delivery.This
bill	would	state	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	to	enact
legislation	related	to	community	health	workers.

Primary	Sponsors
Eduardo	Garcia,	Eloise	Reyes

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	3130

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	3149

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

102

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=4d08fd07fe7d5a242b37af6c0277dc53
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=01f64003ee1d3576ba38ce34904a257b


Title
Medi-Cal:	managed	care	plans.

Description
AB	3156,	as	introduced,	Joe	Patterson.	Medi-Cal:	managed
care	plans.	The	Lanterman	Developmental	Disabilities
Services	Act	makes	the	State	Department	of	Developmental
Services	responsible	for	providing	various	services	and
supports	to	individuals	with	developmental	disabilities,	and
for	ensuring	the	appropriateness	and	quality	of	those	services
and	supports.	Pursuant	to	that	law,	the	department	contracts
with	regional	centers	to	provide	services	and	supports	to
persons	with	developmental	disabilities.	The	act	requires
regional	centers	to	pursue	all	possible	sources	of	funding	for
consumers	receiving	regional	center	services,	including,
among	others,	Medi-Cal.Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal
program,	which	is	administered	by	the	State	Department	of
Health	Care	Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income
individuals	receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal
program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid
program	provisions.	Existing	law	establishes	the	California
Advancing	and	Innovating	Medi-Cal	(CalAIM)	initiative,	subject
to	receipt	of	any	necessary	federal	approvals	and	the
availability	of	federal	financial	participation,	in	order	to,
among	other	things,	improve	quality	outcomes,	reduce	health
disparities,	and	increase	flexibility.Existing	law	authorizes	the
department	to	standardize	those	populations	that	are	subject
to	mandatory	enrollment	in	a	Medi-Cal	managed	care	plan
across	all	aid	code	groups	and	Medi-Cal	managed	care	models
statewide,	subject	to	a	Medi-Cal	managed	care	plan
readiness,	continuity	of	care	transition	plan,	and
disenrollment	process	developed	in	consultation	with
stakeholders,	in	accordance	with	specified	requirements	and
the	CalAIM	Terms	and	Conditions.	Existing	law,	if	the
department	standardizes	those	populations	subject	to
mandatory	enrollment,	exempts	certain	dual	and	non-dual
beneficiary	groups,	as	defined,	from	that	mandatory
enrollment.This	bill	would	express	the	intent	of	the	Legislature
to	enact	legislation	to	exempt	dual	and	non-dual-eligible
beneficiaries	who	receive	services	from	a	regional	center	and
use	a	Medi-Cal	fee-for-service	delivery	system	as	a	secondary
form	of	health	coverage	from	mandatory	enrollment	in	a
Medi-Cal	managed	care	plan.

Primary	Sponsors
Joe	Patterson

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	3156

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

103

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=327d264c29c1d568b685a02ecbb2d5be


Title
Health	and	care	facilities:	patient	safety	and
antidiscrimination.

Description
AB	3161,	as	introduced,	Bonta.	Health	and	care	facilities:
patient	safety	and	antidiscrimination.	(1)	Existing	law	provides
for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of	health	facilities	by	the
State	Department	of	Public	Health.	A	violation	of	these
provisions	is	a	crime.	Existing	law	requires	health	facilities,
including	general	acute	care	hospitals,	acute	psychiatric
hospitals,	and	special	hospitals,	to	report	specified	events,
including	adverse	events	and	cases	of	health-care-associated
MRSA	bloodstream	infection,	health-care-associated
clostridium	difficile	infection,	and	health-care-associated
Vancomycin-resistant	enterococcal	bloodstream	infection,	as
specified.	Existing	law	authorizes	the	department	to	assess	a
licensed	health	care	facility	a	civil	penalty	not	to	exceed	$100
per	day	for	each	day	that	the	adverse	event	was	not	reported,
and	provides	for	a	process	for	the	licensee	to	request	a
hearing	if	it	disputes	a	determination	by	the	department
regarding	an	alleged	failure	to	report.This	bill	would	require
that	the	affected	health	facility	also	collect	and	provide	to	the
department	prescribed	demographic	information.(2)	Existing
law	allows	for	patients	to	submit	complaints	to	the
department	regarding	health	facilities.	Existing	law	also
requires	the	department	to	establish	a	centralized	consumer
response	unit	within	the	Licensing	and	Certification	Division	of
the	department	to	respond	to	consumer	inquiries	and
complaints.This	bill	would	require	the	department	to	include	a
section	for	complaints	involving	specified	health	facilities	to
collect	information	about	outlined	demographic	factors	of
affected	patients.	The	bill	would	require	the	department	to
inform	complainants	that	the	information	collected	is
voluntary,	is	collected	for	statistics	only,	is	to	ensure	patients
receive	the	best	care	possible,	and	will	not	affect	the
department’s	investigation.	The	bill	would	require	that
complainants	shall	be	provided	the	option	to	refer	the
complaint	to	the	Civil	Rights	Department,	and	the	department
will	provide	the	complaint	to	the	Civil	Rights	Department	only
when	requested	to	do	so	by	the	complainant.	The	bill	would
require	the	department	to	develop	an	outreach	program	to
provide	patients,	consumers,	and	members	of	the	public	with
specified	information	regarding	the	complaint	process.
(3)	Existing	law	requires	the	department	to	prepare	a	staffing
and	systems	analysis	to	ensure	efficient	and	effective
utilization	of	fees	collected,	proper	allocation	of	departmental
resources	to	licensing	and	certification	activities,	survey
schedules,	complaint	investigations,	enforcement	and	appeal
activities,	data	collection	and	dissemination,	surveyor
training,	and	policy	development.	Existing	law	requires	the
analysis	be	made	available	to...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Mia	Bonta

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	3161

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

104

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=d12e63b0b61da169f28c61af6062ab71


Title
Health	care	coverage:	dental	services.

Description
AB	3175,	as	introduced,	Villapudua.	Health	care	coverage:
dental	services.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act’s
requirements	a	crime.	Existing	law	imposes	specified
coverage	and	disclosure	requirements	on	health	care	service
plans,	including	specialized	plans,	that	cover	dental	services.
Existing	law,	on	and	after	January	1,	2025,	prohibits	a	health
care	service	plan	from	issuing,	amending,	renewing,	or
offering	a	plan	contract	that	imposes	a	dental	waiting	period
provision	in	a	large	group	plan	or	preexisting	condition
provision	for	any	plan.This	bill	would	make	technical,
nonsubstantive	changes	to	those	provisions.

Primary	Sponsors
Carlos	Villapudua

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Title
Medi-Cal:	mental	health	services	for	children.

Description
AB	3215,	as	introduced,	Soria.	Medi-Cal:	mental	health
services	for	children.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal
program,	which	is	administered	by	the	State	Department	of
Health	Care	Services,	and	under	which	qualified	low-income
individuals	receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal
program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid
program	provisions.	Under	existing	law,	specialty	mental
health	services	include	federal	Early	and	Periodic	Screening,
Diagnostic,	and	Treatment	(EPSDT)	services	provided	to
eligible	Medi-Cal	beneficiaries	under	21	years	of	age.This	bill
would	express	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	to	enact	legislation
to	expand	access	to	behavioral	mental	health	services	to
children	receiving	Medi-Cal	benefits.

Primary	Sponsors
Esmeralda	Soria

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	3175

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
AB	3215

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

105

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=ea6982d99fa34d64378606b256db47a6
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=bc418a707f17f1d173382af02e31404e


Title
Department	of	Managed	Health	Care:	review	of	records.

Description
AB	3221,	as	introduced,	Pellerin.	Department	of	Managed
Health	Care:	review	of	records.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene
Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the
licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the
Department	of	Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful
violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Existing	law	requires	the	records,
books,	and	papers	of	a	health	care	service	plan	and	other
specified	entities	to	be	open	to	inspection	by	the	director	of
the	department	during	normal	business	hours.This	bill	would
instead	require	the	records,	books,	and	papers	of	a	health
care	service	plan	and	other	specified	entities	to	be	open	to
inspection	by	the	director,	including	through	electronic
means.	The	bill	would	require	a	plan	and	other	specified
entities	to	furnish	in	electronic	media	records,	books,	and
papers	that	are	possessed	in	electronic	media	and	to	conduct
a	diligent	review	of	records,	books,	and	papers	and	make
every	effort	to	furnish	those	responsive	to	the	director’s
request.	The	bill	would	require	records,	books,	and	papers	to
be	furnished	in	a	format	that	is	digitally	searchable,	to	the
greatest	extent	feasible.	The	bill	would	authorize	the	director
to	inspect	and	copy	these	records,	books,	and	papers,	and	to
seek	relief	in	an	administrative	law	proceeding	if,	in	the
director’s	determination,	a	plan	or	other	specified	entity	fails
to	fully	or	timely	respond	to	a	duly	authorized	request	for
production	of	records,	books,	and	papers.	Because	a	willful
violation	of	these	requirements	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill
would	impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.Existing	law
requires	the	department	to	conduct	periodically	an	onsite
medical	survey	of	the	health	delivery	system	of	each	plan.
Existing	law	requires	the	director	to	publicly	report	survey
results	no	later	than	180	days	following	the	completion	of	the
survey,	and	requires	a	final	report	to	be	issued	after	public
review	of	the	survey.	Existing	law	requires	the	department	to
conduct	a	followup	review	to	determine	and	report	on	the
status	of	the	plan’s	efforts	to	correct	deficiencies	no	later	than
18	months	following	release	of	the	final	report.This	bill	would
instead	make	the	above-described	followup	review
optional.The	California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to
reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs
mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish
procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would
provide	that	no	reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a
specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Gail	Pellerin

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	3221

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Feb	28,	2024,	9:06	PM
National	Union	of	Healthcare	Workers,	Sponsor

106

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=3c1df6ef2a591cab371503df3a3a5b1f


Title
Coverage	for	colorectal	cancer	screening.

Description
AB	3245,	as	introduced,	Joe	Patterson.	Coverage	for	colorectal
cancer	screening.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation
of	health	insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing
law	generally	requires	a	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	a
health	insurance	policy	issued,	amended,	or	renewed	on	or
after	January	1,	2022,	to	provide	coverage	without	cost
sharing	for	a	colorectal	cancer	screening	test,	and	for	a
colorectal	cancer	screening	examination	in	specified
circumstances,	assigned	either	a	grade	of	A	or	a	grade	of	B	by
the	United	States	Preventive	Services	Task	Force.This	bill
would	additionally	require	that	coverage	if	the	test	or
screening	examination	is	assigned	either	a	grade	of	A	or	a
grade	of	B	by	another	accredited	or	certified	guideline	agency.

Primary	Sponsors
Joe	Patterson

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	3245

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

107

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=8d06463b8174f15c2b6dcc265b9b9d22


Title
Health	care	coverage:	reviews	and	grievances.

Description
AB	3260,	as	introduced,	Pellerin.	Health	care	coverage:
reviews	and	grievances.	(1)	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene
Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the
licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the
Department	of	Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful
violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Existing	law	generally	authorizes
a	health	care	service	plan	or	disability	insurer	to	use
utilization	review,	under	which	a	licensed	physician	or	a
licensed	health	care	professional	who	is	competent	to
evaluate	specific	clinical	issues	may	approve,	modify,	delay,
or	deny	requests	for	health	care	services	based	on	medical
necessity.	Existing	law	requires	these	decisions	to	be	made
within	30	days,	or	less	than	72	hours	when	the	enrollee	faces
an	imminent	and	serious	threat	to	their	health.	Existing	law
requires	a	health	care	service	plan	to	establish	a	grievance
system	to	resolve	grievances	within	30	days,	but	limits	that
timeframe	to	3	days	when	the	enrollee	faces	an	imminent	and
serious	threat	to	their	health.	Existing	law	requires	a	plan	to
provide	a	written	explanation	for	its	grievance	decisions,	as
specified.This	bill	would	require	that	utilization	review
decisions	be	made	within	72	hours	when	the	enrollee’s
condition	is	urgent,	and	would	make	a	determination	of
urgency	by	a	referring	or	treating	health	care	provider	binding
on	the	health	care	service	plan.	If	a	health	care	service	plan
fails	to	make	a	utilization	review	decision	within	the	applicable
72-hour	or	30-day	timeline,	the	bill	would	automatically
entitle	an	enrollee	to	proceed	with	a	grievance.This	bill	would
require	a	plan’s	grievance	system	to	include	expedited	review
of	urgent	grievances,	as	specified,	and	would	make	a
determination	of	urgency	by	a	referring	or	treating	health	care
provider	binding	on	the	health	care	service	plan.	The	bill
would	require	a	plan	to	communicate	its	final	grievance
determination	within	72	hours	of	receipt	if	urgent	and	30	days
if	nonurgent.	If	a	plan	fails	to	make	a	utilization	review
decision	within	the	applicable	72-hour	or	30-day	timeline,	the
bill	would	require	a	grievance	to	be	automatically	resolved	in
favor	of	the	enrollee.	Because	a	willful	violation	of	these
provisions	by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the
bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.(2)	Existing
law	establishes	the	Independent	Medical	Review	System	in
the	Department	of	Managed	Health	Care	to	review	grievances
involving	a	disputed	health	care	service.This	bill	would	require
the	department	to	provide	specified	correspondence	and
documents	to	an	enrollee	and	their	representative,	if
applicable,	if	the	enrollee	has	submitted	a	grievance	for
review	under	the	Independent	Medical	Review	System.	The
bill	would	require	the	departme...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Gail	Pellerin

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	3260

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	18,	2024,	5:30	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans	-	Oppose

108

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=67be88437d5c3e0010df402de0c452a9


Title
Health	care	service	plans:	claim	reimbursement.

Description
AB	3275,	as	introduced,	Soria.	Health	care	service	plans:
claim	reimbursement.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health
Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	requires	a	health	care	service	plan,
including	a	specialized	health	care	service	plan,	to	reimburse
a	claim	or	portion	of	a	claim	no	later	than	30	working	days
after	receipt	of	the	claim,	unless	the	plan	contests	or	denies
the	claim,	in	which	case	the	plan	is	required	to	notify	the
claimant	within	30	working	days	that	the	claim	is	contested	or
denied.	Existing	law	extends	these	timelines	to	45	working
days	for	a	health	care	service	plan	that	is	a	health
maintenance	organization.This	bill	would	delete	the	provisions
that	extend	the	timelines	for	a	health	maintenance
organization.Because	a	willful	violation	of	these	provisions	by
a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would
impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.	The	California
Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies
and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.
Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for	making	that
reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no	reimbursement
is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Esmeralda	Soria,	Robert	Rivas

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
AB	3275

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

109

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=5ae59b5f3aa899ff0352f839d411e565


Title
Prescription	drug	coverage.

Description
SB	70,	as	amended,	Wiener.	Prescription	drug	coverage.
Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of
1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care
service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed	Health	Care,	and
makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Existing	law
provides	for	the	regulation	of	health	insurers	by	the
Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	generally	authorizes	a
health	care	service	plan	or	health	insurer	to	use	utilization
review,	under	which	a	licensed	physician	or	a	licensed	health
care	professional	who	is	competent	to	evaluate	specific
clinical	issues	may	approve,	modify,	delay,	or	deny	requests
for	health	care	services	based	on	medical	necessity.	Existing
law	prohibits	a	health	care	service	plan	contract	that	covers
prescription	drug	benefits	or	a	specified	health	insurance
policy	from	limiting	or	excluding	coverage	for	a	drug	on	the
basis	that	the	drug	is	prescribed	for	a	use	that	is	different
from	the	use	for	which	it	was	approved	by	the	federal	Food
and	Drug	Administration	if	specified	conditions	are	met.
Existing	law	also	prohibits	a	health	care	service	plan	that
covers	prescription	drug	benefits	from	limiting	or	excluding
coverage	for	a	drug	that	was	previously	approved	for
coverage	if	an	enrollee	continues	to	be	prescribed	that	drug,
as	specified.This	bill	would	additionally	prohibit	limiting	or
excluding	coverage	of	a	drug,	dose	of	a	drug,	or	dosage	form
of	a	drug	that	is	prescribed	for	off-label	use	if	the	drug	has
been	previously	covered	for	a	chronic	condition	or	cancer,	as
specified,	regardless	of	whether	or	not	the	drug,	dose,	or
dosage	form	is	on	the	plan’s	or	insurer’s	formulary.	The	bill
would	prohibit	a	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	health
insurance	policy	from	requiring	additional	cost	sharing	not
already	imposed	for	a	drug	that	was	previously	approved	for
coverage.	Because	a	willful	violation	of	these	provisions	by	a
health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would
impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The	California
Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies
and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.
Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for	making	that
reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no	reimbursement
is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Scott	Wiener

Introduction	Date:	2023-01-09

Bill	Number
SB	70

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	27,	2023,	5:57	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans:	Oppose

110

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=f1d23b63bee3147e8500cf365cb5ac68


Title
Medi-Cal:	managed	care	organization	provider	tax.

Description
SB	136,	as	amended,	Committee	on	Budget	and	Fiscal	Review.
Medi-Cal:	managed	care	organization	provider	tax.	Existing
law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered
by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under
which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care
services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and
funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.	Under
existing	law,	one	of	the	methods	by	which	Medi-Cal	services
are	provided	is	pursuant	to	contracts	with	various	types	of
managed	care	plans.Existing	law	imposes	a	managed	care
organization	(MCO)	provider	tax,	administered	and	assessed
by	the	department,	on	licensed	health	care	service	plans	and
managed	care	plans	contracted	with	the	department.	Under
existing	law,	all	revenues,	less	refunds,	derived	from	the	taxes
are	deposited	into	the	Managed	Care	Enrollment	Fund,	to	be
available	to	the	department,	upon	appropriation,	for	the
purpose	of	funding	specified	subcomponents	to	support	the
Medi-Cal	program.Existing	law	sets	forth	certain	taxing	tiers
and	tax	amounts	for	purposes	of	the	tax	periods	of	April	1,
2023,	to	December	31,	2023,	inclusive,	and	the	2024,	2025,
and	2026	calendar	years.	Under	existing	law,	the	Medi-Cal	per
enrollee	tax	amount	for	Medi-Cal	taxing	tier	II,	as	defined,	is
$182.50	for	the	2024	calendar	year,	$187.50	for	the	2025
calendar	year,	and	$192.50	for	the	2026	calendar	year.This
bill	would	raise	that	tax	amount	for	that	tier	to	$205	for	all	3
of	those	calendar	years.This	bill	would	declare	that	it	is	to
take	effect	immediately	as	an	urgency	statute.

Primary	Sponsors
Senate	Budget	and	Fiscal	Review	Committee

Introduction	Date:	2023-01-18

Bill	Number
SB	136

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	18,	2024,	5:17	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans	-	Support

111

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=9119db08024e26fefcf56e8eaa76f14b


Title
Health	care	coverage:	independent	medical	review.

Description
SB	238,	as	amended,	Wiener.	Health	care	coverage:
independent	medical	review.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene
Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the
licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the
Department	of	Managed	Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful
violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the
regulation	of	disability	insurers	by	the	Department	of
Insurance.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Independent	Medical
Review	System	within	each	department,	under	which	an
enrollee	or	insured	may	seek	review	if	a	health	care	service
has	been	denied,	modified,	or	delayed	by	a	health	care
service	plan	or	disability	insurer	and	the	enrollee	or	insured
has	previously	filed	a	grievance	that	remains	unresolved	after
30	days.This	bill,	commencing	July	1,	2024,	would	require	a
health	care	service	plan	or	a	disability	insurer	that	modifies,
delays,	or	denies	a	health	care	service,	based	in	whole	or	in
part	on	medical	necessity,	to	automatically	submit	within	24
hours	a	decision	regarding	a	disputed	health	care	service	to
the	Independent	Medical	Review	System,	as	well	as	the
information	that	informed	its	decision,	without	requiring	an
enrollee	or	insured	to	submit	a	grievance,	if	the	decision	is	to
deny,	modify,	or	delay	specified	services	relating	to	mental
health	or	substance	use	disorder	conditions	for	an	enrollee	or
insured	up	to	26	years	of	age.	The	bill	would	require	a	health
care	service	plan	or	disability	insurer,	within	24	hours	after
submitting	its	decision	to	the	Independent	Medical	Review
System	to	provide	notice	to	the	appropriate	department,	the
enrollee	or	insured	or	their	representative,	if	any,	and	the
enrollee’s	or	insured’s	provider.	The	bill	would	require	the
notice	to	include	notification	to	the	enrollee	or	insured	that
they	or	their	representative	may	cancel	the	independent
medical	review	at	any	time	before	a	determination,	as
specified.The	bill	would	apply	specified	existing	provisions
relating	to	mental	health	and	substance	use	disorders	for
purposes	of	its	provisions,	and	would	be	subject	to	relevant
provisions	relating	to	the	Independent	Medical	Review	System
that	do	not	otherwise	conflict	with	the	express	requirements
of	the	bill.	With	respect	to	health	care	service	plans,	the	bill
would	specify	that	its	provisions	do	not	apply	to	Medi-Cal
managed	care	plan	contracts.	The	bill	would	authorize	the
Insurance	Commissioner	to	promulgate	regulations	subject	to
the	Administrative	Procedure	Act	to	implement	and	enforce
the	bill,	and	to	issue	interim	guidance,	as	specified.	Because	a
willful	violation	of	this	provision	by	a	health	care	service	plan
would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated
local	program.The	California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to
reimburse...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Scott	Wiener

Introduction	Date:	2023-01-24

Bill	Number
SB	238

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	27,	2023,	6:11	PM
Local	Health	Plans	of	California:	Oppose	California	Association	of	Health	Plans:	Oppose

112

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=3f157933e0fc4b9b5c93cbbf28a9c782


Title
California	Hope,	Opportunity,	Perseverance,	and
Empowerment	(HOPE)	for	Children	Trust	Account	Program.

Description
SB	242,	as	amended,	Skinner.	California	Hope,	Opportunity,
Perseverance,	and	Empowerment	(HOPE)	for	Children	Trust
Account	Program.	Existing	law	establishes	the	California	Hope,
Opportunity,	Perseverance,	and	Empowerment	(HOPE)	for
Children	Trust	Account	Program	to	provide	a	trust	fund
account	to	an	eligible	child,	defined	to	include	minor
California	residents	who	are	specified	dependents	or	wards
under	the	jurisdiction	of	juvenile	court	in	foster	care	with
reunification	services	terminated	by	court	order,	or	who	have
a	parent,	Indian	custodian,	or	legal	guardian	who	died	due	to
COVID-19	during	the	federally	declared	COVID-19	public
health	emergency	and	meet	the	specified	family	household
income	limit.	Under	the	program,	all	assets	of	the	fund	and
moneys	allocated	to	individual	HOPE	trust	accounts	shall	be
considered	to	be	owned	by	the	state	until	an	eligible	youth
withdraws	or	transfers	money	from	their	HOPE	trust
account.Existing	law	establishes	various	means-tested	public
social	services	programs	administered	by	counties	to	provide
eligible	recipients	with	certain	benefits,	including,	but	not
limited	to,	cash	assistance	under	the	California	Work
Opportunity	and	Responsibility	to	Kids	(CalWORKs)	program,
nutrition	assistance	under	the	CalFresh	program,	and	health
care	services	under	the	Medi-Cal	program.This	bill	would,	to
the	extent	permitted	by	federal	law,	prohibit	funds	deposited
and	investment	returns	accrued	in	a	HOPE	trust	fund	account
from	being	considered	as	income	or	assets	when	determining
eligibility	and	benefit	amount	for	any	means-tested	program
until	an	eligible	youth	withdraws	or	transfers	the	funds	from
the	HOPE	trust	fund	account,	as	specified.	The	bill	would
make	these	provisions	operative	on	July	1,	2024,	or	on	the
date	that	the	State	Department	of	Social	Services	notifies	the
Legislature	that	the	Statewide	Automated	Welfare	System	can
perform	the	necessary	automation	to	implement	these
provisions	or	no	automation	is	necessary,	whichever	date	is
later.	To	the	extent	this	bill	would	expand	county	duties,	the
bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The
California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local
agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by
the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for
making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that,	if	the
Commission	on	State	Mandates	determines	that	the	bill
contains	costs	mandated	by	the	state,	reimbursement	for
those	costs	shall	be	made	pursuant	to	the	statutory	provisions
noted	above.

Primary	Sponsors
Nancy	Skinner

Introduction	Date:	2023-01-25

Bill	Number
SB	242

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

113

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=cc30a7918b0ddbd98b2d8e4051e6900a


Title
Medi-Cal:	federally	qualified	health	centers	and	rural	health
clinics.

Description
SB	282,	as	amended,	Eggman.	Medi-Cal:	federally	qualified
health	centers	and	rural	health	clinics.	Existing	law
establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by
the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under
which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care
services,	including	federally	qualified	health	center	(FQHC)
services	and	rural	health	clinic	(RHC)	services.	The	Medi-Cal
program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid
program	provisions.	Under	existing	law,	to	the	extent	that
federal	financial	participation	is	available,	FQHC	and	RHC
services	are	reimbursed	on	a	per-visit	basis,	as	specified.
“Visit”	is	defined	as	a	face-to-face	encounter	between	a
patient	of	an	FQHC	or	RHC	and	a	physician	or	other	specified
health	care	professionals.	Under	existing	law,	“visit”	also
includes	an	encounter	using	video	or	audio-only	synchronous
interaction	or	an	asynchronous	store	and	forward	modality,	as
specified.This	bill	would	authorize	reimbursement	for	a
maximum	of	2	visits	that	take	place	on	the	same	day	at	a
single	site,	whether	through	a	face-to-face	or	telehealth-
based	encounter,	if	after	the	first	visit	the	patient	suffers
illness	or	injury	that	requires	additional	diagnosis	or
treatment,	or	if	the	patient	has	a	medical	visit	and	either	a
mental	health	visit	or	a	dental	visit,	as	defined.	The	bill	would
require	the	department,	by	July	1,	2024,	to	submit	a	state
plan	amendment	to	the	federal	Centers	for	Medicare	and
Medicaid	Services	reflecting	those	provisions.The	bill	would
include	a	licensed	acupuncturist	within	those	health	care
professionals	covered	under	the	definition	of	a	“visit.”	The	bill
would	also	make	a	change	to	the	provision	relating	to
physicians	and	would	make	other	technical	changes.

Primary	Sponsors
Susan	Eggman,	Mike	McGuire,	Cecilia	Aguiar-Curry,	Jim	Wood

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-01

Bill	Number
SB	282

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Support

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	27,	2023,	7:27	PM
Local	Health	Plans	of	California:	Support	L.A.	Care:	Support

114

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=0b582ad13991ee65a34647ac038c2939


Title
Health	care	coverage:	independent	medical	review.

Description
SB	294,	as	amended,	Wiener.	Health	care	coverage:
independent	medical	review.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene
Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the
licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the
Department	of	Managed	Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful
violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the
regulation	of	disability	insurers	by	the	Department	of
Insurance.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Independent	Medical
Review	System	within	each	department,	under	which	an
enrollee	or	insured	may	seek	review	if	a	health	care	service
has	been	denied,	modified,	or	delayed	by	a	health	care
service	plan	or	disability	insurer	and	the	enrollee	or	insured
has	previously	filed	a	grievance	that	remains	unresolved	after
30	days.This	bill,	commencing	July	1,	2025,	would	require	a
health	care	service	plan	or	a	disability	insurer	that	upholds	its
decision	to	modify,	delay,	or	deny	a	health	care	service	in
response	to	a	grievance	or	has	a	grievance	that	is	otherwise
pending	or	unresolved	upon	expiration	of	the	relevant
timeframe	to	automatically	submit	within	24	hours	a	decision
regarding	a	disputed	health	care	service	to	the	Independent
Medical	Review	System,	as	well	as	the	information	that
informed	its	decision,	if	the	decision	is	to	deny,	modify,	or
delay	specified	services	relating	to	mental	health	or
substance	use	disorder	conditions	for	an	enrollee	or	insured
up	to	26	years	of	age.	The	bill	would	require	a	health	care
service	plan	or	disability	insurer,	within	24	hours	after
submitting	its	decision	to	the	Independent	Medical	Review
System	to	provide	notice	to	the	appropriate	department,	the
enrollee	or	insured	or	their	representative,	if	any,	and	the
enrollee’s	or	insured’s	provider.	The	bill	would	require	the
notice	to	include	notification	to	the	enrollee	or	insured	that
they	or	their	representative	may	cancel	the	independent
medical	review	at	any	time	before	a	determination,	as
specified.This	bill,	commencing	July	1,	2025,	would	require	a
health	care	service	plan	or	disability	insurer	that	provides
coverage	for	mental	health	or	substance	use	disorders	to
treat	a	modification,	delay,	or	denial	issued	in	response	to	an
authorization	request	for	coverage	of	treatment	for	a	mental
health	or	substance	use	disorder	for	an	insured	up	to	26	years
of	age	as	if	the	modification,	delay,	or	denial	is	also	a
grievance	submitted	by	the	enrollee	or	insured.	The	bill	would
require	a	plan	or	insurer	to	provide	a	written	acknowledgment
of	a	grievance	that	is	automatically	generated	and	would
specify	the	circumstances	under	which	that	grievance	is
required	to	be	submitted	automatically	to	independent
medical	review.The	bill	would	apply	specified	existing
provisions	relating	to	mental	health	and	substance	use	disor...
(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Scott	Wiener

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-02

Bill	Number
SB	294

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

115

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=149b113bb47fa3f69ca0fafe46a18c93


Title
Health	care	coverage:	endometriosis.

Description
SB	324,	as	amended,	Limón.	Health	care	coverage:
endometriosis.	(1)	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health
insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law
generally	authorizes	a	health	care	service	plan	or	health
insurer	to	use	prior	authorization	and	other	utilization	review
functions,	under	which	a	licensed	physician	or	a	licensed
health	care	professional	who	is	competent	to	evaluate	specific
clinical	issues	may	approve,	modify,	delay,	or	deny	requests
for	health	care	services	based	on	medical	necessity.This	bill
would	prohibit	a	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	health
insurance	policy	issued,	amended,	delivered,	or	renewed	on
or	after	January	1,	2024,	from	requiring	prior	authorization	or
other	utilization	review	for	any	clinically	indicated	treatment
for	endometriosis,	as	determined	by	the	treating	physician
and	consistent	with	nationally	recognized	evidence-based
clinical	guidelines.	Because	a	willful	violation	of	these
provisions	by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the
bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.(2)	Existing
law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered
by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under
which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care
services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and
funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.	Existing	law
sets	forth	a	schedule	of	benefits	under	the	Medi-Cal
program.This	bill	would	add	any	clinically	indicated	treatment
for	endometriosis,	as	determined	by	the	treating	physician
and	consistent	with	nationally	recognized	evidence-based
clinical	guidelines,	as	a	covered	benefit	under	Medi-Cal
without	prior	authorization	or	other	utilization	review.(3)	The
California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local
agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by
the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for
making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no
reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Monique	Limon

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-06

Bill	Number
SB	324

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Apr	17,	2023,	4:45	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans:	Oppose

116

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=a32a7416b11f7ee267d938688e108431


Title
HIV	preexposure	prophylaxis	and	postexposure	prophylaxis.

Description
SB	339,	Wiener.	HIV	preexposure	prophylaxis	and
postexposure	prophylaxis.	Existing	law,	the	Pharmacy	Law,
provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of	pharmacists	by
the	California	State	Board	of	Pharmacy.	Existing	law
authorizes	a	pharmacist	to	furnish	at	least	a	30-day	supply	of
HIV	preexposure	prophylaxis,	and	up	to	a	60-day	supply	of
those	drugs	if	certain	conditions	are	met.	Existing	law	also
authorizes	a	pharmacist	to	furnish	postexposure	prophylaxis
to	a	patient	if	certain	conditions	are	met.This	bill	would
authorize	a	pharmacist	to	furnish	up	to	a	90-day	course	of
preexposure	prophylaxis,	or	preexposure	prophylaxis	beyond
a	90-day	course,	if	specified	conditions	are	met.	The	bill	would
require	the	California	State	Board	of	Pharmacy	to	adopt
emergency	regulations	to	implement	these	provisions	by
October	31,	2024.Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	also	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health
insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law
prohibits	a	health	care	service	plan	or	health	insurer	from
covering	preexposure	prophylaxis	that	has	been	furnished	by
a	pharmacist	in	excess	of	a	60-day	supply	once	every	2	years,
except	as	specified.Existing	law	provides	for	the	Medi-Cal
program	administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health
Care	Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income
individuals	receive	health	care	services	pursuant	to	a
schedule	of	benefits.	The	existing	schedule	of	benefits
includes	coverage	for	preexposure	prophylaxis	as	pharmacist
services,	limited	to	no	more	than	a	60-day	supply	furnished
by	a	pharmacist	once	every	2	years,	and	includes	coverage
for	postexposure	prophylaxis,	subject	to	approval	by	the
federal	Centers	for	Medicare	and	Medicaid	Services.	The	Medi-
Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal
Medicaid	program	provisions.This	bill	would	require	a	health
care	service	plan	and	health	insurer	to	cover	preexposure
prophylaxis	and	postexposure	prophylaxis	furnished	by	a
pharmacist,	including	the	pharmacist’s	services	and	related
testing	ordered	by	the	pharmacist,	and	to	pay	or	reimburse
for	the	service	performed	by	a	pharmacist	at	an	in-network
pharmacy	or	a	pharmacist	at	an	out-of-network	pharmacy	if
the	health	care	service	plan	or	health	insurer	has	an	out-of-
network	pharmacy	benefit,	except	as	specified.	The	bill	would
include	preexposure	prophylaxis	furnished	by	a	pharmacist	as
pharmacist	services	on	the	Medi-Cal	schedule	of	benefits.
Because	a	willful	violation	of	these	provisions	by	a	health	care
service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	this	bill	would	impose	a	state-
mandated	l...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Scott	Wiener,	Mike	Gipson

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-07

Bill	Number
SB	339

Status
Enacted

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Jan	11,	2024,	5:48	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans:	Oppose	Unless	Amended

117

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=a4137c74f5e708c05a993308e562ba1d


Title
Medi-Cal:	eyeglasses:	Prison	Industry	Authority.

Description
SB	340,	as	introduced,	Eggman.	Medi-Cal:	eyeglasses:	Prison
Industry	Authority.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Prison	Industry
Authority	within	the	Department	of	Corrections	and
Rehabilitation	and	authorizes	it	to	operate	industrial,
agricultural,	and	service	enterprises	that	provide	products	and
services	needed	by	the	state,	or	any	political	subdivision	of
the	state,	or	by	the	federal	government,	or	any	department,
agency,	or	corporation	of	the	federal	government,	or	for	any
other	public	use.	Existing	law	requires	state	agencies	to
purchase	these	products	and	services	at	the	prices	fixed	by
the	authority.	Existing	law	also	requires	state	agencies	to
make	maximum	utilization	of	these	products	and	consult	with
the	staff	of	the	authority	to	develop	new	products	and	adapt
existing	products	to	meet	their	needs.Existing	law	establishes
the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by	the	State
Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under	which	qualified
low-income	individuals	receive	health	care	services,	including
certain	optometric	services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,
governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program
provisions.This	bill,	for	purposes	of	Medi-Cal	reimbursement
for	covered	optometric	services,	would	authorize	a	provider	to
obtain	eyeglasses	from	a	private	entity,	as	an	alternative	to	a
purchase	of	eyeglasses	from	the	Prison	Industry	Authority.	The
bill	would	condition	implementation	of	this	provision	on	the
availability	of	federal	financial	participation.The	bill,
notwithstanding	the	above-described	requirements,	would
authorize	a	provider	participating	in	the	Medi-Cal	program	to
obtain	eyeglasses	from	the	authority	or	private	entities,	based
on	the	optometrist’s	needs	and	assessment	of	quality	and
value.

Primary	Sponsors
Susan	Eggman,	Scott	Wilk

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-07

Bill	Number
SB	340

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

118

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=4f2154d3388e2ef11dad54c47d13d5c6


Title
Facilities	for	inpatient	and	residential	mental	health	and
substance	use	disorder:	database.

Description
SB	363,	as	amended,	Eggman.	Facilities	for	inpatient	and
residential	mental	health	and	substance	use	disorder:
database.	Existing	law	generally	requires	the	State
Department	of	Public	Health	to	license,	inspect,	and	regulate
health	facilities,	defined	to	include,	among	other	types	of
health	facilities,	an	acute	psychiatric	hospital.	Existing	law
generally	requires	the	State	Department	of	Social	Services	to
license,	inspect,	and	regulate	various	types	of	care	facilities,
including,	among	others,	a	community	crisis	home.	Existing
law	requires	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	to
license	and	regulate	facilities	that	provide	residential
nonmedical	services	to	adults	who	are	recovering	from
problems	related	to	alcohol,	drug,	or	alcohol	and	drug	misuse
or	abuse,	and	who	need	alcohol,	drug,	or	alcohol	and	drug
recovery	treatment	or	detoxification	services.This	bill	would
require,	by	January	1,	2026,	the	State	Department	of	Health
Care	Services,	in	consultation	with	the	State	Department	of
Public	Health	and	the	State	Department	of	Social	Services,
and	by	conferring	with	specified	stakeholders,	to	develop	a
real-time,	internet-based	database	to	collect,	aggregate,	and
display	information	about	beds	in	specified	types	of	facilities,
such	as	chemical	dependency	recovery	hospitals,	acute
psychiatric	hospitals,	and	mental	health	rehabilitation	centers,
among	others,	to	identify	the	availability	of	inpatient	and
residential	mental	health	or	substance	use	disorder
treatment.	The	bill	would	require	the	database	to	include	a
minimum	of	specific	information,	including	the	contact
information	for	a	facility’s	designated	employee,	the	types	of
diagnoses	or	treatments	for	which	the	bed	is	appropriate,	and
the	target	populations	served	at	the	facility,	and	have	the
capacity	to,	among	other	things,	enable	searches	to	identify
beds	that	are	appropriate	for	individuals	in	need	of	inpatient
or	residential	mental	health	or	substance	use	disorder
treatment.This	bill	would	authorize	the	department	to	impose
a	plan	of	correction	or	assess	penalties	against	a	facility	that
fails	to	submit	data	accurately,	timely,	or	as	otherwise
required	and	would	establish	a	process	for	facilities	to	appeal
these	penalties.	The	bill	would	create	the	Available	Care	for
Inpatient	and	Residential	Mental	Health	or	Substance	Use
Disorder	Treatment	Database	Maintenance	and	Oversight
Fund	for	the	receipt	of	any	penalties.	Because	the	bill	would
continuously	appropriate	moneys	in	the	fund	for
administrative	costs	of	implementing	the	database,	it	would
create	an	appropriation.

Primary	Sponsors
Susan	Eggman

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-08

Bill	Number
SB	363

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

119

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=310370dd5a0fae48ad1077ad32265fe8


Title
Medi-Cal:	Whole	Child	Model	program.

Description
SB	424,	as	amended,	Durazo.	Medi-Cal:	Whole	Child	Model
program.	Existing	law	establishes	the	California	Children’s
Services	(CCS)	Program,	administered	by	the	State
Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	a	designated	agency
of	each	county,	to	provide	medically	necessary	services	for
persons	under	21	years	of	age	who	have	any	of	specified
medical	conditions	and	who	meet	certain	financial	eligibility
requirements.Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,
which	is	administered	by	the	department	and	under	which
qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care	services.
The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by
federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.	Existing	law	requires	the
department	to	establish	a	statewide	Whole	Child	Model
program	stakeholder	advisory	group	that	includes	specified
persons,	including	CCS	case	managers,	and	to	consult	with
that	advisory	group	on	prescribed	matters.	Existing	law
terminates	the	advisory	group	on	December	31,	2023.This	bill
would	extend	the	operation	of	the	advisory	group	until
December	31,	2026.

Primary	Sponsors
Maria	Durazo

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-13

Bill	Number
SB	424

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Jul	17,	2023,	9:27	PM
Local	Health	Plans	of	California:	Oppose	Unless	Amended	(Removed)

120

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=2c3165309147097f9ecc631d4b677785


Title
Health	care	coverage:	antiretroviral	drugs,	drug	devices,	and
drug	products.

Description
SB	427,	as	amended,	Portantino.	Health	care	coverage:
antiretroviral	drugs,	drug	devices,	and	drug	products.	Existing
law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,
provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care
service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed	Health	Care	and
makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Existing	law
provides	for	the	regulation	of	health	insurers	by	the
Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	generally	prohibits	a
health	care	service	plan	or	health	insurer	from	subjecting
antiretroviral	drugs	that	are	medically	necessary	for	the
prevention	of	HIV/AIDS,	including	preexposure	prophylaxis	or
postexposure	prophylaxis,	to	prior	authorization	or	step
therapy.	Under	existing	law,	a	health	care	service	plan	or
health	insurer	is	not	required	to	cover	all	the	therapeutically
equivalent	versions	of	those	drugs	without	prior	authorization
or	step	therapy	if	at	least	one	is	covered	without	prior
authorization	or	step	therapy.This	bill	would	prohibit	a	health
care	service	plan	or	health	insurer	from	subjecting
antiretroviral	drugs,	drug	devices,	or	drug	products	that	are
either	approved	by	the	United	States	Food	and	Drug
Administration	(FDA)	or	recommended	by	the	federal	Centers
for	Disease	Control	and	Prevention	(CDC)	for	the	prevention	of
HIV/AIDS,	to	prior	authorization	or	step	therapy,	but	would
authorize	prior	authorization	or	step	therapy	if	at	least	one
therapeutically	equivalent	version	is	covered	without	prior
authorization	or	step	therapy	and	the	plan	or	insurer	provides
coverage	for	a	noncovered	therapeutic	equivalent
antiretroviral	drug,	drug	device,	or	drug	product	without	cost
sharing	pursuant	to	an	exception	request.	The	bill	would
require	a	plan	or	insurer	to	provide	coverage	under	the
outpatient	prescription	drug	benefit	for	those	drugs,	drug
devices,	or	drug	products,	including	by	supplying	participating
providers	directly	with	a	drug,	drug	device,	or	drug	product,
as	specified.This	bill	would	require	a	nongrandfathered	or
grandfathered	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	health
insurance	policy	to	provide	coverage	for	antiretroviral	drugs,
drug	devices,	or	drug	products	that	are	either	approved	by
the	FDA	or	recommended	by	the	CDC	for	the	prevention	of
HIV/AIDS,	and	would	prohibit	a	nongrandfathered	or
grandfathered	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	health
insurance	policy	from	imposing	any	cost-sharing	or	utilization
review	requirements	for	those	drugs,	drug	devices,	or	drug
products.	The	bill	would	delay	the	application	of	these
provisions	for	an	individual	and	small	group	health	care
service	plan	contract	or	health	insurance	policy	until	January
1,	2025.	Because	a	willful	violation	of	these	provisions	by	a
health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	this	b...	(click	bill
link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Anthony	Portantino

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-13

Bill	Number
SB	427

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	27,	2023,	6:00	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans:	Oppose

121

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=acfcdb61d0dce6cb5f495964346e9454


Title
Health	care	coverage:	prior	authorization.

Description
SB	516,	as	amended,	Skinner.	Health	care	coverage:	prior
authorization.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health
insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law
generally	authorizes	a	health	care	service	plan	or	health
insurer	to	use	prior	authorization	and	other	utilization	review
or	utilization	management	functions,	under	which	a	licensed
physician	or	a	licensed	health	care	professional	who	is
competent	to	evaluate	specific	clinical	issues	may	approve,
modify,	delay,	or	deny	requests	for	health	care	services	based
on	medical	necessity.	Existing	law	requires	a	health	care
service	plan	or	health	insurer,	including	those	plans	or
insurers	that	delegate	utilization	review	or	utilization
management	functions	to	medical	groups,	independent
practice	associations,	or	to	other	contracting	providers,	to
comply	with	specified	requirements	and	limitations	on	their
utilization	review	or	utilization	management	functions.
Existing	law	requires	the	criteria	or	guidelines	used	to
determine	whether	or	not	to	authorize,	modify,	or	deny	health
care	services	to	be	developed	with	involvement	from	actively
practicing	health	care	providers.On	or	after	January	1,	2026,
this	bill	would	prohibit	a	health	care	service	plan	or	health
insurer	from	requiring	a	contracted	health	professional	to
complete	or	obtain	a	prior	authorization	for	any	covered
health	care	services	if	the	plan	or	insurer	approved	or	would
have	approved	not	less	than	90%	of	the	prior	authorization
requests	they	submitted	in	the	most	recent	completed	one-
year	contracted	period.	The	bill	would	set	standards	for	this
exemption	and	its	denial,	rescission,	and	appeal.	The	bill
would	authorize	a	plan	or	insurer	to	evaluate	the	continuation
of	an	exemption	not	more	than	once	every	12	months,	and
would	authorize	a	plan	or	insurer	to	rescind	an	exemption
only	at	the	end	of	the	12-month	period	and	only	if	specified
criteria	are	met.	The	bill	would	require	a	plan	or	insurer	to
provide	an	electronic	prior	authorization	process.	The	bill
would	also	require	a	plan	or	insurer	to	have	a	process	for
annually	monitoring	prior	authorization	approval,
modification,	appeal,	and	denial	rates	to	identify	services,
items,	and	supplies	that	are	regularly	approved,	and	to
discontinue	prior	authorization	on	those	services,	items,	and
supplies	that	are	approved	95%	of	the	time.	Because	a	willful
violation	of	the	bill’s	requirements	relative	to	health	care
service	plans	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-
mandated	local	program.The	California	Constit...	(click	bill	link
to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Nancy	Skinner

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-14

Bill	Number
SB	516

Status
Passed	Assembly

Position
Monitor

122

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=658549fcc21089ba58ef5fd55e40a7fb


Title
Open	meetings:	multijurisdictional,	cross-county	agencies:
teleconferences.

Description
SB	537,	as	amended,	Becker.	Open	meetings:
multijurisdictional,	cross-county	agencies:	teleconferences.
Existing	law,	the	Ralph	M.	Brown	Act,	requires,	with	specified
exceptions,	that	all	meetings	of	a	legislative	body,	as	defined,
of	a	local	agency	be	open	and	public	and	that	all	persons	be
permitted	to	attend	and	participate.	The	act	generally
requires	for	teleconferencing	that	the	legislative	body	of	a
local	agency	that	elects	to	use	teleconferencing	post	agendas
at	all	teleconference	locations,	identify	each	teleconference
location	in	the	notice	and	agenda	of	the	meeting	or
proceeding,	and	have	each	teleconference	location	be
accessible	to	the	public.	Existing	law	also	requires	that,	during
the	teleconference,	at	least	a	quorum	of	the	members	of	the
legislative	body	participate	from	locations	within	the
boundaries	of	the	territory	over	which	the	local	agency
exercises	jurisdiction.	The	act	provides	an	exemption	to	the
jurisdictional	requirement	for	health	authorities,	as
defined.Existing	law,	until	January	1,	2024,	authorizes	the
legislative	body	of	a	local	agency	to	use	alternate
teleconferencing	provisions	during	a	proclaimed	state	of
emergency	or	in	other	situations	related	to	public	health	that
exempt	a	legislative	body	from	the	general	requirements
(emergency	provisions)	and	impose	different	requirements	for
notice,	agenda,	and	public	participation,	as	prescribed.	The
emergency	provisions	specify	that	they	do	not	require	a
legislative	body	to	provide	a	physical	location	from	which	the
public	may	attend	or	comment.Existing	law,	until	January	1,
2026,	authorizes	the	legislative	body	of	a	local	agency	to	use
alternative	teleconferencing	in	certain	circumstances	related
to	the	particular	member	if	at	least	a	quorum	of	its	members
participate	from	a	singular	physical	location	that	is	open	to
the	public	and	situated	within	the	agency’s	jurisdiction	and
other	requirements	are	met,	including	restrictions	on	remote
participation	by	a	member	of	the	legislative	body.	These
circumstances	include	if	a	member	shows	“just	cause,”
including	for	a	childcare	or	caregiving	need	of	a	relative	that
requires	the	member	to	participate	remotely.	This	bill	would
expand	the	circumstances	of	“just	cause”	to	apply	to	the
situation	in	which	an	immunocompromised	child,	parent,
grandparent,	or	other	specified	relative	requires	the	member
to	participate	remotely.	The	bill	would	authorize	the	legislative
body	of	a	multijurisdictional,	cross-county	agency,	as
specified,	to	use	alternate	teleconferencing	provisions	if	the
eligible	legislative	body	has	adopted	an	authorizing
resolution,	as	specified.	The	bill	would	also	require	the
legislative	body	to	provide	a	record	of	attendance	of	the
members	of	the	legislative	body,	the	number	of	community
me...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Josh	Becker

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-14

Bill	Number
SB	537

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

123

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=ba8f7a1cf5b578349f71d7496f4cd859


Title
Health	care	coverage:	prior	authorization.

Description
SB	598,	as	amended,	Skinner.	Health	care	coverage:	prior
authorization.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health
insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law
generally	authorizes	a	health	care	service	plan	or	health
insurer	to	use	prior	authorization	and	other	utilization	review
or	utilization	management	functions,	under	which	a	licensed
physician	or	a	licensed	health	care	professional	who	is
competent	to	evaluate	specific	clinical	issues	may	approve,
modify,	delay,	or	deny	requests	for	health	care	services	based
on	medical	necessity.	Existing	law	requires	a	health	care
service	plan	or	health	insurer,	including	those	plans	or
insurers	that	delegate	utilization	review	or	utilization
management	functions	to	medical	groups,	independent
practice	associations,	or	to	other	contracting	providers,	to
comply	with	specified	requirements	and	limitations	on	their
utilization	review	or	utilization	management	functions.
Existing	law	requires	the	criteria	or	guidelines	used	to
determine	whether	or	not	to	authorize,	modify,	or	deny	health
care	services	to	be	developed	with	involvement	from	actively
practicing	health	care	providers.On	or	after	January	1,	2026,
this	bill	would	prohibit	a	health	care	service	plan	or	health
insurer	from	requiring	a	contracted	health	professional	to
complete	or	obtain	a	prior	authorization	for	any	covered
health	care	services	if	the	plan	or	insurer	approved	or	would
have	approved	not	less	than	90%	of	the	prior	authorization
requests	they	submitted	in	the	most	recent	completed	one-
year	contracted	period.	The	bill	would	set	standards	for	this
exemption	and	its	denial,	rescission,	and	appeal.	The	bill
would	authorize	a	plan	or	insurer	to	evaluate	the	continuation
of	an	exemption	not	more	than	once	every	12	months,	and
would	authorize	a	plan	or	insurer	to	rescind	an	exemption
only	at	the	end	of	the	12-month	period	and	only	if	specified
criteria	are	met.	The	bill	would	require	a	plan	or	insurer	to
provide	an	electronic	prior	authorization	process.	The	bill
would	also	require	a	plan	or	insurer	to	have	a	process	for
annually	monitoring	prior	authorization	approval,
modification,	appeal,	and	denial	rates	to	identify	services,
items,	and	supplies	that	are	regularly	approved,	and	to
discontinue	prior	authorization	on	those	services,	items,	and
supplies	that	are	approved	95%	of	the	time.	Because	a	willful
violation	of	the	bill’s	requirements	relative	to	health	care
service	plans	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-
mandated	local	program.The	California	Constitut...	(click	bill
link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Nancy	Skinner

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-15

Bill	Number
SB	598

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Jun	5,	2023,	8:59	PM
Local	Health	Plans	of	California:	Oppose	Unless	Amended

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Apr	17,	2023,	4:46	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans:	Oppose

124

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=376de67fd637f91e8b77687ca11412fe


Title
Controlled	substances.

Description
SB	607,	as	amended,	Portantino.	Controlled	substances.
Existing	law	requires	a	prescriber,	with	certain	exceptions,
before	directly	dispensing	or	issuing	for	a	minor	the	first
prescription	for	a	controlled	substance	containing	an	opioid	in
a	single	course	of	treatment,	to	discuss	specified	information
with	the	minor,	the	minor’s	parent	or	guardian,	or	another
adult	authorized	to	consent	to	the	minor’s	medical
treatment.This	bill	would	extend	that	requirement	for	the
prescriber	by	applying	it	to	any	patient,	not	only	a	minor,
under	those	circumstances.

Primary	Sponsors
Anthony	Portantino

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-15

Bill	Number
SB	607

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

125

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=ed037a7e4806dfb9914c327ddf4efe7e


Title
Health	care	coverage:	treatment	for	infertility	and	fertility
services.

Description
SB	729,	as	amended,	Menjivar.	Health	care	coverage:
treatment	for	infertility	and	fertility	services.	Existing	law,	the
Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for
the	licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by
the	Department	of	Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful
violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the
regulation	of	disability	insurers	by	the	Department	of
Insurance.	Existing	law	imposes	various	requirements	and
restrictions	on	health	care	service	plans	and	disability
insurers,	including,	among	other	things,	a	requirement	that
every	group	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	disability
insurance	policy	that	is	issued,	amended,	or	renewed	on	or
after	January	1,	1990,	offer	coverage	for	the	treatment	of
infertility,	except	in	vitro	fertilization.This	bill	would	require
large	and	small	group	health	care	service	plan	contracts	and
disability	insurance	policies	issued,	amended,	or	renewed	on
or	after	January	1,	2024,	to	provide	coverage	for	the	diagnosis
and	treatment	of	infertility	and	fertility	services.	With	respect
to	large	group	health	care	service	plan	contracts	and
disability	insurance	policies,	the	bill	would	require	coverage
for	a	maximum	of	3	completed	oocyte	retrievals,	as	specified.
The	bill	would	revise	the	definition	of	infertility,	and	would
remove	the	exclusion	of	in	vitro	fertilization	from	coverage.
The	bill	would	also	delete	a	requirement	that	a	health	care
service	plan	contract	and	disability	insurance	policy	provide
infertility	treatment	under	agreed-upon	terms	that	are
communicated	to	all	group	contractholders	and	policyholders.
The	bill	would	prohibit	a	health	care	service	plan	or	disability
insurer	from	placing	different	conditions	or	coverage
limitations	on	fertility	medications	or	services,	or	the
diagnosis	and	treatment	of	infertility	and	fertility	services,
than	would	apply	to	other	conditions,	as	specified.	The	bill
would	make	these	requirements	inapplicable	to	a	religious
employer,	as	defined,	and	specified	contracts	and
policies.Because	the	violation	of	these	provisions	by	a	health
care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a
state-mandated	local	program.The	California	Constitution
requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies	and	school
districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory
provisions	establish	procedures	for	making	that
reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no	reimbursement
is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Caroline	Menjivar,	Buffy	Wicks

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-17

Bill	Number
SB	729

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	27,	2023,	6:01	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans:	Oppose

126

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=bfcbbb5a71bbfc4108a5733b1b1ab5ea


Title
Medi-Cal:	certification.

Description
SB	819,	as	amended,	Eggman.	Medi-Cal:	certification.	Existing
law	requires	the	State	Department	of	Public	Health	to	license
and	regulate	clinics.	Existing	law	exempts	from	those
licensing	provisions	certain	clinics	that	are	directly	conducted,
maintained,	or	operated	by	federal,	state,	or	local
governmental	entities,	as	specified.	Existing	law	also	exempts
from	those	licensing	provisions	a	clinic	that	is	operated	by	a
primary	care	community	or	free	clinic,	that	is	operated	on
separate	premises	from	the	licensed	clinic,	and	that	is	only
open	for	limited	services	of	no	more	than	40	hours	per
week.Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is
administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services	(department)	and	under	which	qualified	low-income
individuals	receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal
program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid
program	provisions.Existing	law	sets	forth	various	procedures,
including	the	submission	of	an	application	package,	for
providers	to	enroll	in	the	Medi-Cal	program.	Under	existing
law,	an	applicant	or	provider	that	is	a	government-run	license-
exempt	clinic	as	described	above	is	required	to	comply	with
those	Medi-Cal	enrollment	procedures.Under	existing	law,	an
applicant	or	provider	that	is	operated	on	separate	premises
and	is	license	exempt,	including	an	intermittent	site	or	mobile
health	care	unit	that	is	operated	by	a	licensed	primary	care
clinic	that	provides	all	staffing,	protocols,	equipment,
supplies,	and	billing	services,	is	not	required	to	enroll	in	the
Medi-Cal	program	as	a	separate	provider	or	comply	with	the
above-described	enrollment	procedures,	if	the	licensed
primary	care	clinic	has	notified	the	department	of	its	separate
locations,	premises,	intermittent	sites,	or	mobile	health	care
units.This	bill	would	additionally	exempt	from	the	Medi-Cal
enrollment	procedures	an	intermittent	site	or	mobile	health
care	unit	that	is	operated	by	the	above-described
government-run	license-exempt	clinic	if	that	clinic	has	notified
the	department	of	its	separate	locations,	premises,	sites,	or
units.The	bill	would	make	legislative	findings	stating	that	this
bill	is	declaratory	of	existing	law,	as	specified.

Primary	Sponsors
Susan	Eggman

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-17

Bill	Number
SB	819

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

127

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=23f63c970f29841ff13f6bb3ebb6ce95


Title
Prescription	drugs:	cost	sharing.

Description
SB	873,	as	introduced,	Bradford.	Prescription	drugs:	cost
sharing.	(1)	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service
Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of
health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed
Health	Care	under	authority	of	the	Director	of	the	Department
of	Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the
act	a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health
insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance	under	the	authority
of	the	Insurance	Commissioner.	Existing	law	limits	the
maximum	amount	an	enrollee	or	insured	may	be	required	to
pay	at	the	point	of	sale	for	a	covered	prescription	drug	to	the
lesser	of	the	applicable	cost-sharing	amount	or	the	retail
price.This	bill,	commencing	no	later	than	January	1,	2025,
would	require	an	enrollee’s	or	insured’s	defined	cost	sharing
for	each	prescription	drug	to	be	calculated	at	the	point	of	sale
based	on	a	price	that	is	reduced	by	an	amount	equal	to	90%
of	all	rebates	received,	or	to	be	received,	in	connection	with
the	dispensing	or	administration	of	the	drug.	The	bill	would
require	a	health	care	service	plan	or	health	insurer	to,	among
other	things,	pass	through	to	each	enrollee	or	insured	at	the
point	of	sale	a	good	faith	estimate	of	the	enrollee’s	or
insured’s	decrease	in	cost	sharing.	The	bill	would	require	a
health	care	service	plan	or	health	insurer	to	calculate	an
enrollee’s	or	insured’s	defined	cost	sharing	and	provide	that
information	to	the	dispensing	pharmacy,	as	specified.	The	bill
would	require	the	department	and	the	commissioner	to
submit	an	annual	report	on	the	impact	of	these	provisions	to
the	appropriate	policy	committees	of	the	Legislature,	as
specified.	The	bill	would	make	these	provisions	inoperative	on
January	1,	2027.(2)	Existing	law	requires	a	health	care	service
plan	or	health	insurer	that	files	certain	rate	information	to
report	to	the	appropriate	department	specified	cost
information	regarding	covered	prescription	drugs,	including
generic	drugs,	brand	name	drugs,	and	specialty	drugs,
dispensed	as	provided.This	bill,	until	January	1,	2027,	would
require	a	health	care	service	plan	or	health	insurer	to	report
additional	information	on	the	above-described	point	of	sale
provision.(3)	Because	a	willful	violation	of	the	bill’s	provisions
by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would
impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The	California
Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies
and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.
Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for	making	that
reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no	reimbursement
is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Steve	Bradford

Introduction	Date:	2023-02-17

Bill	Number
SB	873

Status
In	Assembly

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Apr	17,	2023,	4:06	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans:	Oppose

128

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=3f70df603dff1ea1b7099c9dfd518e2b


Title
Medi-Cal:	menstrual	products.

Description
SB	953,	as	introduced,	Menjivar.	Medi-Cal:	menstrual
products.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,
which	is	administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income	individuals
receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,
governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.
Existing	law	establishes	a	schedule	of	covered	benefits	under
the	Medi-Cal	program.This	bill	would	add	menstrual	products,
as	defined,	to	that	schedule	of	covered	benefits.	The	bill
would	require	the	department	to	seek	any	necessary	federal
approvals	to	implement	this	coverage.	The	bill	would	require
the	department	to	seek,	and	would	authorize	the	department
to	use,	any	and	all	available	federal	funding,	as	specified,	to
implement	this	coverage.

Primary	Sponsors
Caroline	Menjivar

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-22

Bill	Number
SB	953

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

129

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=23750ad3e40470cd5918a62ce1bf98dd


Title
Data	collection:	sexual	orientation	and	gender	identity.

Description
SB	957,	as	introduced,	Wiener.	Data	collection:	sexual
orientation	and	gender	identity.	(1)	Existing	law,	the	Lesbian,
Gay,	Bisexual,	and	Transgender	Disparities	Reduction	Act,
requires	the	State	Department	of	Public	Health,	among	other
specified	state	entities,	in	the	course	of	collecting
demographic	data	directly	or	by	contract	as	to	the	ancestry	or
ethnic	origin	of	Californians,	to	collect	voluntary	self-
identification	information	pertaining	to	sexual	orientation,
gender	identity,	and	intersexuality.Existing	law,	as	an
exception	to	the	provision	above,	authorizes	those	state
entities,	instead	of	requiring	them,	to	collect	the	demographic
data	under	either	of	the	following	circumstances:	(a)	pursuant
to	federal	programs	or	surveys,	whereby	the	guidelines	for
demographic	data	collection	categories	are	defined	by	the
federal	program	or	survey;	or	(b)	demographic	data	are
collected	by	other	entities,	including	other	state	agencies,
surveys	administered	by	third-party	entities	and	the	state
department	is	not	the	sole	funder,	or	third-party	entities	that
provide	aggregated	data	to	a	state	department.This	bill,
notwithstanding	the	exception	above,	would	require	the	State
Department	of	Public	Health	to	collect	the	demographic	data
from	third	parties,	including,	but	not	limited	to,	local	health
jurisdictions,	on	any	forms	or	electronic	data	systems,	unless
prohibited	by	federal	or	state	law.	To	the	extent	that	the	bill
would	create	new	duties	for	local	officials	in	facilitating	the
department’s	data	collection,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-
mandated	local	program.	Existing	law	requires	the	above-
described	state	entities	to	report	to	the	Legislature	the	data
collected	and	the	method	used	to	collect	the	data,	and	to
make	the	data	available	to	the	public,	except	for	personally
identifiable	information.	Existing	law	deems	that	personally
identifiable	information	confidential	and	prohibits	it	disclosure.
Existing	law	sets	forth	different	deadlines,	depending	on	the
specified	state	entity,	for	complying	with	those
requirements.This	bill	would	require	the	State	Department	of
Public	Health,	for	purposes	of	the	data	collected	by	the
department	on	sexual	orientation,	gender	identity,	and
intersexuality,	to	comply	with	the	above-described
requirements	by	July	1,	2026.(2)	Existing	law	authorizes	local
health	officers	and	the	State	Department	of	Public	Health	to
operate	immunization	information	systems.	Existing	law
requires	health	care	providers	and	other	certain	agencies,
including	schools	and	county	human	services	agencies,	to
disclose	specified	immunization	and	other	information	about
the	patient	or	client	to	local	health	departments	and	the	State
Department	of	Public	Health.	Existing	law	authorizes	local
health	departments	and	the	S...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Scott	Wiener

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-22

Bill	Number
SB	957

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

130

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=17bd1a3b04c913685f98c9c1f5936386


Title
Pharmacy	benefits.

Description
SB	966,	as	introduced,	Wiener.	Pharmacy	benefits.	Existing
law,	the	Pharmacy	Law,	establishes	the	California	State	Board
of	Pharmacy	in	the	Department	of	Consumer	Affairs	to	license
and	regulate	the	practice	of	pharmacy.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-
Keene	Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975	(the	Knox-Keene
Act),	a	violation	of	which	is	a	crime,	provides	for	the	licensure
and	regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department
of	Managed	Health	Care.	The	Knox-Keene	Act	requires	a
pharmacy	benefit	manager	under	contract	with	a	health	care
service	plan	to,	among	other	things,	register	with	the
Department	of	Managed	Health	Care.	Existing	law	provides	for
the	regulation	of	health	insurers	by	the	Department	of
Insurance.Existing	law	imposes	requirements	on	audits	of
pharmacy	services	provided	to	beneficiaries	of	a	health
benefit	plan,	as	specified,	and	prohibits	those	audit	provisions
from	being	construed	to	suggest	or	imply	that	the
Department	of	Consumer	Affairs	or	the	California	State	Board
of	Pharmacy	has	any	jurisdiction	or	authority	over	those	audit
provisions.This	bill	would	delete	the	latter	provision	relating	to
the	construction	and	jurisdiction	over	those	provisions	by	the
department	and	the	board.	This	bill	would	require	a	pharmacy
benefit	manager,	as	defined	by	the	bill,	to	apply	for	and
obtain	a	license	from	the	California	State	Board	of	Pharmacy
to	operate	as	a	pharmacy	benefit	manager.	The	bill	would
establish	application	qualifications	and	requirements,	and
would	establish	an	unspecified	fee	for	initial	licensure	and
renewal.This	bill	would	require	a	pharmacy	benefit	manager,
on	or	before	April	1,	2027,	and	annually	thereafter,	to	file	with
the	board	a	report	containing	specified	information.	The	bill
would	specify	that	the	contents	of	the	report	shall	not	be
disclosed	to	the	public.	The	bill	would	require	the	board,	on	or
before	August	1,	2027,	and	annually	thereafter,	to	submit	a
report	to	the	Legislature	based	on	the	reports	submitted	by
licensees,	and	would	require	the	board	to	post	the	report	on
the	board’s	internet	website.This	bill	would	impose	specified
duties	on	pharmacy	benefit	managers	and	requirements	for
pharmacy	benefit	manager	services	and	pharmacy	benefit
manager	contracts,	including	prohibiting	a	pharmacy	benefit
manager	from	deriving	income	from	pharmacy	benefit
management	services,	except	as	specified.	The	bill	would
make	a	violation	of	the	above	specified	provisions	subject	to
specified	civil	penalties.	Existing	law	requires	a	health	care
service	plan	contract	or	health	insurance	policy	that	provides
coverage	for	outpatient	prescription	drugs	to	cover	medically
necessary	prescription	drugs	and	subjects	those	policies	to
certain	limitations	on	cost	sharing	and	the	placement	of	drugs
on	for...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Scott	Wiener

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-24

Bill	Number
SB	966

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

131

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=e35475995cbe63c7b003448815b4785c


Title
Emergency	medical	services:	community	paramedicine.

Description
SB	975,	as	introduced,	Ashby.	Emergency	medical	services:
community	paramedicine.	Existing	law,	the	Emergency
Medical	Services	System	and	the	Prehospital	Emergency
Medical	Care	Personnel	Act,	governs	local	emergency	medical
services	(EMS)	systems.This	bill	would	state	the	intent	of	the
Legislature	to	enact	legislation	relating	to	the	payment	and
reimbursement	for	mobile	integrated	health	and	community
paramedicine	programs.

Primary	Sponsors
Angelique	Ashby

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-29

Title
Medi-Cal:	dental	crowns	and	implants.

Description
SB	980,	as	introduced,	Wahab.	Medi-Cal:	dental	crowns	and
implants.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,
which	is	administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income	individuals
receive	health	care	services,	including	certain	dental	services.
The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by
federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.Under	existing	law,	for
persons	21	years	of	age	or	older,	laboratory-processed	crowns
on	posterior	teeth	are	a	covered	benefit	when	medically
necessary	to	restore	a	posterior	tooth	back	to	normal	function
based	on	the	criteria	specified	in	the	Medi-Cal	Dental	Manual
of	Criteria.This	bill	would	instead	provide	Medi-Cal	coverage,
for	persons	13	years	of	age	or	older,	for	laboratory-processed
crowns	on	teeth	when	a	lesser	service	would	not	suffice
because	of	extensive	coronal	destruction	and	a	crown	is
medically	necessary	to	restore	the	tooth	back	to	normal
function	based	on	the	criteria	specified	in	the	Medi-Cal	Dental
Manual	of	Criteria.	The	bill	would	also	add,	as	a	covered	Medi-
Cal	benefit	for	persons	of	any	age,	a	dental	implant	if	tooth
extraction	or	removal	is	medically	necessary	or	if	the
corresponding	tooth	is	missing.

Primary	Sponsors
Aisha	Wahab

Introduction	Date:	2024-01-29

Bill	Number
SB	975

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
SB	980

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

132

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=4d25e5b8848a43a3afb45325207f5aae
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=f9dd59fe1787b7c1f458c2fbc45b96a4


Title
Health	coverage:	mental	health	and	substance	use	disorders.

Description
SB	999,	as	amended,	Cortese.	Health	coverage:	mental	health
and	substance	use	disorders.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene
Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	requires	the
Department	of	Managed	Health	Care	to	license	and	regulate
health	care	service	plans	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the
act	a	crime.	Existing	law	also	requires	the	Department	of
Insurance	to	regulate	health	insurers.	Existing	law	requires	a
health	care	service	plan	or	disability	insurer,	as	specified,	to
base	medical	necessity	determinations	and	the	utilization
review	criteria	the	plan	or	insurer,	and	any	entity	acting	on
the	plan’s	or	insurer’s	behalf,	applies	to	determine	the
medical	necessity	of	health	care	services	and	benefits	for	the
diagnosis,	prevention,	and	treatment	of	mental	health	and
substance	use	disorders,	on	current	generally	accepted
standards	of	mental	health	and	substance	use	disorder
care.This	bill	would	require	a	health	care	service	plan	and	a
disability	insurer,	and	an	entity	acting	on	a	plan’s	or	insurer’s
behalf,	to	ensure	compliance	with	specific	requirements	for
utilization	review,	including	maintaining	telephone	access	and
other	direct	communication	access	during	California	business
hours	for	a	health	care	provider	to	request	authorization	for
mental	health	and	substance	use	disorder	care	and
conducting	peer-to-peer	discussions	regarding	specific	patient
issues	related	to	treatment.	Because	a	willful	violation	of
these	provisions	by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a
crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local
program.The	California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to
reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs
mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish
procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would
provide	that	no	reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a
specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Dave	Cortese

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-01

Bill	Number
SB	999

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Organizational	Notes

Last	edited	by	Joanne	Campbell	at	Mar	7,	2024,	9:19	PM
California	Association	of	Health	Plans	-	Oppose

133

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=75163051809c8622453e3c2c88f0a123


Title
Obesity	Treatment	Parity	Act.

Description
SB	1008,	as	amended,	Bradford.	Obesity	Treatment	Parity	Act.
Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of
1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care
service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed	Health	Care	and
makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act’s	requirements	a	crime.
Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	disability	and	health
insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	sets
forth	specified	coverage	requirements	for	plan	contracts	and
insurance	policies,	and	limits	the	copayment,	coinsurance,
deductible,	and	other	cost	sharing	that	may	be	imposed	for
specified	health	care	services.This	bill	would	require	an
individual	or	group	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	health
insurance	policy	issued,	amended,	or	renewed	on	or	after
January	1,	2025,	to	include	comprehensive	coverage	for	the
treatment	of	obesity,	including	coverage	for	intensive
behavioral	therapy,	bariatric	surgery,	and	at	least	one	FDA-
approved	antiobesity	medication.Because	a	willful	violation	of
these	provisions	by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a
crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local
program.The	California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to
reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs
mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish
procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would
provide	that	no	reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a
specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Steve	Bradford

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-01

Bill	Number
SB	1008

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

134

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=c1d71d4b72061cbb0faa6ce3ac1b9f18


Title
Available	facilities	for	inpatient	and	residential	mental	health
or	substance	use	disorder	treatment.

Description
SB	1017,	as	introduced,	Eggman.	Available	facilities	for
inpatient	and	residential	mental	health	or	substance	use
disorder	treatment.	Existing	law	generally	requires	the	State
Department	of	Public	Health	to	license,	inspect,	and	regulate
health	facilities,	defined	to	include,	among	other	types	of
health	facilities,	an	acute	psychiatric	hospital.	Existing	law
generally	requires	the	State	Department	of	Social	Services	to
license,	inspect,	and	regulate	various	types	of	care	facilities,
including,	among	others,	a	community	crisis	home.	Existing
law	requires	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	to
license	and	regulate	facilities	that	provide	residential
nonmedical	services	to	adults	who	are	recovering	from
problems	related	to	alcohol,	drug,	or	alcohol	and	drug	misuse
or	abuse,	and	who	need	alcohol,	drug,	or	alcohol	and	drug
recovery	treatment	or	detoxification	services.This	bill	would
require	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services,	in
consultation	with	the	State	Department	of	Public	Health	and
the	State	Department	of	Social	Services,	and	by	conferring
with	specified	stakeholders,	to	develop	a	solution	to	collect,
aggregate,	and	display	information	about	beds	in	specified
types	of	facilities,	including	licensed	community	care	facilities
and	licensed	residential	alcoholism	or	drug	abuse	recovery	or
treatment	facilities,	to	identify	the	availability	of	inpatient	and
residential	mental	health	or	substance	use	disorder
treatment.	The	bill	would	require	the	solution	to	be
operational	by	January	1,	2026,	or	the	date	the	State
Department	of	Health	Care	Services	communicates	to	the
Department	of	Finance	in	writing	that	the	solution	has	been
implemented	to	meet	these	provisions,	whichever	date	is
later.The	bill	would	require	the	facilities	subject	to	these
provisions	to	submit	accurate	and	timely	data	to	the	solution
that	includes,	among	other	information,	the	facility’s	license
type,	whether	a	bed	is	available,	and	the	target	population
served	at	the	facility.	The	bill	would	require	the	solution	and
information	contained	in	the	solution	to	be	maintained	in
compliance	with	state	and	federal	confidentiality	laws.	The	bill
would	also	prohibit	the	solution	and	information	contained	in
the	solution	from	being	publically	available.The	bill	would
authorize	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	to
impose	a	plan	of	correction	against	a	facility	that	failed	to
comply	with	the	requirements	of	the	solution,	and	if	a	facility
fails	to	complete	a	plan	of	correction,	would	further	authorize
the	department	to	impose	civil	penalties,	subject	to	an	appeal
and	hearing	process.	The	bill	would	create	the	Available	Care
for	Inpatient	and	Residential	Mental	Health	or	Substance	Use
Disorder	Treatment	Solution	Maintenance	and	Oversight	Fu...
(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Susan	Eggman

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-05

Bill	Number
SB	1017

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

135

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=9a2984360d5f70b7d674b1056df7904c


Title
General	acute	care	hospitals:	clinical	placements:	nursing.

Description
SB	1042,	as	introduced,	Roth.	General	acute	care	hospitals:
clinical	placements:	nursing.	Existing	law	establishes	the
Department	of	Health	Care	Access	and	Information	in	the
Health	and	Welfare	Agency	to	oversee	health	planning	and
health	policy	research,	such	as	the	health	care	workforce
research	and	data	center.	Existing	law,	the	Nursing	Practice
Act,	establishes	the	Board	of	Registered	Nurses	within	the
Department	of	Consumer	Affairs	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	the	practice	of	nursing.This	bill	would	require	a
health	facility,	as	defined,	that	offers	prelicensure	clinical
placement	slots	upon	the	request	of	an	approved	school	of
nursing	or	an	approved	nursing	program,	as	defined,	and
regardless	of	whether	the	school	or	program	is	public	or
private,	to	meet	with	representatives	of	the	school	or	program
to	discuss	the	clinical	placement	needs	of	the	school	or
program.	The	bill	would	require	an	approved	school	of	nursing
or	an	approved	nursing	program,	regardless	of	whether	the
school	or	program	is	public	or	private,	to	notify	the
department	and	the	board	of	the	beginning	and	end	dates	of
the	academic	term	for	each	clinical	slot	needed	by	a	clinical
group	with	content	area	and	education	level	and	the	number
of	clinical	slots	that	the	school	or	program	has	been	unable	to
fill	by	March	1	of	each	year.Existing	law	requires	an
organization	that	operates,	conducts,	owns,	or	maintains	a
health	facility,	and	the	officers	thereof,	to	make	and	file	with
the	department	specified	reports,	including,	among	others,
balance	sheets	detailing	the	assets,	liabilities,	and	net	worth
of	the	health	facility	at	the	end	of	its	fiscal	year.This	bill	would
further	require	a	report	on	clinical	placement	date	that
includes	specified	information,	including,	among	other	things,
the	estimated	number	of	days	and	shifts	available	for	student
use	for	each	type	of	licensed	bed	or	unit.	The	bill	would
require	the	department	to	post	the	data	in	this	report	with	the
information	required	in	the	March	1	report	described	above	on
the	department’s	internet	website	in	a	manner	that	allows	for
specified	information	in	both	reports	to	be	cross-referenced
against	each	other.The	bill	would	also	require	the	department
and	board	to	utilize	the	data	in	both	reports	described	above
to	work	to	meet	the	clinical	placement	needs	of	approved
schools	of	nursing	or	approved	nursing	programs,	regardless
of	whether	the	school	or	program	is	public	or	private,	by
conferring	with	health	facilities	within	the	appropriate
geographic	region	of	each	school	or	program	in	an	attempt	to
match	available	clinical	placement	slots	with	needed	slots	and
to	create	additional	clinical	placement	slots	to	meet	school	or
program	demands.	In	meeting	these	requirements,	the	bill
would	requi...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Richard	Roth

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-07

Bill	Number
SB	1042

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

136

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=69d89b449fb11e4f2e4a9b3446b770af


Title
Newborn	screening:	genetic	diseases:	blood	samples
collected.

Description
SB	1099,	as	introduced,	Nguyen.	Newborn	screening:	genetic
diseases:	blood	samples	collected.	Existing	law	requires	the
State	Department	of	Public	Health	to	administer	a	statewide
program	for	prenatal	testing	for	genetic	disorders	and	birth
defects,	including,	but	not	limited	to,	ultrasound,
amniocentesis,	chorionic	villus	sampling,	and	blood	testing.
Existing	law	requires	the	department	to	expand	prenatal
screening	to	include	all	tests	that	meet	or	exceed	the	current
standard	of	care	as	recommended	by	national	recognized
medical	or	genetic	organizations.	Existing	law	establishes	the
continuously	appropriated	Birth	Defects	Monitoring	Program
Fund,	consisting	of	fees	paid	for	prenatal	screening,	and
states	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	that	all	costs	of	the	genetic
disease	testing	program	be	fully	supported	by	fees	paid	for
prenatal	screening	tests,	which	are	deposited	in	the	fund.
Existing	law	requires	funds	to	be	available,	upon	appropriation
by	the	Legislature,	in	order	to	support	pregnancy	blood
sample	storage,	testing,	and	research	activities	of	the	Birth
Defects	Monitoring	Program.This	bill	would	require	the
department,	commencing	January	1,	2026,	and	each	January
1	thereafter,	as	part	of	its	research	activities,	to	report	various
data	to	the	Legislature,	including	the	number	of	research
projects	utilizing	residual	screening	samples	from	the	program
and	the	number	of	inheritable	conditions	identified	by	the
original	screening	tests	the	previous	calendar	year.	The	bill
would	also	require	the	annual	report	to	be	made	available	to
the	public	on	the	department’s	internet	website.This	bill
would	make	other	conforming	changes.

Primary	Sponsors
Janet	Nguyen

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Bill	Number
SB	1099

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

137

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=0a64ab3f2d76d9ea8a0fbbd5f26e238b


Title
Medi-Cal:	families	with	subsidized	childcare.

Description
SB	1112,	as	introduced,	Menjivar.	Medi-Cal:	families	with
subsidized	childcare.	Existing	law	establishes	a	system	of
childcare	and	development	services,	administered	by	the
State	Department	of	Social	Services,	for	children	from	infancy
to	13	years	of	age.	Existing	law	authorizes,	upon
departmental	approval,	the	use	of	appropriated	funds	for
alternative	payment	programs	to	allow	for	maximum	parental
choice.	Existing	law	authorizes	those	programs	to	include,
among	other	things,	a	subsidy	that	follows	the	family	from
one	childcare	provider	to	another,	or	choices	among	hours	of
service.	Existing	law	requires	the	department	to	contract	with
local	contracting	agencies	for	alternative	payment	programs
so	that	services	are	provided	throughout	the	state.Existing
law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered
by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under
which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care
services,	through	managed	care	or	fee-for-service	delivery
systems.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and
funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.	Under
existing	law,	early	and	periodic	screening,	diagnostic,	and
treatment	(EPSDT)	services	are	covered	Medi-Cal	benefits	for
individuals	under	21	years	of	age.This	bill,	subject	to	any
necessary	federal	approvals	and	the	availability	of	federal
funding,	would	require	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services	and	the	State	Department	of	Social	Services	to	enter
into	a	memorandum	of	understanding	to	facilitate
coordination	between	Medi-Cal	managed	care	plans	and
alternative	payment	agencies.For	purposes	of	children	of
families	receiving	subsidized	childcare	services	through	an
alternative	payment	program,	and	upon	the	consent	of	the
parent	or	guardian,	the	bill	would	require	the	plans	and
agencies	to	collaborate	on	assisting	the	family	with	the	Medi-
Cal	enrollment	of	a	child	who	is	eligible	but	not	a	beneficiary,
and	on	referring	a	Medi-Cal	beneficiary	to	developmental
screenings	that	are	available	under	EPSDT	services	and
administered	through	the	plan.	The	bill	would	authorize	the
agency	to	perform	certain	related	functions.

Primary	Sponsors
Caroline	Menjivar

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Bill	Number
SB	1112

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

138

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=2b982aa8f5868a247a2d32d6cbb22d6e


Title
Hospitals:	seismic	compliance.

Description
SB	1119,	as	introduced,	Newman.	Hospitals:	seismic
compliance.	Existing	law,	the	Alfred	E.	Alquist	Hospital
Facilities	Seismic	Safety	Act	of	1983,	establishes	a	program	of
seismic	safety	building	standards	for	certain	hospitals.
Existing	law	requires	hospitals	that	are	seeking	an	extension
for	their	buildings	to	submit	an	application	to	the	Department
of	Health	Care	Access	and	Information	by	April	1,	2019,
subject	to	certain	exceptions.	Existing	law	requires	that	final
seismic	compliance	be	achieved	by	July	1,	2022,	if	the
compliance	is	based	on	a	replacement	or	retrofit	plan,	or	by
January	1,	2025,	if	the	compliance	is	based	on	a	rebuild	plan.
Notwithstanding	the	above	provisions,	existing	law	authorizes
the	department	to	waive	the	requirements	of	the	act	for	the
O’Connor	Hospital	and	Santa	Clara	Valley	Medical	Center	in
the	City	of	San	Jose	if	the	hospital	or	medical	center	submits	a
plan	for	compliance	by	a	specified	date,	and	the	department
accepts	the	plan	based	on	it	being	feasible	to	complete	and
promoting	public	safety.	Existing	law	requires,	if	the
department	accepts	the	plan,	the	hospital	or	medical	center
to	report	to	the	department	on	its	progress	to	timely	complete
the	plan	by	specified	dates.	Existing	law	imposes	penalties	to
a	hospital	that	fails	to	meet	its	deadline.This	bill	would	add
Providence	St.	Joseph	Hospital	and	Providence	Eureka	General
Hospital	in	the	City	of	Eureka,	Providence	St.	Jude	Medical
Center	in	the	City	of	Fullerton,	and	Providence	Cedars-Sinai
Tarzana	Medical	Center	in	the	City	of	Tarzana	to	the	hospitals
for	which	the	department	may	waive	the	requirements	of	the
act.	The	bill	would	add	additional	dates	for	the	hospital	or
medical	center	to	report	to	the	department	on	its
progress.This	bill	would	declare	that	it	is	to	take	effect
immediately	as	an	urgency	statute.

Primary	Sponsors
Josh	Newman

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Bill	Number
SB	1119

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

139

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=c39839981386a59c2ea20c6d425d2477


Title
Health	care	coverage:	utilization	review.

Description
SB	1120,	as	introduced,	Becker.	Health	care	coverage:
utilization	review.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health
insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law
generally	authorizes	a	health	care	service	plan	or	health
insurer	to	use	prior	authorization	and	other	utilization	review
or	utilization	management	functions,	under	which	a	licensed
physician	or	a	licensed	health	care	professional	who	is
competent	to	evaluate	specific	clinical	issues	may	approve,
modify,	delay,	or	deny	requests	for	health	care	services	based
on	medical	necessity.	Existing	law	requires	a	health	care
service	plan	or	health	insurer,	including	those	plans	or
insurers	that	delegate	utilization	review	or	utilization
management	functions	to	medical	groups,	independent
practice	associations,	or	to	other	contracting	providers,	to
comply	with	specified	requirements	and	limitations	on	their
utilization	review	or	utilization	management	functions.
Existing	law	authorizes	the	Director	of	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care	or	the	Insurance	Commissioner	to
assess	an	administrative	penalty	to	a	health	care	service	plan
or	health	insurer,	as	applicable,	for	failure	to	comply	with
those	requirements.	This	bill	would	require	a	health	care
service	plan	or	health	insurer	to	ensure	that	a	licensed
physician	supervises	the	use	of	artificial	intelligence
decisionmaking	tools	when	those	tools	are	used	to	inform
decisions	to	approve,	modify,	or	deny	requests	by	providers
for	authorization	prior	to,	or	concurrent	with,	the	provision	of
health	care	services	to	enrollees	or	insureds.	Because	a	willful
violation	of	these	provisions	by	a	health	care	service	plan
would	be	a	crime,	this	bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated
local	program.	The	California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to
reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs
mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish
procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would
provide	that	no	reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a
specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Josh	Becker

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Bill	Number
SB	1120

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

140

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=630ecc5ca3ee960a259a49a18381843c


Title
Medi-Cal	providers.

Description
SB	1131,	as	introduced,	Gonzalez.	Medi-Cal	providers.
Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is
administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services,	under	which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive
health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,
governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.
Under	existing	law,	services	provided	by	a	certified	nurse
practitioner	are	covered	under	the	Medi-Cal	program	to	the
extent	authorized	by	federal	law,	and	existing	law	requires
the	department	to	permit	a	certified	nurse	practitioner	to	bill
Medi-Cal	independently	for	their	services.This	bill	would
similarly	make	services	provided	by	a	licensed	physician
assistant	covered	under	the	Medi-Cal	program	and	would
require	the	department	to	permit	a	certified	nurse	practitioner
to	bill	Medi-Cal	independently	for	their	services.	Existing	law
establishes	the	Family	Planning,	Access,	Care,	and	Treatment
(Family	PACT)	Program,	administered	by	the	Office	of	Family
Planning,	under	which	comprehensive	clinical	family	planning
services	are	provided	as	a	benefit	under	the	Medi-Cal
program.	Existing	law	also	creates	the	State-Only	Family
Planning	Program,	under	which	family	planning	services	are
provided	to	eligible	individuals.	Existing	law	requires	enrolled
providers	in	each	program	to	attend	a	specific	orientation
approved	by	the	department	and	requires	providers	who
conduct	specified	services	to	have	prior	training	in	those
services.This	bill	would,	for	both	of	the	above-described
programs,	require	the	department	to	allow	a	provider	6
months	from	the	date	of	enrollment	to	complete	the
orientation.	The	bill	would,	for	the	Family	PACT	Program,	state
that	a	site	certifier	of	a	primary	care	clinic	or	affiliate	primary
care	clinic,	as	those	terms	are	defined,	is	not	required	to	be	a
clinician	and	that	certain	clinic	corporations	can	enroll
multiple	service	addresses	under	a	single	site	certifier.	The	bill
would	require	any	orientation	or	training	that	the	department
requires	of	a	site	certifier	to	comply	with	specified
requirements,	such	as	being	offered	in	person	and	through	a
virtual	platform	and	being	offered	at	least	once	per	month,
among	others.

Primary	Sponsors
Lena	Gonzalez

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-13

Bill	Number
SB	1131

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

141

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=bbff18e365c3e134fe1d193017f939d9


Title
Health	care	coverage:	emergency	medical	services.

Description
SB	1180,	as	introduced,	Ashby.	Health	care	coverage:
emergency	medical	services.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene
Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the
licensure	and	regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the
Department	of	Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful
violation	of	the	act	a	crime.	Existing	law	also	provides	for	the
regulation	of	health	insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.
Existing	law	requires	health	care	service	plan	contracts	and
health	insurance	policies	to	provide	coverage	for	certain
services	and	treatments,	including	medical	transportation
services.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	Medi-Cal	program,
administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income	individuals
receive	health	care	services,	including	emergency	medical
transport.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and
funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.Existing	law,
until	January	1,	2031,	authorizes	a	local	emergency	medical
services	(EMS)	agency	to	develop	a	community	paramedicine
or	triage	to	alternate	destination	program	that,	among	other
things,	provides	case	management	services	to	frequent	EMS
users	and	triage	paramedic	assessments.This	bill	would
require	a	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	health	insurance
policy	issued,	amended,	or	renewed	on	or	after	January	1,
2025,	to	include	coverage	for	services	provided	by	a
community	paramedicine	program,	a	triage	to	alternate
destination	program,	and	a	mobile	integrated	health	program.
The	bill	would	require	those	plans	and	policies	to	require	an
enrollee	or	insured	who	receives	covered	services	from	a
noncontracting	program	to	pay	no	more	than	the	same	cost-
sharing	amount	they	would	pay	for	the	same	covered	services
received	from	a	contracting	program.	The	bill	would	specify
the	reimbursement	process	and	amount	for	a	noncontracting
program.	Because	a	willful	violation	of	these	provisions	by	a
health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would
impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.	The	bill	would	also
make	services	provided	by	these	programs	covered	benefits
under	the	Medi-Cal	program.The	California	Constitution
requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies	and	school
districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory
provisions	establish	procedures	for	making	that
reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no	reimbursement
is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Angelique	Ashby

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-14

Bill	Number
SB	1180

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

142

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=08d4835d1e344ac69d630faf6c212190


Title
Mental	health:	involuntary	treatment:	antipsychotic
medication.

Description
SB	1184,	as	introduced,	Eggman.	Mental	health:	involuntary
treatment:	antipsychotic	medication.	Existing	law,	the
Lanterman-Petris-Short	Act,	provides	for	the	involuntary
commitment	of	persons	who	are	a	danger	to	themselves	or
others,	or	who	are	gravely	disabled,	due	to	a	mental	disorder
or	chronic	alcoholism	or	drug	abuse	for	72	hours	for
evaluation	and	treatment,	as	specified.	If	certain	conditions
are	met	after	the	72-hour	detention,	the	act	authorizes	the
certification	of	the	person	for	a	14-day	maximum	period	of
intensive	treatment	and	then	another	14-day	or	30-day
maximum	period	of	intensive	treatment	after	the	initial	14-
day	period	of	intensive	treatment.	Existing	law	authorizes	the
administration	of	antipsychotic	medication	to	a	person	who	is
detained	for	evaluation	and	treatment	for	any	of	those
detention	periods,	and	establishes	a	process	for	hearings	to
determine	the	person’s	capacity	to	refuse	the	treatment.
Existing	law	requires	a	determination	of	a	person’s	incapacity
to	refuse	treatment	with	antipsychotic	medication	to	remain
in	effect	only	for	the	duration	of	the	72-hour	period	or	initial
14-day	intensive	treatment	period,	or	both,	until	capacity	is
restored,	or	by	court	determination.This	bill	would	additionally
require	the	determination	of	a	person’s	incapacity	to	refuse
treatment	with	antipsychotic	medication	to	remain	in	effect
for	the	duration	of	the	additional	14-day	period	or	the
additional	30-day	period	after	the	14-day	intensive	treatment
period,	or	all	periods	of	treatment	that	are	applicable.

Primary	Sponsors
Susan	Eggman

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-14

Title
Health	care	programs:	cancer.

Description
SB	1213,	as	introduced,	Atkins.	Health	care	programs:	cancer.
Existing	law	requires	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services	to	perform	various	health	functions,	including
providing	breast	and	cervical	cancer	screening	and	treatment
for	low-income	individuals.	Existing	law	provides	that	an
individual	is	eligible	to	receive	treatment	services	if,	among
other	things,	the	individual	has	a	family	income	at	or	below
200%	of	the	federal	poverty	level	as	determined	by	the
provider	performing	the	screening	and	diagnosis.This	bill
would	provide	that	an	individual	is	eligible	to	receive
treatment	services	if	the	individual	has	a	family	income	at	or
below	300%	of	the	federal	poverty	level	as	determined	by	the
provider	performing	the	screening	and	diagnosis.

Primary	Sponsors
Toni	Atkins

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
SB	1184

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
SB	1213

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

143

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=df78d54bc7049fbc0a7fe23c78debaeb
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=92238ef007f31380bf978a525f823520


Title
Medicare	supplement	coverage:	open	enrollment	periods.

Description
SB	1236,	as	introduced,	Blakespear.	Medicare	supplement
coverage:	open	enrollment	periods.	Existing	federal	law
provides	for	the	Medicare	Program,	which	is	a	public	health
insurance	program	for	persons	65	years	of	age	and	older	and
specified	persons	with	disabilities	who	are	under	65	years	of
age.	Existing	federal	law	specifies	different	parts	of	Medicare
that	cover	specific	services,	such	as	Medicare	Part	B,	which
generally	covers	medically	necessary	services	and	supplies
and	preventive	services.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health
Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care,	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health
insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.Existing	federal	law
additionally	provides	for	the	issuance	of	Medicare	supplement
policies	or	certificates,	also	known	as	Medigap	coverage,
which	are	advertised,	marketed,	or	designed	primarily	as	a
supplement	to	reimbursements	under	the	Medicare	Program
for	the	hospital,	medical,	or	surgical	expenses	of	persons
eligible	for	the	Medicare	Program,	including	coverage	of
Medicare	deductible,	copayment,	or	coinsurance	amounts,	as
specified.	Existing	law,	among	other	provisions,	requires
supplement	benefit	plans	to	be	uniform	in	structure,
language,	designation,	and	format	with	the	standard	benefit
plans,	as	prescribed.	Existing	law	prohibits	an	issuer	from
denying	or	conditioning	the	offering	or	effectiveness	of	any
Medicare	supplement	contract,	policy,	or	certificate	available
for	sale	in	this	state,	or	discriminating	in	the	pricing	of	a
contract,	policy,	or	certificate	because	of	the	health	status,
claims	experience,	receipt	of	health	care,	or	medical	condition
of	an	applicant	in	the	case	of	an	application	that	is	submitted
prior	to	or	during	the	6-month	period	beginning	with	the	first
day	of	the	first	month	in	which	an	individual	is	both	65	years
of	age	or	older	and	is	enrolled	for	benefits	under	Medicare
Part	B.This	bill,	on	and	after	January	1,	2025,	would	prohibit
an	issuer	of	Medicare	supplement	coverage	in	this	state	from
denying	or	conditioning	the	issuance	or	effectiveness	of	any
Medicare	supplement	coverage	available	for	sale	in	the	state,
or	discriminate	in	the	pricing	of	that	coverage	because	of	the
health	status,	claims	experience,	receipt	of	health	care,
medical	condition,	or	age	of	an	applicant,	if	an	application	for
coverage	is	submitted	during	an	open	enrollment	period,	as
specified	in	the	bill.	The	bill	would	entitle	an	individual
enrolled	in	Medicare	Part	B	to	a	90-day	annual	open
enrollment	period	beginning	on	January	1	of	each	year,	as
specified,	during	which	period	the	bill	would	require	appli...
(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Catherine	Blakespear

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
SB	1236

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

144

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=b70bb99b499cab5b134abc0672185ac8


Title
Mental	health:	involuntary	treatment.

Description
SB	1238,	as	introduced,	Eggman.	Mental	health:	involuntary
treatment.	Existing	law,	the	Lanterman-Petris-Short	Act,
provides	for	the	involuntary	detention	and	treatment	of
persons	with	specified	mental	health	disorders.	Under	the	act,
when	a	person,	as	a	result	of	a	mental	health	disorder,	is	a
danger	to	others,	or	to	themselves,	or	gravely	disabled,	the
person	may,	upon	probable	cause,	be	taken	into	custody	and
placed	in	a	facility	designated	by	the	county	and	approved	by
the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	for	up	to	72
hours	for	evaluation	and	treatment.	Existing	law	authorizes
specified	individuals,	including	professional	persons
designated	by	the	county,	to	determine	probable	cause	and
take	a	person	into	custody	pursuant	to	these	provisions.This
bill	would	authorize	a	county	to	designate	a	professional	who
is	not	a	county	employee	or	not	contracted	by	the	county	to
perform	the	above-described	functions.

Primary	Sponsors
Susan	Eggman

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Title
Geographic	Managed	Care	Pilot	Project:	County	of	San	Diego:
CalAIM.

Description
SB	1257,	as	introduced,	Blakespear.	Geographic	Managed
Care	Pilot	Project:	County	of	San	Diego:	CalAIM.	Existing	law
establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by
the	State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under
which	qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care
services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and
funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.	Existing	law,
the	California	Advancing	and	Innovating	Medi-Cal	(CalAIM)
Act,	supports	the	stated	goals	of	identifying	and	managing	the
risk	and	needs	of	Medi-Cal	beneficiaries,	transitioning	and
transforming	the	Medi-Cal	program	to	a	more	consistent	and
seamless	system,	and	improving	quality	outcomes.Existing
law	permits	the	department,	upon	approval	by	the	board	of
supervisors	of	the	County	of	San	Diego,	to	establish	a
multiplan	managed	care	pilot	project	for	the	provision	of	Medi-
Cal	services.	Existing	law	authorizes	the	County	of	San	Diego
to	establish	2	advisory	boards	to	advise	the	Department	of
Health	Services	of	the	County	of	San	Diego	and	review	and
comment	on	the	implementation	of	the	multiplan	project.
Existing	law	requires	that	at	least	one	member	of	each	board
be	appointed	by	the	board	of	supervisors	and	requires	the
board	of	supervisors	to	establish	the	number	of	members	on
each	board.This	bill	would	instead	authorize	the	County	of	San
Diego	to	establish	one	board	and	require	it	to	advise	the
Health	and	Human	Services	Agency	of	the	County	of	San
Diego	and	support	the	goals	of	CalAIM.	The	bill	would	require
each	supervisor	of	the	board	to	appoint	at	least	one	member
to	the	advisory	board,	with	each	supervisor	appointing	an
equal	number	of	members.

Primary	Sponsors
Catherine	Blakespear

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
SB	1238

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
SB	1257

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

145

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=94ff7df7bf7bdbc918c99111748fae4f
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=c77c59cec7b7a67daf055229ed7dfb43


Title
Medi-Cal:	unrecovered	payments:	interest	rate.

Description
SB	1258,	as	introduced,	Dahle.	Medi-Cal:	unrecovered
payments:	interest	rate.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	Medi-Cal
program,	which	is	administered	by	the	State	Department	of
Health	Care	Services,	under	which	qualified	low-income
individuals	receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal
program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid
program	provisions.Existing	law	requires	the	Director	of
Health	Care	Services	to	establish	administrative	appeal
processes	to	review	grievances	or	complaints	arising	from	the
findings	of	an	audit	or	examination.	Under	existing	law,	if
recovery	of	a	disallowed	payment	has	been	made	by	the
department,	a	provider	who	prevails	in	an	appeal	of	that
payment	is	entitled	to	interest	at	the	rate	equal	to	the
monthly	average	received	on	investments	in	the	Surplus
Money	Investment	Fund,	or	simple	interest	at	the	rate	of	7%
per	annum,	whichever	is	higher.	Under	existing	law,	with
exceptions,	interest	at	that	same	rate	is	assessed	against	any
unrecovered	overpayment	due	to	the	department.In	the	case
of	an	assessment	against	any	unrecovered	overpayment	due
to	the	department,	this	bill	would	authorize	the	department	to
waive	the	interest,	as	part	of	a	repayment	agreement	entered
into	with	the	provider,	if	the	unrecovered	overpayment
occurred	4	or	more	years	before	the	issuance	of	the	first
statement	of	account	status	or	demand	for	repayment,	after
taking	into	account	specified	factors,	including	the	impact	of
the	repayment	amounts	on	the	fiscal	solvency	of	the	provider,
and	whether	the	overpayment	was	caused	by	a	policy	change
or	departmental	error	that	was	not	the	fault	of	the	billing
provider.

Primary	Sponsors
Brian	Dahle

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Title
Health	insurance.

Description
SB	1268,	as	introduced,	Nguyen.	Health	insurance.	Existing
law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	administered	by	the
State	Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under	which
qualified	low-income	individuals	receive	health	care	services.
Existing	law	authorizes	the	establishment	of	a	health
authority	in	specified	counties	for	the	delivery	of	medical	care
and	services	in	that	county.	Existing	law	makes	the	health
authority	subject	to	specified	provisions,	including	certain
notification	and	reporting	requirements,	commencing	on	the
date	that	the	health	authority	first	receives	Medi-Cal	capitated
payments	for	the	provision	of	health	care	services	to	Medi-Cal
beneficiaries	and	until	the	time	that	the	health	authority	is	in
compliance	with	all	the	requirements	regarding	tangible	net
equity	applicable	to	a	health	care	service	plan	licensed	under
the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975.This	bill
would	make	technical,	nonsubstantive	changes	to	the	above-
described	provision.

Primary	Sponsors
Janet	Nguyen

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
SB	1258

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
SB	1268

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

146

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=18e3ff4c1f32a22f0e24f8121fec14ab
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=8b812ae0b790a8e462b4a68a0c1a6e7a


Title
Safety	net	hospitals.

Description
SB	1269,	as	introduced,	Padilla.	Safety	net	hospitals.	Existing
law	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of	various	types
of	health	facilities,	including	hospitals,	by	the	State
Department	of	Public	Health.	Existing	law	establishes	the
Medi-Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by	the	State
Department	of	Health	Care	Services	and	under	which	qualified
low-income	individuals	receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-
Cal	program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal
Medicaid	program	provisions.Existing	law	sets	forth	various
provisions	relating	to	disproportionate	share	hospitals	(DSH),
which	are	hospitals	providing	acute	inpatient	services	to	Medi-
Cal	beneficiaries	that	meet	the	criteria	for	disproportionate
share	status,	as	specified;	small	and	rural	hospitals;	and
critical	access	hospitals,	as	certified	by	the	Secretary	of	the
United	States	Department	of	Health	and	Human	Services
under	the	federal	Medicare	rural	hospital	flexibility
program.Existing	law	sets	forth	other	provisions	relating	to
safety	net	hospitals	in	different	contexts,	including	among
others,	special	health	authorities	and	Medi-Cal
reimbursement.This	bill	would	establish	a	definition	for
“safety	net	hospital”	and	would	state	the	intent	of	the
Legislature	that	this	definition	serve	as	a	recommended
definition	for	policymakers	to	elect	to	utilize	when	crafting
policy	aimed	at	focusing	on	or	supporting	those	hospitals.
Under	the	bill,	the	definition	would	not	be	construed	as
affecting	existing	or	new	references	to	safety	net	hospitals,
unless	future	legislation	or	other	action	expressly	makes
reference	to	this	definition,	as	specified.Under	the	bill,	“safety
net	hospital”	would	mean	a	Medicaid	DSH-eligible	hospital;	a
rural	hospital,	including	a	small	and	rural	hospital	and	a
critical	access	hospital,	as	specified;	or	a	sole	community
hospital,	as	classified	by	the	federal	Centers	for	Medicare	and
Medicaid	Services	and	in	accordance	with	certain	federal
provisions.

Primary	Sponsors
Steve	Padilla

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Title
LGBTQ	seniors:	health	care	services.

Description
SB	1278,	as	introduced,	Laird.	LGBTQ	seniors:	health	care
services.	Existing	law	sets	forth	various	provisions	relating	to
the	health	of	lesbian,	gay,	bisexual,	transgender,	or	queer
(LGBTQ)	seniors,	including	certain	needs	assessments	by	area
agencies	on	aging,	a	bill	of	rights	for	long-term	care	facility
residents,	public	health	data	collection	and	strategic	planning,
and	hospital	equity	reports,	with	regard	to	sexual	orientation
and	gender	identity.This	bill	would	state	the	intent	of	the
Legislature	to	enact	legislation	that	would	enhance	health
care	services	for	LGBTQ	seniors	in	the	state.

Primary	Sponsors
John	Laird

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
SB	1269

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
SB	1278

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

147

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=c920f47f58600ba588e623131fcc8e93
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=cd9fc3efc0568e3c90bdfde2509c1148


Title
Medi-Cal:	schedule	of	benefits.

Description
SB	1289,	as	introduced,	Roth.	Medi-Cal:	schedule	of	benefits.
Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,	which	is
administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income	individuals
receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,
governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.
Existing	law	sets	forth	a	schedule	of	benefits	under	the	Medi-
Cal	program.This	bill	would	make	technical,	nonsubstantive
changes	to	provisions	relating	to	that	schedule	of	benefits.

Primary	Sponsors
Richard	Roth

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Title
Health	care	coverage:	essential	health	benefits.

Description
SB	1290,	as	introduced,	Roth.	Health	care	coverage:	essential
health	benefits.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	requires	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care	to	license	and	regulate	health	care
service	plans	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act	a	crime.
Other	existing	law	requires	the	Department	of	Insurance	to
regulate	health	insurers.	Existing	law	requires	an	individual	or
small	group	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	health
insurance	policy	issued,	amended,	or	renewed	on	or	after
January	1,	2017,	to	include,	at	a	minimum,	coverage	for
essential	health	benefits	pursuant	to	the	federal	Patient
Protection	and	Affordable	Care	Act.	Existing	law	requires	a
health	care	service	plan	contract	or	health	insurance	policy	to
cover	the	same	health	benefits	that	the	benchmark	plan,	the
Kaiser	Foundation	Health	Plan	Small	Group	HMO	30	plan,
offered	during	the	first	quarter	of	2014,	as	specified.This	bill
would	express	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	to	review
California’s	essential	health	benefits	benchmark	plan	and
establish	a	new	benchmark	plan	for	the	2027	plan	year.	The
bill	would	limit	the	applicability	of	the	current	benchmark	plan
benefits	to	plan	years	on	or	before	the	2027	plan	year.The
California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local
agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by
the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for
making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no
reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Richard	Roth

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
SB	1289

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
SB	1290

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

148

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=5c2af042a356926bbe84431b8f4b94d2
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=44126d62317f5bc71648fb81e1ab5bff


Title
Health	facility	closure:	public	notice:	inpatient	psychiatric	and
maternity	services.

Description
SB	1300,	as	introduced,	Cortese.	Health	facility	closure:	public
notice:	inpatient	psychiatric	and	maternity	services.	Existing
law	requires	the	State	Department	of	Public	Health	to	license,
regulate,	and	inspect	health	facilities,	as	specified,	including
general	acute	care	hospitals.	A	violation	of	these	provisions	is
a	crime.	Under	existing	law,	a	general	acute	care	hospital	is
required	to	provide	certain	basic	services,	including	medical,
nursing,	surgical,	anesthesia,	laboratory,	radiology,	pharmacy,
and	dietary	services.	Existing	law	authorizes	a	general	acute
care	hospital	to	provide	various	special	or	supplemental
services	if	certain	conditions	are	met.	Existing	regulations
define	a	supplemental	service	as	an	organized	inpatient	or
outpatient	service	that	is	not	required	to	be	provided	by	law
or	regulation.	Existing	law	requires	a	health	facility	to	provide
90	days	of	public	notice	of	the	proposed	closure	or	elimination
of	a	supplemental	service,	and	120	days	of	public	notice	of
the	proposed	closure	or	elimination	of	an	acute	psychiatric
hospital.This	bill	would	change	the	notice	period	required
before	proposed	closure	or	elimination	of	the	supplemental
service	of	inpatient	psychiatric	service	or	maternity	service
from	90	days	to	120	days.	By	changing	the	definition	of	a
crime,	this	bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local
program.Before	a	health	facility	may	provide	notice	of	a
proposed	closure	or	elimination	of	an	inpatient	psychiatric
service	or	maternity	service,	this	bill	would	require	the	facility
to	provide	an	impact	analysis	report,	as	specified,	regarding
the	impact	on	the	health	of	the	community	resulting	from	the
proposed	elimination	of	the	services.	The	bill	would	require
the	health	facility	to	provide	the	impact	analysis	report	to	the
Department	of	Health	Care	Access	and	Information	for	review
and	certification.	By	changing	the	requirements	on	a	health
care	facility,	the	violation	of	which	is	a	crime,	this	bill	would
impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.	The	bill	would
require,	after	certification,	that	the	impact	analysis	report	be
delivered	to	the	local	county	board	of	supervisors	and	to	the
department.	The	bill	also	would	require	the	cost	of	preparing
the	impact	analysis	report	to	be	borne	by	the	hospital.	The	bill
would	strongly	encourage	the	board	of	supervisors	to	hold	a
public	hearing	within	15	days	of	receipt	of	the	report,	as
specified,	and	to	post	the	impact	analysis	report	on	its
internet	website.	The	bill	would	require,	if	the	loss	of	beds	will
have	an	impact	to	on	the	health	of	the	community,	that	the
State	Department	of	Public	Health	prioritize	and	expedite	the
licensing	of	additional	beds	for	up	to	18	months	to	replace	the
number	of	lost	beds.The	California	Constitution	requires	the
st...	(click	bill	link	to	see	more).

Primary	Sponsors
Dave	Cortese

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Bill	Number
SB	1300

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

149

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=0ed3695819143060490157d3e6f227ed


Title
Mental	health.

Description
SB	1306,	as	introduced,	Skinner.	Mental	health.	Existing	law
authorizes	the	State	Department	of	State	Hospitals,	the	State
Department	of	Health	Care	Services,	and	other	departments
as	necessary	to	perform	various	tasks	relating	to	mental
health	services,	including,	among	others,	disseminating
educational	information	relating	to	the	prevention,	diagnosis,
and	treatment	of	mental	illness	and,	upon	request,	advising
all	public	officers,	organizations,	and	agencies	interested	in
the	mental	health	of	the	people	of	the	state.This	bill	would
make	technical,	nonsubstantive	changes	to	these	provisions.

Primary	Sponsors
Nancy	Skinner

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-15

Title
Behavioral	health	treatment	facilities.

Description
SB	1319,	as	introduced,	Wahab.	Behavioral	health	treatment
facilities.	Existing	law	authorizes	the	State	Department	of
Health	Care	Services	to	establish	a	Behavioral	Health
Continuum	Infrastructure	Program	to	award	grants,	as
specified,	for	the	construction,	acquisition,	and	rehabilitation
of	behavioral	health	treatment	resources,	as	described.	The
program	exempts	a	facility	project	funded	by	a	grant	pursuant
to	the	program	from	the	California	Environmental	Quality	Act,
if	it	meets	specified	requirements,	and	local	zoning	and	use
permits,	as	specified.This	bill	would	apply	those	exemptions
to	an	entity,	facility,	or	project	that	is	converting	a	long-term
health	care	facility	or	skilled	nursing	facility,	as	defined,	to	a
facility	that	will	expand	the	capacity	of	behavioral	health
treatment	resources	in	the	community.

Primary	Sponsors
Aisha	Wahab

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
SB	1306

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
SB	1319

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

150

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=cc751da079a2831fccd27a689ef7bf3c
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=4f03fa0cb81b6842c7d790d3de2ba26f


Title
Mental	health	and	substance	use	disorder	treatment.

Description
SB	1320,	as	introduced,	Wahab.	Mental	health	and	substance
use	disorder	treatment.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health
Care	Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	disability
insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	requires
a	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	disability	insurance
policy	issued,	amended,	or	renewed	on	or	after	January	1,
2021,	to	provide	coverage	for	medically	necessary	treatment
of	mental	health	and	substance	use	disorders,	as	defined,
under	the	same	terms	and	conditions	applied	to	other	medical
conditions.This	bill	would	require	a	plan	or	insurer	subject	to
the	above-described	coverage	requirement,	and	its	delegates,
to	establish	a	process	to	reimburse	providers	for	mental
health	and	substance	use	disorder	treatment	services	that	are
integrated	with	primary	care	services	and	provided	under	a
contract	or	policy	issued,	amended,	or	renewed	on	or	after
July	1,	2025.	Because	a	willful	violation	of	these	provisions	by
a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would
impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The	California
Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies
and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.
Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for	making	that
reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no	reimbursement
is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Aisha	Wahab

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Title
Health	and	care	facilities.

Description
SB	1339,	as	introduced,	Allen.	Health	and	care	facilities.
Existing	law	generally	requires	the	State	Department	of	Public
Health	to	license,	inspect,	and	regulate	health	facilities,
defined	to	include,	among	other	types	of	health	facilities,	an
acute	psychiatric	hospital.	Existing	law	requires	the	State
Department	of	Health	Care	Services	to	license	and	establish
regulations	for	psychiatric	residential	treatment	facilities.This
bill	would	state	the	intent	of	the	Legislature	to	enact
legislation	to	ensure	that	licensed	facilities	that	receive
referred	behavioral	health	patients	have	their	licenses
checked	to	ensure	that	these	licensed	facilities	are	capable	of
providing	the	appropriate	level	of	care.

Primary	Sponsors
Ben	Allen

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
SB	1320

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Bill	Number
SB	1339

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

151

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=58e32389f7b33afef4f4fef340dba472
http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=9ab07e97df9869722194ab28ae69adc7


Title
Health	facilities:	payment	source.

Description
SB	1354,	as	introduced,	Wahab.	Health	facilities:	payment
source.	Existing	law	prohibits	a	long-term	health	care	facility
that	participates	as	a	provider	under	the	Medi-Cal	program
from	transferring	or	seeking	to	evict	out	of	the	facility	any
resident	as	a	result	of	the	resident	changing	his	or	her
manner	of	purchasing	the	services	from	private	payment	or
Medicare	to	Medi-Cal	benefits	and	for	whom	an	eligibility
determination	has	not	yet	been	made,	except	as
specified.This	bill	would	require	a	long-term	health	care	that
participates	as	a	provider	under	the	Medi-Cal	program	to
provide	aid,	care,	service,	or	other	benefits	available	under
Medi-Cal	to	Medi-Cal	beneficiaries	in	the	same	manner,	by	the
same	methods,	and	at	the	same	scope,	level,	and	quality	as
provided	to	the	general	public,	regardless	of	payment	source.

Primary	Sponsors
Aisha	Wahab

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
SB	1354

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

152

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=5caba330a161384a0b7146c6061f9ff1


Title
Medi-Cal:	in-home	supportive	services:	redetermination.

Description
SB	1355,	as	introduced,	Wahab.	Medi-Cal:	in-home	supportive
services:	redetermination.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-
Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by	the	State	Department
of	Health	Care	Services,	under	which	qualified	low-income
individuals	receive	health	care	services,	including	in-home
supportive	services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,
governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.
Existing	law	generally	requires	a	county	to	redetermine	a
Medi-Cal	beneficiary’s	eligibility	to	receive	Medi-Cal	benefits
every	12	months	and	whenever	the	county	receives
information	about	changes	in	a	beneficiary’s	circumstances
that	may	affect	their	eligibility	for	Medi-Cal	benefits.Existing
law	provides	for	the	In-Home	Supportive	Services	(IHSS)
program,	administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Social
Services	and	counties,	under	which	qualified	aged,	blind,	and
disabled	persons	are	provided	with	supportive	services	in
order	to	permit	them	to	remain	in	their	own	homes.	Existing
law	authorizes	certain	Medi-Cal	beneficiaries	to	receive	IHSS
as	a	covered	Medi-Cal	benefit.This	bill	would,	to	the	extent
that	any	necessary	federal	approvals	are	obtained,	and
federal	financial	participation	is	available	and	not	otherwise
jeopardized,	require	an	IHSS	recipient	to	be	continuously
eligible	for	Medi-Cal	for	3	years,	and	would	prohibit	a
redetermination	of	Medi-Cal	eligibility	before	3	years,	except
as	specified.	The	bill	would	make	the	implementation	of	its
provisions	contingent	upon	the	department	obtaining	all
necessary	federal	approvals,	the	department	determining	that
systems	have	been	programmed	to	implement	these
provisions,	and	the	Legislature	has	appropriated	funding	to
implement	these	provisions	after	a	determination	that
ongoing	General	Fund	resources	are	available	to	support	the
ongoing	implementation	of	these	provisions.	To	the	extent	the
bill	would	increase	county	duties	in	administrating	the	IHSS
program,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local
program.The	California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to
reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs
mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish
procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would
provide	that,	if	the	Commission	on	State	Mandates
determines	that	the	bill	contains	costs	mandated	by	the	state,
reimbursement	for	those	costs	shall	be	made	pursuant	to	the
statutory	provisions	noted	above.

Primary	Sponsors
Aisha	Wahab

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
SB	1355

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

153

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=1da80adcd5cfee0c07c5881c95c60122


Title
Dental	providers:	fee-based	payments.

Description
SB	1369,	as	introduced,	Limón.	Dental	providers:	fee-based
payments.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service
Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of
health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed
Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act’s
requirements	a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation
of	health	insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing
law	imposes	specified	coverage	and	disclosure	requirements
on	health	care	service	plans	and	health	insurers,	including
specialized	plans	and	insurers,	that	cover	dental	services.This
bill	would	require	a	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	health
insurance	policy,	as	defined,	issued,	amended,	or	renewed	on
and	after	January	1,	2025,	that	provides	payment	directly	or
through	a	contracted	vendor	to	a	dental	provider	to	have	a
non-fee-based	default	method	of	payment,	as	specified.	The
bill	would	require	a	dental	provider	to	submit	a	signed
authorization	to	the	health	care	service	plan,	health	insurer,
or	contracted	vendor,	opting	in	to	a	fee-based	payment
method,	and	would	authorize	the	dental	provider	to	opt	out	of
the	fee-based	payment	method	at	any	time	by	providing
written	notice	to	the	health	care	service	plan,	health	insurer,
or	contracted	vendor.Because	a	violation	of	the	bill’s
requirements	by	a	health	care	service	plan	would	be	a	crime,
the	bill	would	impose	a	state-mandated	local	program.The
California	Constitution	requires	the	state	to	reimburse	local
agencies	and	school	districts	for	certain	costs	mandated	by
the	state.	Statutory	provisions	establish	procedures	for
making	that	reimbursement.This	bill	would	provide	that	no
reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act	for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Monique	Limon

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
SB	1369

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

154

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=d345cabecba9c9c07f99dd68be128c0d


Title
Behavioral	health	crisis	services:	reporting.

Description
SB	1397,	as	introduced,	Eggman.	Behavioral	health	crisis
services:	reporting.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health	and
disability	insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing
law	requires	a	health	care	service	plan	contract	or	disability
insurance	policy	to	provide	coverage	for	medically	necessary
treatment	of	mental	health	and	substance	use	disorders,
including	behavioral	health	crisis	services	that	are	provided
by	an	in-network	or	out-of-network	988	center,	mobile	crisis
team,	or	other	provider,	as	specified.	Existing	law	requires	a
health	care	service	plan	or	disability	insurer	to	reimburse	a
988	center,	mobile	crisis	team,	or	other	provider	for
emergency	and	nonemergency	behavioral	health	crisis
services	and	care	pursuant	to	these	provisions.This	bill	would
authorize	a	county	to	report	to	the	Department	of	Managed
Health	Care	or	the	Department	of	Insurance	a	complaint
about	a	health	care	service	plan’s	or	a	health	insurer’s	failure
to	make	a	good	faith	effort	to	contract	or	enter	into	an
agreement	with	the	county	to	obtain	reimbursement	for
behavioral	health	crisis	services,	or	to	timely	reimburse	the
county	for	services	the	plan	or	insurer	is	required	to	cover	by
state	or	federal	law,	and	would	require	the	respective
department	to	timely	investigate	the	complaint.

Primary	Sponsors
Susan	Eggman

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
SB	1397

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

155

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=cb0754296ed1b3b63cbeb9db57ac3d2f


Title
Medi-Cal:	critical	access	hospitals.

Description
SB	1423,	as	introduced,	Dahle.	Medi-Cal:	critical	access
hospitals.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-Cal	program,
which	is	administered	by	the	State	Department	of	Health	Care
Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income	individuals
receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal	program	is,	in	part,
governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid	program	provisions.
Under	existing	law,	each	hospital	designated	by	the
department	as	a	critical	access	hospital,	and	certified	as	such
by	the	Secretary	of	the	United	States	Department	of	Health
and	Human	Services	under	the	federal	Medicare	rural	hospital
flexibility	program,	is	eligible	for	supplemental	payments	for
Medi-Cal	covered	outpatient	services	rendered	to	Medi-Cal
eligible	persons.	Existing	law	conditions	those	payments	on
receipt	of	federal	financial	participation	and	an	appropriation
in	the	annual	Budget	Act	for	the	nonfederal	share	of	those
payments,	with	supplemental	payments	being	apportioned
among	critical	access	hospitals	based	on	their	number	of
Medi-Cal	outpatient	visits.This	bill	would	remove	the
provisions	relating	to	supplemental	payments	and	would
instead	require	the	reimbursement	to	a	critical	access	hospital
for	Medi-Cal	covered	outpatient	services	at	a	rate	equal	to	the
actual	cost	to	the	hospital	of	providing	the	services	or	the
amount	charged	by	the	hospital	for	the	services,	whichever	is
less.	The	bill	would	also	require	reimbursement	to	those
hospitals,	under	the	same	terms,	for	swing-bed	services,
relating	to	beds	licensed	for	general	acute	care	that	may	be
used	as	skilled	nursing	beds.Existing	law	sets	forth	various
Medi-Cal	payment	reductions	by	specified	percentages	for
certain	providers,	including	rural	swing-bed	facilities.This	bill
would	make	an	exception	to	those	payment	reductions	for
rural-swing	bed	facilities	in	the	case	of	critical	access
hospitals	under	the	above-described	reimbursement
provisions.

Primary	Sponsors
Brian	Dahle

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
SB	1423

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

156

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=be954790177a1da848be2238fccabd09


Title
Health	care	coverage:	triggering	events.

Description
SB	1428,	as	introduced,	Atkins.	Health	care	coverage:
triggering	events.	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care
Service	Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and
regulation	of	health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of
Managed	Health	Care	and	makes	a	willful	violation	of	the	act
a	crime.	Existing	law	provides	for	the	regulation	of	health
insurers	by	the	Department	of	Insurance.	Existing	law	requires
a	health	care	service	plan	or	a	health	insurer	to	allow	an
individual	to	enroll	in	or	change	individual	health	benefit	plans
as	a	result	of	specified	triggering	events,	including	a	loss	of
minimum	essential	coverage,	as	defined,	gaining	a	dependent
or	becoming	a	dependent,	or	being	mandated	to	be	covered
as	a	dependent	pursuant	to	a	valid	state	or	federal	court
order.	Existing	law	allows	an	individual	60	days	from	the	date
of	a	triggering	event	to	apply	for	subsequent	coverage.This
bill	would	allow	an	individual	60	days	before	or	after	the	date
of	a	triggering	event	to	apply	for	subsequent	coverage.
Because	a	willful	violation	of	these	provisions	by	a	health	care
service	plan	would	be	a	crime,	the	bill	would	impose	a	state-
mandated	local	program.The	California	Constitution	requires
the	state	to	reimburse	local	agencies	and	school	districts	for
certain	costs	mandated	by	the	state.	Statutory	provisions
establish	procedures	for	making	that	reimbursement.This	bill
would	provide	that	no	reimbursement	is	required	by	this	act
for	a	specified	reason.

Primary	Sponsors
Toni	Atkins

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
SB	1428

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

157

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=009a18355537e92df333d10e14fcdd78


Title
Medi-Cal	reimbursement	rates:	private	duty	nursing.

Description
SB	1492,	as	introduced,	Menjivar.	Medi-Cal	reimbursement
rates:	private	duty	nursing.	Existing	law	establishes	the	Medi-
Cal	program,	which	is	administered	by	the	State	Department
of	Health	Care	Services	and	under	which	qualified	low-income
individuals	receive	health	care	services.	The	Medi-Cal
program	is,	in	part,	governed	and	funded	by	federal	Medicaid
program	provisions.	Under	existing	law,	one	of	the	methods
by	which	Medi-Cal	services	are	provided	is	pursuant	to
contracts	with	various	types	of	managed	care	plans.	Existing
law	sets	forth	requirements	for	private	duty	nursing	and	home
health	care	under	the	Medi-Cal	program.Existing	law	imposes
a	managed	care	organization	(MCO)	provider	tax,
administered	and	assessed	by	the	department,	on	licensed
health	care	service	plans	and	managed	care	plans	contracted
with	the	department	to	provide	full-scope	Medi-Cal	services.
Under	existing	law,	proceeds	from	the	MCO	provider	tax	may
be	used,	upon	appropriation	by	the	Legislature,	for	the
increased	costs	incurred	as	a	result	of	reimbursement
requirements,	among	other	things.This	bill	would	provide	that,
for	the	above-described	reimbursement	purposes,	private
duty	nursing	services	provided	to	a	child	under	21	years	of
age	by	a	home	health	agency	are	considered	specialty	care
services.

Primary	Sponsors
Caroline	Menjivar

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-16

Bill	Number
SB	1492

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

158

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=a3e8669f86b649149994a7336083db7a


Title
Health	omnibus.

Description
SB	1511,	as	introduced,	Committee	on	Health.	Health
omnibus.	(1)	Existing	law,	the	Knox-Keene	Health	Care	Service
Plan	Act	of	1975,	provides	for	the	licensure	and	regulation	of
health	care	service	plans	by	the	Department	of	Managed
Health	Care.	Existing	law	defines	a	“group	contract,”	for
purposes	of	the	act,	as	a	contract	that	by	its	terms	limits	the
eligibility	of	subscribers	and	enrollees	to	a	specified
group.This	bill	would	clarify	that	reference	to	a	“group”	in	the
act	does	not	include	a	Medi-Cal	managed	care	contract
between	a	health	care	service	plan	and	the	State	Department
of	Health	Care	Services	to	provide	benefits	to	beneficiaries	of
the	Medi-Cal	program.(2)	Existing	law,	the	Compassionate
Access	to	Medical	Cannabis	Act	or	Ryan’s	Law,	requires
specified	health	care	facilities	to	allow	a	terminally	ill	patient’s
use	of	medicinal	cannabis	within	the	health	care	facility,	as
defined,	subject	to	certain	restrictions.	Existing	law	requires
the	State	Department	of	Public	Health	to	enforce	the	act.
Existing	law	prohibits	a	general	acute	care	hospital,	as
specified,	from	permitting	a	patient	with	a	chronic	disease	to
use	medicinal	cannabis.This	bill	would	authorize	a	general
acute	care	hospital	to	allow	a	terminally	ill	patient,	as	defined,
to	use	medicinal	cannabis.(3)	Existing	law	establishes	the
Distressed	Hospital	Loan	Program,	administered	by	the
Department	of	Health	Care	Access	and	Information,	in	order
to	provide	interest-free	cashflow	loans	to	not-for-profit
hospitals	and	public	hospitals	in	significant	financial	distress
or	to	governmental	entities	representing	a	closed	hospital,
except	as	otherwise	provided,	to	prevent	the	closure	of,	or
facilitate	the	reopening	of,	those	hospitals.	Existing	law
establishes	the	Distressed	Hospital	Loan	Program	Fund,	with
moneys	in	the	fund	being	continuously	appropriated	for	the
department.	Existing	law	authorizes	the	Department	of
Finance	to	transfer	up	to	$150,000,000	from	the	General	Fund
and	$150,000,000	from	the	Medi-Cal	Provider	Payment
Reserve	Fund	to	the	Distressed	Hospital	Loan	Program	Fund	in
state	fiscal	year	2023–24	to	implement	the	program.	Existing
law	requires	any	funds	transferred	to	be	available	for
encumbrance	or	expenditure	until	June	30,	2026.This	bill
would	instead	require	any	funds	transferred	to	be	available	for
encumbrance	or	expenditure	until	December	31,	2031.	By
extending	the	amount	of	time	continuously	appropriated
funds	are	available	for	encumbrance	and	expenditure,	this	bill
would	make	an	appropriation.(4)	This	bill	would	make	an
additional	technical,	nonsubstantive	change	by	renumbering	a
related	provision.

Primary	Sponsors
Senate	Health	Committee

Introduction	Date:	2024-02-21

Bill	Number
SB	1511

Status
In	Senate

Position
Monitor

Powered	by

159

http://app.fiscalnote.com/share/bill?url=2e67001ed22467c31db1ddd853d35ed5


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Governors 
MOTION SUMMARY 

 
Date:   March 27, 2024 Motion No.  EXE 100.0424 

   

Committee:   Executive Chairperson:  Alvaro Ballesteros, MBA 
 

Requesting Department:  Strategic Planning 
 
Issue:  To approve delegated authority to the Chief Executive Officer, John Baackes, to issue up to  
$2 milllion in Elevating the Safety Net funds to Catalina Island Health (CIH) to support safety net 
access to health care for L.A. Care members.  
 

 New Contract   Amendment   Sole Source   RFP/RFQ was conducted in N/A  
 
Background:  L.A. Care is responsible for serving its members who live on Catalina Island. Catalina 
Island Health (CIH) is the sole hospital, emergency room, and primary care clinic on the island.  
Without this facility, residents and visitors to the island must travel by helicopter or boat to access care. 
CIH is currently facing financial hardship due to significant inflation, low Medi-Cal reimbursement, and 
ineligibility for meaningful Medi-Cal supplemental payments.  They are facing potential insolvency and 
may be forced to cease operations as soon as June 2024.  Closure or reduction in service would have the 
worst impact on those in poor health, seniors, and people experiencing poverty.  This grant will assist 
CIH in providing continuity of service for its vulnerable Medi-Cal patients while it develops longer-term 
financial solutions. 
 
Member Impact: Supporting CIH is consistent with L.A. Care’s mission of ensuring access and 
providing high quality care to vulnerable and low-income populations in underserved areas.   
 
Budget Impact:    
 

Motion:       To approve delegated authority to Chief Executive Officer, John 
Baackes, to issue up to a $2 million award to Catalina Island Health 
to support safety net access to health care for L.A. Care members 
living on Catalina Island. 

 
 

 

160


	Agenda
	Draft 20240228 Minutes
	Legislative Matrix
	EXE 100 Catalina Island Health Grant



